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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

As has been previously reported on January 11 2011 we changed our corporate name to Circle Entertainment Inc from FX
Real Estate and Entertainment Inc In this Annual Report on Form 10-K unless the context indicates otherwise the words we us
our Circle Entertainment and the Company collectively refer to Circle Entertainment Inc formerly known as FX Real Estate and

Entertainment Inc and its current consolidated subsidiaries Circle Entertainment SV-I LLC FXL Inc and FX Luxury LLC and its former

consolidated subsidiary the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary as defined below The words Las Vegas Property Subsidiary refers to FIX

Luxury Las Vegas LLC into which its predecessor entities and our then consolidated subsidiaries as the owners of the Las Vegas Property

as defined below were merged on November 2009 Prior to November 2009 these predecessor entities include FX Luxury Las Vegas

LLC FX Luxury Las Vegas II LLC and FX Luxury Las Vegas Parent LLC and their predecessor entities BP Parent LLC Metroflag BP
LLC and Metroflag Cable LLC The words Las Vegas Property refer to 17.72 contiguous acres of land located at the southeast corner of

Las Vegas Boulevard and Harmon Avenue in Las Vegas Nevada As has been previously reported on December 15 2010 the Las Vegas

Property Subsidiary which had been in Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings since April 21 2010 reorganized and emerged from its Chapter

11 bankruptcy proceedings under new ownership As result we no longer have an ownership interest in the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary

or the Las Vegas Property Accordingly the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary has been de-consolidated as of January 2010 and is accounted

for as discontinued operation in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report

Overview of Transition and Financial Condition of the Company

2010 was transition
year

for the Company As has been previously reported on December 15 2010 our Las Vegas Property

Subsidiary which had been in Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings since April 21 2010 reorganized and emerged from its Chapter 11

bankruptcy proceedings under new ownership As result we no longer have an ownership interest in the Las Vegas Subsidiary or the Las

Vegas Property The Las Vegas Property was substantially our entire business For description of the events surrounding our loss of the Las

Vegas Property refer to The Companys Former Line of Business below

As has been previously reported on September 10 2010 we through our wholly-owned subsidiary Circle Entertainment SV-I LLC
entered into an Exclusive License Agreement the License Agreement with William Kitchen and US ThriliRides LLC to use and

commercially exploit the SkyView Technology as hereinafter defined which is expected to be the foundation of the Companys location-

based entertainment line of business We have been pursuing the development and commercialization of the SkyView Technology since

then For further discussion of the new line of business based on the SkyView Technology refer to The Companys New Line Business

below

As has been previously reported we are in severe fmancial distress and may not be able to continue as going concem We have no

current cash flow and cash on hand as of March 31 2011 is not sufficient to fund our past due obligations and short-term liquidity needs

including our ordinary course obligations as they come due We have received an opinion from our auditor expressing substantial doubt as to

our ability to continue as going concern Our ability to continue as going concem will depend on whether or not we can successfully

capitalize and finance implement and operate our new line of business

Investors should read all of the information set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K in order to better understand the financial

condition of and risks of investing in the Company

The Companys New Line of Business

On September 10 2010 we through our wholly-owned subsidiary Circle Entertainment SV-I LLC entered into the License

Agreement with William Kitchen Kitchen and US ThrillRides LLC Kitchens wholly-owned corporate affiliate ThrillRides and

together with Kitchen the ThrillRides Parties pursuant to which the ThrillRides Parties have granted worldwide exclusive license to us to

use and commercially exploit all of Kitchens patents ThrillRides trademark and Kitchens other intellectual property trade secrets and know-

how pertaining to all aspects of the adaptation of an observation wheel legally known as SkyViewTM including without limitation its

engineering design development construction operation and maintenance collectively the Sky View Technology Concurrently with their

entry into the License Agreement the parties also entered into related Development Agreement the Development Agreement pursuant to

which the ThrillRides Parties are responsible for the supervision and management of the construction development and installation of

Sky Views on our behalf
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The SkyView Technology is expected to be the foundation of our new location-based entertainment line of business The Company
intends to commercially exploit the Sky View Technology by owning and operating SkyViews through direct and indirect subsidiaries for its

own account and selling licensing operating and maintaining SkyViews through direct and indirect subsidiaries for the account ofthird

parties The SkyView Technology and the SkyViews remains under development No prototype has been built nor have any SkyViews been

sold or sublicensed Development and commercialization of the Sky View Technology and the SkyViews will require significant capital and

financing There is no assurance that the Company will either obtain the necessary capital and financing to develop and commercialize the

SkyView Technology and the SkyViews or even if such capital and fmancing is obtained it will be able to successfUlly develop and

commercialize the Sky View Technology and the Sky Views

As has previously been reported on February 28 2011 in furtherance of its new location-based entertainment line of business the

Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary Circle Entertainment Property-Orlando LLC the Circle Subsidiary entered into

Transaction Agreement with The Square LLC Orlando Hotel Intemational SPE LLC and Orlando Hotel Intemational SPE Holdings LLC

The Square LLC Orlando Hotel Intemational SPE LLC and Orlando Hotel International SPE Holdings LLC are collectively the Whittall

Parties to co-develop project in Orlando Florida on which the Companys Sky ViewTM observation wheel will be placed beside retail

restaurant and bar and entertainment facilities

brief description of the terms and conditions of the Transaction Agreement follows Such description of the Transaction Agreement

is not complete and qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Transaction Agreement copy of which is listed and

incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.32 to this report and is incorporated by reference herein

Under the Transaction Agreement the Circle Subsidiary will acquire 65% interest in the ownership of two adjacent properties the

OH Parcel of 10 acres and the Square Parcel of 18 acres collectively the Property currently owned by certain of the Whittall Parties

and located on Intemational Drive in Orlando Florida The closing of the transaction estimated to be in the second half of 2011 will be

subject to the satisfaction of number of conditions including the
rearrangement of the existing first mortgage loans on the Property with

CIBC the CIBC Loan to extend their existing maturity dates for five years and increase the principal balances thereof by approximately $11

million in the aggregate the proceeds of which are to be used to improve the Property and for tenant installations acquiring good title to

the Property and the new property owner entering into 99-year lease for property upon which the Companys Sky ViewTM observation

wheel and 25000 square foot retail service and maintenance building will be located The Circle Subsidiary is responsible for funding

certain obligations between execution of the Transaction Agreement and the closing as follows $65000 for reimbursement of real estate

tax escrow payments for November and December 2010 approximately $20000 per month for real estate tax obligations after December

2010 $50000 commencing May 2011 representing approximately 65% of the monthly interest payments required prepayment of

portion may be required to maintain CIBC interest reserves up to $45000 per month for architectural and engineering services relating to

the site design and 65% of ongoing property expenses estimated at $2000 per month The Whittall Parties will be responsible for funding

35% of the obligations specified in clauses b-e in the previous sentence The Property will be developed in two phases each constituting

approximately 102000 square feet The closing of the CIBC Loan will be contingent on pre-leasing of approximately 102000 square feet at

the Property of which the Sky ViewTM observation will be 25000 square feet As part of the closing the Circle Subsidiary will be required to

fund $5 million in the aggregate towards the development of the Property but amounts advanced as set forth above will be offset against the

funding required at closing In addition to the required equity contributions under the terms of the CIBC Loan the Company will be

responsible for building and installing the Sky ViewTM observation wheel and terminal building at an approximate cost of $50 million and will

need to arrange the financing necessary to do so The Company does not currently have any financing commitments in place

brief description of the terms and conditions of the License Agreement and the Development Agreement follows Such description

of the License Agreement and the Development Agreement is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the

License Agreement and the Development Agreement copies of which are listed and incorporated by reference as Exhibits 10.29 and 10.30

respectively to this report and are incorporated herein by reference

License Agreement

The License Agreement has an initial term of twenty 20 years unless sooner terminated in accordance with its terms The initial 20-

year term renews automatically for successive five year periods at our option unless we provide written notice of non-renewal to Kitchen

at least 190 days prior to the expiration of the initial term or the then current renewal period as applicable

We have an exclusive world wide license for current and future Sky View Technology We have the right to sublicense the Sky View

license to unaffiliated third party licensees

Under the License Agreement we issued to Kitchen and his designees warrants to purchase up to 3750000 shares of Company
common stock at an exercise price of $0.20 per share subject to anti-dilution protection from stock splits and similar events during the term of

the warrants These warrants have five-year terms and are immediately exercisable provided that they are subject to cancellation upon fault

based termination of the License Agreement by either of the ThrillRides Parties
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We are required to make the following royalty payments to Kitchen

advance royalty payments of $50000 month until the earlier of firm order and deposit for construction of the first SkyView or

termination of the License Agreement or the Development Agreement provided that advance royalty payments are subject to being credited at

specified rates against the construction royalty payments described in the following bullet

construction royalty payments equal to 5% of the Total Cost as such term is defined in the License Agreement of Construction

and Installation as such term is defined in the License Agreement of each Sky View payable in proportion to payments made for such costs

to contractors and vendors of the applicable Sky View

profit royalty payments equal to 5% of the Profit as such term is defined in the License Agreement derived from the sale of each

Sky View to an unaffiliated third party payable as collections are made under the related purchase agreement and limited to 80% of the

projected Profit until the complete purchase price is paid at which time ne-up is made for the actual Profit

operating royalty payments equal to 2% of the Gross Revenues as such term is defined in the License Agreement received from

the operation of each Sky View and

sublicense royalty payments equal to 25% of the Gross Revenues received by us from each unaffiliated third party sublicensee of

Sky View

The License Agreement is terminable by us or the ThrillRides Parties as follows

by us after thirty 30 months if we reasonably believe another Ferris-wheel type product will be more competitive than Sky Views

by us or the ThrillRides Parties if
any representation or warranty of the other party is untrue or misleading in any material respect

or the other party defaults in performing any of its obligations under the License Agreement or the Development Agreement subject to

applicable grace or curative periods or ii the other party is involuntarily put into liquidation conservatorship or similarproceedings and such

proceedings are not vacated within 90 days of initiation or iiithe other party voluntarily submits to liquidation conservatorship or similar

proceedings and

by the ThrillRides Parties if either of the performance standards described below is not met by us due to any cause other than

material default of the ThrillRides Parties or force majeure event

We are subject to two performance standards under the License Agreement Under the first performance standard we are required

to sell minimum of three SkyViews under binding agreement or have three SkyViews built or under construction firm order

and deposit in hand within 30 months of the date of entry into the License Agreement subject to extension for force majeure events specified

in the License Agreement Under the second performance standard we are required to either sell another three Sky Views or have another

three Sky Views built or under construction within 66 months of the date of entry into the License Agreement subject to extension for force

majeure events specified in the License Agreement

Upon termination of the License Agreement by us because of default by either of the ThrillRides Parties the previously described

warrants are be subject to cancellation and any shares purchased thereunder and not already sold in the open market are subject to our

repurchase at cost Upon termination of the License Agreement by any party the existing Sky Views and
any

under construction may be

finished and continue to be operated under the same economic terms as the License Agreement whether by us or any sublicensee

The License Agreement provides for bilateral indemnification for third party claims proximately caused by or directly resulting from

any breach by party of its representations warranties or covenants The ThrillRides Parties indemnity obligations to us are joint and several

and are limited to the total amount of royalties and advances paid or payable by us under the License Agreement Our indemnity obligations are

equally limited to the total amount of royalties and advances paid or payable by us under the License Agreement The foregoing limitations do

not protect party which commits fraud or gross negligence

The License Agreement provides for bilateral non-competition covenants and provides us with right of first refusal to acquire the

SkyView Technology if either of the ThrillRides Parties receives an offer of purchase therefor from third party

Development Agreement

Under the Development Agreement the ThrillRides Parties are responsible for the supervision and management of the construction

development and installation of Sky Views on our behalf Kitchen is principally responsible for supervising construction and installation of

each Sky View until it is in operation including selecting providers of services and vendors ThrillRides is further responsible for research and
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development for the purpose of keeping SkyViews up to date

We are required to compensate ThrillRides for its services by making construction payments to ThriliRides equal to five percent 5%
of the Total Cost as such term defmed in the License Agreement of Construction and Installation as such term is defmed in the License

Agreement of each SkyView If Kitchen dies or is permanently disabled and we terminate the Development Agreement for either such reason

we are required to continue making the constructions payments for so long as the License Agreement remains in effect but at the following

reduced rates depending on when the termination of the Development Agreement occurs 1.5% if the termination occurs within the first 10

years 2% if the tennination occurs after the first 10 years
but before the 15th year and 2.5% if the termination occurs after the first 15 years
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The Development Agreement is generally terminable upon the same basis as the License Agreement except we may terminate the

Development Agreement under certain circumstances upon Kitchens death or permanent disability and contains the same bilateral non-

competition covenants and limitations on liability as the License Agreement

The Companys Former Line of Business

On December 15 2010 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary reorganized and emerged from its Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding

under new ownership pursuant to its plan of reorganization as confirmed by the bankruptcy court on November 2010 as described

below As result we no longer have an ownership interest in the Las Vegas Subsidiary or the Las Vegas Property The Las Vegas Property

was substantially our entire business The Las Vegas Property Subsidiary has been de-consolidated as of January 2010 and is accounted for

as discontinued operation in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report

As has been previously reported on April 21 2010 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary filed voluntary petition for relief under

chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Nevada Case No 10-17015 the

Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding pursuant to which the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary presented its pre-packaged plan in accordance

with lock-up and plan support agreement dated as October 23 2009 as amended the Lock Up Agreement it had previously entered into

with the first lien lenders under the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys $475 million mortgage loans secured by the Las Vegas Property and two

corporate affiliates LIRA Property Owner LLC and its parent LIRA LLC collectively the Newco Entities of Robert F.X Sillerman Paul

Kanavos and Brett Torino who are directors executive officers and/or greater than 10% stockholders of the Company The Lock Up

Agreement had contemplated the orderly liquidation of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding by

disposing of the Las Vegas Property for the benefit of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys and its predecessor entities creditors either

pursuant to an auction sale for at least $256 million or if the auction sale had not been completed pursuant to prearranged sale to the Newco

Entities under the terms of the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceedings plan of liquidation

As has been previously reported on December 23 2009 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary entered into second lock up and plan

support agreement as amended the Second Lock Up Agreement with the first lien lenders certain of the second lien lenders the

Participating Second Lien Lenders and the first and second lien agents under the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys $475 million mortgage

loans and LIRA LLC the Equity Parent corporate affiliate of Robert F.X Sillerman Paul Kanavos and Brett Torino the Equity

Sponsors

The Second Lock Up Agreement primarily differed from the Lock Up Agreement in that the first lien lenders and the Participating

Second Lien Lenders were both parties to it and the Las Vegas Property was to be sold in prearranged sale not conditioned upon an

unsuccessful public auction to an entity co-owned by the Equity Sponsors and the Participating Second Lien Lenders and potentially other

participating unsecured creditors pursuant to prepackaged chapter 11 bankruptcy case to be filed by the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary The

purpose
of the Second Lock Up Agreement like the Lock Up Agreement was to pursue an orderly liquidation of the Las Vegas Property

Subsidiary for the benefit of its and its predecessor entities creditors The Second Lock Up Agreement then terminated in accordance with

its terms on February 12 2010 and the Lock Up Agreement was reinstated

As has been previously reported on June 2010 the Lock Up Agreement terminated in accordance with its terms and was of no

further force or effect except for certain provisions thereof that survived in accordance with their terms and othenvise for purposes of

determining the amount of any applicable adequate protection payments authorized by the Bankruptcy Court in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy

Proceeding Nevertheless the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary remained debtor in possession in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding

As result of termination of the Lock Up Agreement the Bankruptcy Court terminated the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys

exclusivity to present plan of organization or liquidation in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding and allowed interested parties to present

competing plans to the Bankruptcy Court Thereafter the first lien lenders and the second lien lenders filed competing plans of reorganization

with the Bankruptcy Court prior to October 12 2010

As has been previously reported on October 12 2010 majority-in-interest of the second lien lenders with the support of the first

lien lenders filed third amended plan of reorganization the Bankruptcy Plan with the Bankruptcy Court

On November 2010 the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Bankruptcy Plan As indicated in the following summary of the material

features of the Bankruptcy Plan when the Bankruptcy Plan became effective on December 15 2010 we no longer had any ownership interest

in the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary or the Las Vegas Property
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Under the Bankruptcy Plan the reorganized Las Vegas Property Subsidiary continues to own the Las Vegas Property subject to new

first mortgage loan from the existing first lien lenders and it is wholly-owned by newly organized limited liability company the Debtors

Parent The second lien lenders own the equity of the Debtors Parent in the proportion they subscribed for their share of the Debtors

Parents new equity and made capital contribution in the
pro rata amount of the Total Capital Contribution as defined below accordingly

The Las Vegas Property is encumbered by new first mortgage loan secured by two notes $188 million Class note with interest at the rate

of 3.95% per annum and $71 million plus an amount not greater than $7.5 million relating to unpaid interest as of the effective date Class

note with interest at the rate of 2% per annum All of the interest payments on the Class note amortize the principal on dollar-for-dollar

basis Both notes mature in six years subject to three one-year extension rights under certain circumstances The first lien lenders also have

contingent profits interest in the Debtors Parent equal to 4% of profits until the second lien lenders have received the amount of their

bankruptcy claim approximately $233100000 and 10% thereafter

The second lien lenders were entitled under the Bankruptcy Plan to subscribe for 94% of the new equity in the Debtors Parent by

contributing their pro rata share of the Total Capital Contribution and agreeing to guarantee three months of interest payments They also had

contingent rights to subscribe for additional equity in the Debtors Parent based on increased future valuation total capital contribution of

approximately $1.75 million was to be used for an interest reserve and an amount up to $10 millionto reimburse the second lien lenders and

their counsel for costs and expenses incurred in connection with the bankruptcy proceeding such amount of up to approximately $11750000
is herein the Total Capital Contribution Each subscribing second lien lender was also subject to its share of potential million capital

call if needed in connection with property operations

The Companys subsidiary FX Luxury LLC FX Luxury as the original equity owner of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary was

entitled under the Bankruptcy Plan to subscribe for up to 6% of the equity in the Debtors Parent by contributing ratable share of the Total

Capital Contribution While FX Luxury approved the Bankruptcy Plan it did not subscribe for any equity in the Debtors Parent As result of

approving the Bankruptcy Plan the Company is potentially entitled to the Class Right the Contingent Interest which would enable it to

purchase within six years up to 5% of the equity of the Debtors Parent at the date of exercise at purchase price equal to $450 million minus

the first lien indebtedness divided by the number of equity units outstanding on the date of exercise Therefore upon the effective date of the

Bankruptcy Plan the Company no longer had any ownership interest in the Debtor other than the potential Contingent Interest or the Las

Vegas Property

All of the trade creditors and all administrative claims were satisfied in the Bankruptcy As part of the Bankruptcy Plan the Las

Vegas Property Subsidiary and parties to the Bankruptcy received releases except for fraud and gross misconduct when the Bankruptcy Plan

became effective

The foregoing description of the Lock Up Agreement the Second Lock Up Agreement and the Bankruptcy Plan is not complete and is

qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of them copies of which are listed and incorporated by reference as Exhibits 10.17 10.18

10.19 10.20 10.21 and 10.22 to this report and are incorporated herein by reference

As result of the loss of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary the Companys consolidated fmancial statements included elsewhere in

this report have been affected as follows the Companys operations were deconsolidated for the periods presented The operating losses for the

presented periods were classified as Losses from Discontinued Operations and the net assets of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary were

eliminated.

The Las Vegas Property

The Companys original business consisted of owning and operating the Las Vegas Property 17.72 contiguous acres of land located at

the southeast comer of Las Vegas Boulevard and Harmon Avenue in Las Vegas Nevada While owned by the Company the Las Vegas

Property was occupied by motel and several commercial and retail tenants with mix of short and long-term leases The Company had

commenced design and planning for redevelopment plan for the Las Vegas Property that included hotel casino entertainment retail

commercial and residential development project As result of the 2008 disruption in the capital markets and the economic downturn in the

United States in general and Las Vegas in particular the Company determined not to proceed with its originally proposed plan for the

redevelopment of the Las Vegas Property and intended to consider alternative plans with respect to the development of the

property However on or about January 2009 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary went into default under the $475 million mortgage loans

secured by the Las Vegas Property when it was unable to repay the loans at maturity on or about January 2009 The Company continued

commercial leasing activities on the property until June 23 2009 when as result of the default under the first mortgage loan the first lien

lenders had receiver appointed to take control of the property and as consequence the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary ceased managing or

operating such property As described above on April 21 2010 the Las Vegas Subsidiary became debtor in possession in the Chapter 11

Bankruptcy Proceeding until December 15 2010 when it reorganized and emerged therefrom under new ownership pursuant to the Bankruptcy
Plan
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Impairment of Land

The Company follows the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of

Long-Lived Assets In accordance with the accounting standard the Company reviews its real estate portfolio for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable based upon expected undiscounted cash flows from the

property

As result of the abandonnent of its redevelopment plan for the Las Vegas Property the Company recorded an impairment charge

related to write-off of $10.7 million for capitalized development costs that were no longer deemed to be recoverable as of December 31
2009 As more fully described in note to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report as result of the current

global recession and fmancial crisis and based upon valuation report obtained for the Las Vegas Property from an independent appraisal firm

combined with certain assumptions made by management the Company had recorded an impairment charge to land of $325.1 million in 2008
which charge reduced the canying value of the Las Vegas Property to $218.8 million The Company obtained an update of the appraisal as of

December 31 2009 by the same firm and as result had recorded an additional impairment charge of $79.1 million to the value of the land as

of December 31 2009

Because of the Companys loss of the Las Vegas Property on December 15 2010 as result of the Las Vegas Property subsidiarys

reorganization and emergence from its Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding under new ownership pursuant to the Bankruptcy Plan Las

Vegas Property Subsidiary has been de-consolidated as of January 2010 and is accounted for as discontinued operation in our consolidated

financial statements included elsewhere in this report

Formation of the Company

Circle Entertainment Inc formerly known as FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc as result of corporate name change on

January 11 2011 was formed as result of the following transactions involving predecessor entities and other parties that occurred between

April 2007 and January 2008

FX Luxury Realty LLC FXLR was formed under the laws of the state of Delaware on April 13 2007 FXLR was inactive

from inception through May 10 2007

On May 11 2007 Flag Luxury Properties LLC Flag real estate development company in which Robert F.X Sillerman

and Paul Kanavos each owned an approximate 29% interest contributed to the Company its 50% ownership interest in

predecessor entities of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary for all of the membership interests in FXLR The sale of assets by

Flag was accounted for at historical cost as FXLR and Flag were entities under common control

On May 30 2007 FXLR entered into an agreement to acquire the remaining 50% ownership interest in the predecessor entities

of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary that it did not already own This purchase was completed on July 2007 As result of

this purchase FXLR owned 100% of the predecessor entities of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary and therefore the Las

Vegas Property The total consideration paid by FXLR for the remaining 50% interest in such predecessor entities was $180

million $172.5 million of which was paid in cash at closing and $7.5 million of which was an advance payment made in May
2007 funded by $7.5 million loan from Flag The cash payment at closing was funded from $92.5 million of cash on hand

and $105 million in additional borrowings which was reduced by $21.3 million deposited into restricted cash account to

cover debt service commitments and $3.7 million in debt issuance costs The $7.5 million loan from Flag was repaid on July

2007

On June 2007 CKX Inc CKX company in which Robert F.X Sillerman is the largest stockholder and of which he

then served as chief executive officer contributed $100 million in cash to FXLR in exchange for 50% of the common

membership interests in FXLR

Circle Entertainment Inc was formed under the laws of the state of Delaware on June 15 2007

On September 26 2007 CKX together with other holders of common membership interests in FXLR contributed all of their

common membership interests in FXLR to Circle Entertainment Inc in exchange for shares of common stock of Circle

Entertaimnent Inc As result of this exchange Circle Entertainment Inc held 100% of the outstanding common membership
interests of FXLR

On September 26 2007 CKX acquired an additional 0.742% of the outstanding capital stock of Circle Entertainment Inc for

price of $1.5 million

On November 29 2007 Circle Entertainment Inc reclassified its common stock on basis of 194515.758 shares of common
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stock for each share of common stock then outstanding and

On January 10 2008 Circle Entertainment Inc became publicly traded company as result of CKX distributing all of the

shares of Circle Entertainment Inc common stock held by it to its stockholders of record as of December 31 2007
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On December 24 2009 FXL Inc new wholly-owned subsidiary of Circle Entertainment Inc succeeded to Circle

Entertainment Inc.s interest in FXLR

On December 15 2010 Circle Entertainment Inc surrendered its interest held by FXLR in the Las

Vegas Property Subsidiary pursuant to the Bankruptcy Plan whereupon it no longer had an ownership

interest in the Las Vegas Property

2010 and 2011 Private Placements of Equity Securities and Borrowings under Unsecured Demand Loans

During 2010 and to date in 2011 the Company has funded its short-term capital requirements through the following private

placements of its equity securities and borrowings under unsecured demand loans

Common Stock

On January 28 2010 the Company sold an aggregate of 1562499 shares of its common stock to Laura Baudo Sillerman the spouse

of Robert F.X Sillerman the Companys Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Paul Kanavos the Companys President and his spouse

Dayssi Olarte de Kanavos and TTERB Living Trust an affiliate of Brett Torino greater than 10% stockholder of the Company upon their

exercise of like number of Company warrants The Company received aggregate proceeds of $125000 from the exercise of the warrants

which were exercisable at $0.08 per share Mrs Sillerman Mr Kanavos and his spouse and hERB Living Trust each purchased 520833

shares of common stock upon the exercise of like number of warrants for an aggregate exercise price of $41666.66

Series Convertible Preferred Stock

On February 11 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater

than 10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 99 units at purchase price of $1000

per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly created and issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock $0.01 par value

per share the Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to 10989 shares of the Companys common stock

such number of shares being equal to the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period

immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $0.273 per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate

proceeds of $99000 from the sale of the units

On March 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 180 units at purchase price of $1000 per

unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up

to 10309.278 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000

per
share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per

share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $0291 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of$180000 from the sale of the units

On March 11 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 600 units at purchase price of $1000 per

unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up

to 10277.49 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000

per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $0.29 19 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $600000 from the sale of the units

On April 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 270 units at purchase price of $1000 per

unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up

to 9866.79 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of$l000

per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $03041 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $270000 from the sale of the units
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On May 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 150 units at purchase price of $1000 per

unit Each unit consists of one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up
to 11448.19 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000

per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $02621 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $150000 from the sale of the units

On June 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 99 units at purchase price of $1000 per

Unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up
to 12484.39 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000

per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $0.2403 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referenced in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $99000 from the sale of the units

On July 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 102 units at purchase price of$l000 per

unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up

to 14869.88 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000

per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $0.20 18 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in the preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for

period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of$102000 from the sale of the units

After giving effect to the sale of shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock on July 2010 the Company had issued and sold all

1500 authorized shares of Series Convertible Stock Because there are at least 1000 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

outstanding the Companys board of directors is required at the request of the holders of majority of the Series Convertible Preferred

Stock to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting vacancy to be filled by director designated by such holders Such holders

have not made such request thus far

Because the foregoing private placements involved certain of the Companys directors and certain greater than 10% stockholders and

their affiliates such private placements were approved by majority of the Companys disinterested directors to the extent applicable

Series Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate of Design ation

The Company created 1500 shares of Series Convertible Stock by filing Certificate of Designation the Series Certificate of

Designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware thereby amending its Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation as

amended The Company issued and sold an aggregate of 1500 shares of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock as part of the units The

designation powers preferences and rights of the shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock and the qualifications limitations and

restrictions thereof are contained in the Series Certificate of Designation and are summarized as follows

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock have an initial stated value of $1000 per share which is subject to increase

periodically to include accrued and unpaid dividends thereon as increased periodically the Stated Value

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to receive quarterly cumulative cash dividends at rate equal to

8% per annum of the Stated Value whenever funds are legally available and when and as declared by the Companys board of

directors

Each share of Series Convertible Stock are convertible into shares of Company common stock at conversion prices equal to

120% of the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the

30-day period immediately preceding the applicable date of issuance the Conversion Price The Conversion Price is subject to

adjustment to give effect to dividends stock splits recapitalizations and similarevents affecting the shares of Company common
stock

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible at the option of the holders into shares of Company common
stock at the Conversion Price if at any time the closing price of the shares of Company common stock is at the Conversion Price

for ten 10 consecutive trading days The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible each time for period of

60-days thereafter
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Upon the earlier of consummation of the Companys sale or series of related sales of its capital stock or securities

convertible into its capital stock from which the Company generates net proceeds of at least $25 million or the fifth

anniversary of the date of their issuance the Series Convertible Preferred Stock shall automatically convert into the number of

shares of Company common stock equal to the then current Stated Value divided by the Conversion Price

If at any time the closing price of the shares of Company common stock is at least 10 times the applicable weighted average

closing price per
share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the applicable date of issuance of particular share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock for fifteen 15 consecutive

trading days the Company may redeem such share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock at the then current Stated

Value Such shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are redeemable each time in whole or in part for period of 120-days

thereafter

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock is senior in liquidation preference to the shares of Company common stock

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock vote as class with the outstanding shares of Company common stock on an

as-converted basis except as otherwise required by the Series Certificate of Designation or applicable law

The consent of the holders of 51% of the outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock shall be necessary for the

Company to increase the authorized number of shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock or alter amend or change any

of the terms designations powers privileges or rights or restrictions provided for the benefit of the Series Convertible

Preferred Stock ii create or issue any Company capital stock or any securities convertible into any Company capital stock

having rights preferences or privileges senior to or on parity with the Series Convertible Preferred Stock or iii amend the

Companys Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws in manner that is materially adverse to the Series

Convertible Preferred Stock

From the date on which at least 1000 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding the Director

Commencement Date the Companys board of directors is required at the request of the holders of majority of the Series

Convertible Preferred Stock to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting vacancy to be filled by director

designated by the holders of majority of the then outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock the Class

Director From the Director Commencement Date until the date on which less than 50% of the shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock outstanding on the Director Commencement Date are outstanding the holders of the Series Convertible

Preferred Stock voting as separate class have the right to elect one Class Director to the Companys board of directors at

each meeting of stockholders or each consent of the Companys stockholders for the election of directors and to remove from

office such Class Director and to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation death or removal of such Class Director Each

share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to one vote and
any

election or removal of the Class Director shall be

subject to the affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

The foregoing description of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to

the frill text of the Series Certificate of Designation and the form of Warrant copies of which are listed and incorporated by reference as

Exhibits 3.3 and 10.24 respectively to this report and are incorporated herein by reference

Series Convertible Preferred Stock

On August 17 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater

than 10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 150 units at purchase price of $1000

per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly created and issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock $0.01 par value

per share the Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to 12507.8 shares of the Companys common stock

such number of shares being equal to the product of the initial stated value of $1 .000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period

immediately preceding the closing date and ii200% at an exercise price of $0.2399
per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the

closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate

proceeds of$150000 from the sale of the units
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On September 21 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors and other accredited investors

pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 500 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit

consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to 14306.15

shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofithe initial stated value of $1000 per share of

Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on

the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $02097 per share such

exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period of years
The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $500000 from the sale of the units

On September 27 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater

than 10% stockholders and other accredited investors pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 300 units

at purchase price of$l000 per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Preferred Stock and

warrant to purchase up to 11389.52 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial

stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the

Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an

exercise price of $0.2634 per share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants

are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $300000 from the sale of the units

On October 18 through October 22 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with accredited investors pursuant to

which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 800 units at purchase price of $1000 per
unit Each unit consists of

one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to specified number of

shares of the Companys common stock detennined based on the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink

Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the applicable closing date and ii200% at specified exercise price per
share such

exercise price representing 150% of the applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys
common stock underlying each warrant ranges

from 8090.61 shares to 8322.93 shares and the exercise price per
share at which each warrant

is exercisable ranges from $0360 to $0371 due to variances in the closing prices referenced in clause of the preceding sentence The

warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $800000 from the sale of the units

On December 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreement with an accredited investor pursuant to which the

purchaser purchased from the Company 100 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys

newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to specified number of shares of the Companys common

stock determined based on the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the

weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the applicable closing date and ii200% at specified exercise price per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys common stock underlying each warrant is

6559.53 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant is exercisable is $0.4574 The warrants are exercisable for period of

years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of$100000 from the sale of the units

On December 23 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreement with an accredited investor pursuant to which the

purchaser purchased from the Company 200 units at purchase price of$l000 per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys

newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to specified number of shares of the Companys common
stock determined based on the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per

share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the

weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the applicable closing date and ii 200% at specified exercise price per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

applicable Closing Price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys common stock underlying each warrant is

6925.21 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant is exercisable is $04332 The warrants are exercisable for period of

years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $200000 from the sale of the units

On February through February 14 2011 the Company entered into subscription agreements with accredited investors pursuant to

which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 330 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit consists of

one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to specified number of

shares of the Companys common stock determined based on the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink

Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the applicable closing date and ii 200% at specified exercise price per share such

exercise price representing 150% of the applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys
common stock underlying each warrant ranges from 3175.61 shares to 5538.62 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant

is exercisable ranges from $0.3 149 to $05417 due to variances in the closing prices referenced in clause of the preceding sentence The

warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $330000 from the sale of the units The

Company also issued 35000 shares of Series convertible Preferred Stock in satisfaction of $35000 sales commission owed to an individual

in connection with previous sales of the Companys securities in the offering
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On February 15 through March 2011 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive

officers and greater than 10% stockholders and other accredited investors pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an

aggregate of 85 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys Series Convertible

Preferred Stock $0.01 par value per share and warrant to purchase up to specified number of shares of the Companys common stock

determined based on the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the

weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the applicable closing date and ii 200% at specified exercise price per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys common stock underlying each warrant

ranges from 2676 shares to 2820 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant is exercisable ranges from $0.53 19 to $0.5606

due to variances in the closing prices referenced in clause of the preceding sentence The warrants are exercisable for period of

years
The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $85000 from the sales of the units

After giving effect to the sale of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock on March 2011 the Company had issued and sold all

2500 authorized shares of Series Convertible Stock Because there are at least 1667 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

outstanding the Companys board of directors is required at the request of the holders of majority of the Series Convertible Preferred

Stock to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting vacancy to be filled by director designated by such holders Such holders

have not made such request thus far

Because the foregoing private placements involved certain of the Companys directors officers greater than 10% stockholders and

affiliates such private placements were approved by majority of the Companys disinterested directors to the extent applicable

Series Convertible Preferred Stock Certjficate of Designation

On August 17 2010 the Company created 2500 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock by filing Certificate of Designation

the Series Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware thereby amending its Amended and Restated

Certificate of Incorporation as amended The designation powers preferences and rights of the shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

and the qualifications limitations and restrictions thereof are contained in the Series Certificate of Designation and are summarized as

follows

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock have an initial stated value of $1000 per share which is subject to increase

periodically to include accrued and unpaid dividends thereon as increased periodically the Stated Value

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to receive quarterly cumulative cash dividends at rate equal to

8% per annum of the Stated Value whenever funds are legally available and when and as declared by the Companys board of

directors The dividend rights of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock are on parity with the dividend rights of the

Companys outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock

Each share of Series Convertible Stock is convertible into shares of Company common stock at conversion prices equal to

120% of the weighted average closing price per
share of Company common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day

period immediately preceding the applicable date of issuance the Conversion Price The Conversion Price is subject to

adjustment to give effect to dividends stock splits recapitalizations and similar events affecting the shares of Company common

stock

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible at the option of the holders into shares of Company common

stock at the Conversion Price if at any time the closing price of the shares of Company common stock is at the Conversion Price

for ten 10 consecutive trading days The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible each time for period of

60-days thereafter

Upon the earlier of consummation of the Companys sale or series of related sales of its capital stock or securities

convertible into its capital stock from which the Company generates net proceeds of at least $25 million or the fifth

anniversary of the date of their issuance the Series Convertible Preferred Stock shall automatically convert into the number of

shares of Company common stock equal to the then current Stated Value divided by the Conversion Price
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If at any time the closing price of the shares of Company common stock is at least 10 times the applicable weighted average

closing price per share of Company common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding

the applicable date of issuance of particular share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock for fifteen 15 consecutive trading

days the Company may redeem the outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock at the then current Stated Value The shares

of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are redeemable each time in whole or in part for period of 120-days thereafter

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are senior in liquidation preference to the shares of Company common stock

and on parity with the Companys outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock vote on an as-converted to common stock basis as class with the outstanding

shares of Company common stock and the Companys outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock on an as-converted to

common stock basis except as otherwise required by the Series Certificate of Designation or applicable law

The consent of the holders of 51% of the outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock shall be necessary for the

Company to increase the authorized number of shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock or alter amend or change any

of the terms designations powers privileges or rights or restrictions provided for the benefit of the Series Convertible

Preferred Stock ii create or issue any Company capital stock or any securities convertible into
any Company capital stock

having rights preferences or privileges senior to or on parity with the Series Convertible Preferred Stock or iii amend the

Companys Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws in manner that is materially adverse to the Series

Convertible Preferred Stock

From the date on which at least 1667 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding the Series Director

Commencement Date the Companys board of directors is required to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting

vacancy to be filled by director designated by the holders of majority of the then outstanding shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock the Class Director From the Series Director Commencement Date until the date on which less than 50%
of the shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding on the Series Director Commencement Date are outstanding

the holders of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock voting as separate class have the right to elect one Class Director

to the Companys board of directors at each meeting of stockholders or each consent of the Companys stockholders for the

election of directors and to remove from office such Class Director and to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation death or

removal of such Class Director Each share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to one vote and any election or

removal of the Class Director shall be subject to the affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the outstanding shares of

Series Convertible Preferred Stock

The foregoing description of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to

the full text of the Series Certificate of Designation and the form of Warrant copies of which are listed and incorporated by reference as

Exhibits 3.4 and 10.28 respectively to this report and are incorporated herein by reference

2011 Unsecured Demand Loans

On March through March 2011 certain of the Companys directors executive officers and greater than 10% stockholders made

unsecured demand loans to the Company totaling $900000 bearing interest at the rate of 6% per annum

The Company intends to use the loan proceeds to fund working capital requirements and for general corporate purposes Because

certain of the directors executive officers and greater than 10% stockholders of the Company made the loans majority of the Companys
disinterested directors approved the loans

The foregoing description of the loans is not complete and it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the form of

Promissory Note evidencing the loans copy of which is listed and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.33 to this report and is

incorporated herein by reference

Compensatory Awards of FXL Inc Common Shares

On September 30 2010 the Company implemented compensatory program authorized by the Compensation Committee under

which certain Company personnel were awarded 25% of the common shares of FXL Inc the Companys direct subsidiary and indirect parent

of the Property Subsidiary for their diligence and efforts in preparing and overseeing the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter 11

Bankruptcy Proceeding As result of the confirmation of the Bankruptcy Plan such shares had no value as of December 15 2010
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Intellectual Property

Pursuant to the License Agreement the Company is obligated to protect the intellectual property rights it licensed from the ThrillRides

Parties In addition we intend to protect any intellectual property rights we may acquire in the future through combination of patent

trademark copyright rights of publicity and other laws as well as licensing agreements and third party nondisclosure and assignment

agreements Our failure to obtain or maintain adequate protection of our intellectual property rights for any reason could have material

adverse effect on our business fmancial condition and results of operations

Employees

As of December 31 2010 the Company had total of frill-time employees Management considers its relations with its employees

to be good

Principal Executive Offices

The principal executive offices of the Company are located at 650 Madison Avenue New York New York 10022 and our telephone

number is 212 838-3100

Available Information

The Company is subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and electronically files reports and

other information with and electronically furnishes reports and other information to the Securities and Exchange Commission Such reports

and other information filed or furnished by the Company may be inspected and copied at the Securities and Exchange Commissions Public

Reference Room at 100 Street N.E Washington D.C 20549 Please call the Securities and Exchange Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330 for

further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room The Securities and Exchange Commission also maintains an Internet site

that contains reports proxy statements and other information about issuers like us who file electronically with the Securities and Exchange

Commission The address of the Securities and Exchange Commissions website is http//www.sec.gov

In addition the Company makes available free of charge through its website www.frree.com its Annual Reports on Form 10-K

quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or

15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as soon as reasonably practicable after such documents are electronically filed with

or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission This reference to our Internet website does not constitute incorporation by reference

in this report of the information contained on or hyperlinked from our Internet website and such information should not be considered part of

this report

ITEM IA RISK FACTORS

Various portions of this report contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties Actual results performance or

achievements could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as result of certain risk factors including

those set forth below and elsewhere in this report

Risks Related to Our Business

We are still in the process of developing and commercializing the Sky View Technology and the Sky Views and may never be able to

successfully commercialize them

We have not developed prototype of the SkyViews and we are still in the process of developing and commercializing the SkyView

Technology and the SkyViews We may never be able to successfully commercialize the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews for

number of reasons including

difficulties related to manufacturing the SkyViews components

difficulties related to the constrnction and installation of the Sky Views

low market acceptance

infringement on proprietary rights of others for which we have not received licenses

potential advantages of alternative Ferris wheel type products

lack of adequate cost controls for the manufacturing construction and installation or
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If
any

of these potential risks and difficulties occurs we may never successfully commercialize the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews If

we are unable to do so our business results of operations and financial condition will be materially and adversely affected

We have no existing operations or operating history with respect to our new location-based entertainment line of business utilizing

the Sky View Technology

We have no existing operations or operating history with respect to our new location-based entertainment line of business utilizing the

SkyView Technology Members of our senior management have limited experience with the development and commercialization of the

SkyView Technology and the SkyViews and as result we have retained consultants and other advisers with appropriate experience upon
whom we are dependent In addition we have not developed prototype of the SkyViews and have not sold or licensed any SkyViews yet

You must consider our proposed business and prospects in light of the risks and difficulties we will encounter as company with no existing

operations or operating history and senior management with limited experience in our new line of business Our operations will be subject to

significant business economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies frequently encountered by new businesses in competitive

environments many of which are beyond our control Because we have no operating history in our new line of business it may be more

difficult for us to prepare for and respond to these types of risks and the risks described under this Item LA Risk Factors and elsewhere in

this report than for company with an established business and operating cash flow If we are unable to successfully address these risks and

difficulties our business operating results and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected

Our License Agreement for the Sky View Technology and the Sky Views is terminable by the ThrillRides Parties in the event we do

not satisfy certain performance standards in timely fashion

Our License Agreement for the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews is terminable by the ThrillRides Parties if either of the two

performance standards described below is not met by us due to any cause other than material default of the ThrillRides Parties or force

majeure event

Under the first performance standard we are required to sell minimum of three SkyViews under binding agreement or have

three SkyViews built or under construction firm order and deposit in hand within 30 months of the date of entry into the License

Agreement subject to extension for force majeure events specified in the License Agreement Under the second performance standard we are

required to either sell another three Sky Views or have another three SkyViews built or under construction within 66 months of the date

of entry into the License Agreement subject to extension for force majeure events specified in the License Agreement

If our License Agreement is terminated because of our failure to satisf either of the above performance standards our business

results of operations and financial condition will be materially and adversely affected

We are solely reliant on the world-wide exclusive license for the Sky View Technology and the Sky Views under the License

Agreement and any loss of this license would have material adverse effect on our business

We do not own any of the intellectual property upon which the Sky View Technology is based We license such intellectual property

from the ThrillRides Parties under the License Agreement We have certain monetary and operational obligations aside from the performance

standards mentioned in the preceding risk factor under the License Agreement If we fail to perform any of our obligations under the License

Agreement the ThrillRides Parties may have the right to terminate the License Agreement and the intellectual property would revert to the

ThrillR.ides Parties and we would not be able to use except potentially under limited circumstances or further develop the Sky View

Technology and the Sky Views

We are completely dependent upon the successful development and commercialization of the Sky View Technology and the

Sky Views If we fail to successfully complete their development and commercialization or enter into related licensing or strategic

relationships we will not generate revenue

All of our efforts are focused on the development and commercialization of the Sky View Technology and the Sky Views There is no

guarantee that we will succeed in developing and commercializing them or enter into related licensing or strategic relationships Even if we
enter licensing or strategic relationships to commercialize the Sky View Technology and the Sky Views it may take years before we generate

any significant revenue or if at all We have no other means or line of business to generate revenue We have no current cash flow and cash on

hand is insufficient to fund our short-term liquidity needs

16

hup //apps.shareholder.comlsec/viewerContent.aspxcompanyidFXLEdocid 783231 0print 7/15/2011



Circle Entertainment Inc Annual Report Page 25 of 137

We may experience product liability claims which could adversely affect our business andfinancial condition

We may experience product liability claims We intend to maintain product liability insurance coverage for the SkyViews we own and

operate for our own account and for those we sell or license to third parties If either we are unable to obtain or renew product liability

insurance and suffer an adverse determination in any material product liability claim or if we obtain product liability insurance and suffer an

adverse determination in any material product liability claim in excess of any insurance coverage such adverse determination could have

material adverse impact on our business operations and financial condition

The Company has no current cash flow and cash on hand is insufficient to fund our short-term liquidity needs

The Company has no current cash flow and cash on hand is not sufficient to fund our short-term liquidity needs during 2011

including the payment of executive salaries of approximately $1.4 million advance royalty payments to the ThrillRides Parties under the

License Agreement of approximately $600000 and payments under the Transaction Agreement for the Orlando Florida project of

approximately $5.0 million

Even jf we are able to raise additional financing we might not be able to obtain it on terms that are not unduly expensive or

burdensome to us or disadvantageous to our existing stockholders

The development of our operations will require the commitment of substantial resources to implement our business plan Currently

we have no established bank-financing arrangements Therefore it is likely we would need to seek additional financing through subsequent

fixture public and/or private sales of our equity securities and/or through strategic partnerships and other arrangements with corporate partners

Even if we are able to raise additional cash or obtain financing through the public or private sale of debt and/or equity securities

funding from joint-venture or strategic partners debt financing or short-term loans the terms of such transactions may be unduly expensive or

burdensome to us or disadvantageous to our existing stockholders For example we may be forced to sell or issue our securities at significant

discounts to market or pursuant to onerous terms and conditions including the issuance of preferred stock with disadvantageous dividend

voting or veto board membership conversion redemption or liquidation provisions the issuance of convertible debt with disadvantageous

interest rates and conversion features the issuance of warrants with cashless exercise features the issuance of securities with anti-dilution

provisions the issuance of high-yield securities and bank debt with restrictive covenants and security packages and the grant of registration

rights with significant penalties for the failure to quickly register If we are able to raise debt financing we may be required to secure the

fmancing with all of our future business assets which could be sold or retained by the creditor should we default in our payment obligations

Our independent registered public accounting firm has rendered report expressing substantial doubt as to our ability to continue

as going concern

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report dated March 31 2011 in connection with the audit of our

consolidated financial statements as of and for the period ending December 31 2010 that includes an explanatory paragraph expressing

substantial doubt as to our ability to continue as going concem due to our need to secure additional capital in order to pay our obligations as

they become due If we are not able to obtain additional debt and/or equity fmancing we may not be able to continue as going concern and

you could lose all of the value of our common stock

The concentration of ownership of our capital stock with our affiliates will limit your ability to influence corporate matters

Robert F.X Sillerman our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Paul Kanavos our President beneficially own in the

aggregate approximately 46.6% of our outstanding common stock and 32.9% of our outstanding Series and Series Convertible Preferred

Stock and our executive officers and directors together beneficially own approximately 49.7% of our outstanding common stock and 36% of

our outstanding Series and Series Convertible Preferred Stock Our executive officers and directors therefore have the ability to influence

our management and affairs and the outcome of matters submitted to stockholders for approval including the election and removal of directors

amendments to our charter approval of
any equity-based employee compensation plan and any stock splits or any merger consolidation or sale

of all or substantially all of our assets As result of this concentrated control unaffiliated stockholders of our company have limited ability

to meaningfully influence corporate matters and as result we may take actions that our unaffiliated stockholders do not view as beneficial

As result the value and/or liquidity of our common stock could be adversely affected

We have potential business conflicts with certain of our executive officers because of their relationships with other entities and

their ability to pursue business activities for themselves and others that may compete with our business activities

Potential business conflicts exist between us and our executive officers as result of the following

Each of Robert F.X Sillerman our ChiefExecutive Officer and Mitchell Nelson our Executive Vice President and General Counsel

is permitted to devote portion of his time to providing services for or on behalf of Function Inc publicly-traded company of

which Mr Sillerman is the Executive Chairman and controlling stockholder and to other businesses so long as he devotes sufficient

time to satisfy his work requirements
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Flag Luxury Properties held $15 million priority preferred distribution right in FX Luxury Realty which entitles it to receive an

aggregate amount of $15 million together with an accrued priority return of $0.9 million as of December 31 2009 prior to any

distributions of cash by FX Luxury Realty from the proceeds of certain predefined capital transactions On December 24 2009 Flag

Luxury Properties transferred its priority interest to FXL Priority Corp On December 15 2010 at the conclusion of the Bankruptcy

Plan the obligation was effectively terminated since the proceeds to pay any priority distribution were to come from the Las Vegas

Property or capital raising transactions in connection therewith

Mr Kanavos our President is permitted to devote portion of his time to providing services for or on behalf of BPS Parent LLC

BPS with which we have shared services agreement and to other businesses so long as he devotes sufficient time to satisfy his

work requirements
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We may not be able to resolve any potential conflicts with these executive officers Even if we do so however because of their

ownership interest in us these executive officers will have leverage with negotiations over their performance that may result in resolution of

such conflicts that may be less favorable to us than if we were dealing with another third party

We have entered into related party transactions on terms that some stockholders may consider not to be in their best interests

During 2010 certain of our employees including our President Mr Kanavos and our General Counsel Mr Nelson were permitted to

devote portion of their time providing services to Flag Luxury Properties and BPS Because such transactions are subject to certain rules

regarding affiliated transactions majority of the independent members of the Board of Directors is needed to approve
such arrangements

In late 2010 the Company entered into shared services agreement with BPS company substantially owned and controlled by Mr
Kanavos and Brett Torino greater than 10% stockholder of our company pursuant to which we reimburse BPS for the services of

management and related executive personnel in the field of real estate business development with respect to location-based entertainment

businesses advice in connection with specific development or construction projects the preparation of financial projections and construction

administration and planning for our location-based entertainment business and more particularly development of the Sky View

Technology Reimbursement is based on the allocation of time spent with respect to our matters and the allocable overhead pertaining

thereto Because such transactions are subject to certain rules regarding affiliated transactions majority of the independent members of the

Board of Directors is needed to approve such arrangements

Function Inc and the Company contemplate entering into shared services agreement relating to services to be performed by

Mitchell Nelson as Executive Vice President and General Counsel of both companies to share employment and overhead-related

expenses Function Inc is publicly traded company controlled by Robert F.X Sillerman Since any such shared services agreement is

subject to certain rules regarding affiliated transactions majority of independent members of the Companys Board of Directors will need to

approve such arrangement

We may lose the services of our key personnel including certain senior executives and critical consultants and advisors jftve are

not able to satisfy our payment obligations under their agreements

Our performance is dependent on the continued efforts of our executive officers and consultants and advisors with regard to the

Sky View Technology and the Sky View with whom we have agreements Due to our current financial situation there can be no guarantee that

we will be able to continue to make required payments under the executive employment agreements which amounts total $1200000 for 20

or required payments under our agreements with critical consultants and advisors The loss of the services of any of our executive officers or

other key employees or critical consultants and advisors could adversely affect our business Such payments have not been made since October

12009 Amounts accrued for Paul Kanavos are approximately 845000 as of December 31 2010 Mr Kanavos has not been paid since

October 2009 Amounts accrued for Mitchell Nelson are approximately $590000 as of December 31 2010 Mr Nelson was not paid

between October 2009 and April 30 2010 and has received partial payment of $20000 per month since May 12010

We continue to need to enhance our internal controls and financial reporting systems to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

We are subject to reporting and other obligations under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and Section 404 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section 404 requires us to assess and attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial

reporting The loss of certain key accounting and finance personnel and termination of the Shared Services Agreement with CKX in 2009
coupled with our limited financial and human resources has materially affected our internal controls over financial reporting including internal

controls over accounting for stock based compensation accounting for long-lived assets and the fmancial statement close
process Due to the

impact of these events on our internal controls over financial reporting in these areas significant adjustments were necessary to present the

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles We currently do not have nor do we expect to have in the

future the capacity to devise and implement plan to remediate these material weaknesses

As of December 31 2010 we were unable to remediate these material weaknesses because of our limited financial and human

resources
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Substantial amounts of our common stock and other equity securities could be sold in the nearfuture which could depress our

stock price

We cannot predict the effect if any that market sales of shares of common stock or the availability of shares of common stock for sale

will have on the market price of our common stock prevailing from time to time

All of the outstanding shares of common stock belonging to officers directors and other affiliates are currently restricted securities

under the Securities Act Approximately 55 million shares of these restricted securities are eligible for sale in the public market at prescribed

times pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act or otherwise Sales of significant number of these shares of common stock in the public

market or the appearance of such sales could reduce the market price of our common stock and could negatively impact our ability to sell

equity in the market to fund our business plans In addition we expect that we will be required to issue large amount of additional common
stock and other equity securities as part of our efforts to raise capital to fund our development plans The issuance of these securities could

negatively effect the value of our stock

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in theforeseeablefuture and the lack of dividends may have

negative effect on our stock price

We currently intend to retain any future earnings to support operations and to finance expansion and therefore do not anticipate paying

any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future Furthermore our Series Convertible Preferred Stock and Series

Convertible Preferred Stock are senior to our common stock as to the right to receive cash dividends There are current dividend
arrearages on

our Series Convertible Preferred Stock and Series Convertible Preferred Stock and unless and until such arrearages are satisfied in full we

may not pay cash dividends on our common stock In addition the terms of any future debt agreements we may enter into are likely to prohibit

or restrict the payment of cash dividends on our common stock

Our issuance of additional shares of our preferred stock common stock or options or warrants to purchase those shares would

dilute proportionate ownership and voting rights

Our issuance of shares of preferred stock common stock or options or warrants to purchase those shares could negatively impact the

value of stockholders shares of common stock as the result of preferential voting rights or veto powers dividend rights disproportionate

rights to appoint directors to our board conversion rights redemption rights and liquidation provisions granted to preferred stockholders

including the grant of rights that could discourage or prevent the distribution of dividends to stockholders or prevent the sale of our assets or

potential takeover of our company that might otherwise result in stockholders receiving distribution or premium over the market price for

their common stock

We are entitled under our certificate of incorporation to issue up to 300 million common and 75 million blank check preferred

shares After taking into consideration our outstanding common stock and Series Convertible Preferred Stock and Series Convertible

Preferred Stock as of March 25 2011 we will be entitled to issue up to 234596124 additional common shares and 74995999 preferred

shares Our board may generally issue those common and preferred shares or options or warrants to purchase those shares without further

approval by our stockholders based upon such factors as our board of directors may deem relevant at that time Any preferred shares we may
issue shall have such rights preferences privileges and restrictions as may be designated from time-to-time by our board including preferential

dividend rights voting rights conversion rights redemption rights and liquidation provisions Reference is made to Item Business 2010

and 2011 Private Placements of Common Stock and Convertible Preferred Stock UnitsSeries Convertible Preferred Stock CertUlcate of

Designation and Series Convertible Preferred Stock CertifIcate of Designation for description of the dividend rights preferences and

other privileges of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock and the Series Convertible Preferred Stock

We cannot give you any assurance that we will not issue additional common or preferred shares or options or warrants to purchase

those shares under circumstances we may deem appropriate at the time

Certain provisions of Delaware law and our charter documents could discourage takeover that stockholders may consider

favorable

Certain provisions of Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation and by-laws may have the effect of delaying or preventing

change of control or changes in our management These provisions include the following

Our board of directors has the right to elect directors to fill vacancy created by the expansion of the board of directors or the

resignation death or removal of director subject to the right of the stockholders to elect successor at the next annual or special

meeting of stockholders which limits the ability of stockholders to fill vacancies on our board of directors

Our stockholders may not call special meeting of stockholders which would limit their ability to call meeting for the purpose of

among other things voting on acquisition proposals
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Our by-laws may be amended by our board of directors without stockholder approval provided that stockholders may repeal or amend

any such amended by-law at special or annual meeting of stockholders

Our by-laws also provide that any action required or permitted to be taken by our stockholders at an annual meeting or special meeting

of stockholders may not be taken by written action in lieu of meeting

Our certificate of incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors which could limit the ability of

minority stockholders to elect director candidates

Stockholders must provide advance notice to nominate individuals for election to the board of directors or to propose matters that can

be acted upon at stockholders meeting These provisions may discourage or deter potential acquirer from conducting solicitation

of proxies to elect the acquirers own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to obtain control of our company

Our board of directors may authorize and issue without stockholder approval shares of preferred stock with voting or other rights or

preferences that could impede the success of
any attempt to acquire our company

As Delaware corporation by an express provision in our certificate of incorporation we have elected to opt out of the restrictions

under Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law regulating corporate takeovers In general Section 203 prohibits publicly-held

Delaware corporation from engaging under certain circumstances in business combination with an interested stockholder for period of

three years following the date the
person became an interested stockholder

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the Companys principal locations as of December 31 2010

Location Name of Property Type/Use of Property Approximate Size Owned or Leased

Las Vegas NV Corporate Offices Office Operations 1700 sq ft Leased through January

31 2012 and month-to-

month thereafter

New York NY Corporate Office Executive Offices 2418 sq ft Month-to-Month

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Huff Litigation

On April 29 2010 the Company was notified that it has been named as nominal defendant in derivative lawsuit filed on April 28
2010 by stockholders The Huff Altemative Fund L.P and The Huff Altemative Parallel Fund L.P collectively Huff on behalf of the

Company in the New York Supreme Court in Manhattan New York Index No 650338-10 against the Companys directors Harvey

Silverman Michael Meyer John Miller Robert Sudack Paul Kanavos and Robert F.X Sillerman and Brett Torino stockholder and

former officer of the Company

The filing of the lawsuit was precipitated by the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys initiation of its Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding

pursuant to the Lock Up Agreement

Prior to filing its lawsuit on April 14 2010 Huff made formal demand upon the Companys Board of Directors to among other

things terminate and cease all efforts in furtherance of the Lock Up Agreement and commence an action against the defendants for alleged

breaches of fiduciary duties of care and loyalty as set forth in its lawsuit and summarized below

In its lawsuit Huff alleges that such director defendants and stockholder defendant as former officer of the Company breached their

fiduciary duties of care and loyalty to the Company its creditors and its non defendant stockholders by among other things committing or

permitting acts of misconduct such as self-dealing and disloyalty without justifiable excuse ii causing the Company to be contractually

bound to transfer the Las Vegas Property to the Newco Entities and iiiusurping various corporate opportunities with respect to the Las Vegas

Property for which Huff is seeking on behalf of the Company damages of not less not $100 million plus punitive damages In addition Huff

alleges substantially the same claims against defendants Messrs Kanavos and Torino for which Huff is seeking on behalf of the Company
damages of not less than $50 million plus punitive damages
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The Company was formally served with the lawsuit on May 2010 and filed motion to dismiss the lawsuit on July 16 2010 Huff

filed an answer to the motion to dismiss on September 2010 and reply papers were filed on October 2010 The Court head oral arguments

with respect to the motions on November 16 2010 and the Company is waiting decision by the Court

The Company believes the lawsuit is without merit and intends to vigorously defend against it

Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding

Reference is made to Item BusinessThe Companys Former Line of Business for description of our former Las Vegas

Subsidiarys Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding

Miscellaneous

We are also subject to certain claims and litigation in the ordinary course of business It is the opinion of management that the

outcome of such matters will not have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

ITEM IREMOVED AND RESERVEDI

FART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

From January 10 2008 until April 24 2009 our common stock par value $01 per share the Common Stock was listed and traded

on The NASDAQ Global Market under the ticker symbol FXRE Prior to January 10 2008 there was no established public trading market

for our Common Stock On April 24 2009 the Company filed Form 25 with the Securities and Exchange Commission to voluntarily delist its

common stock from The NASDAQ Stock Market which delisting became effective on May 2009 The Companys common stock is

currently quoted on the Pink Sheets under the symbol CEXE.PK From May 42009 until January 112011 the effective date of the

Companys corporate name change to Circle Entertainment Inc from FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc the Companys common stock

was quoted on the Pink Sheets under the symbol FXRE.PK The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices for our

Common Stock for the quarterly periods for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

2010

High Low

December3l2010 0.40 0.17

September3o2010 0.27 0.08

June3O2010 0.20 0.11

March3l2010 0.27 0.15

2009

High Low

December 31 2009 0.25 0.07

September 30 2009 0.25 0.03

June 30 2009 0.26 0.05

March31 2009 0.78 0.05

As of March 25 2011 there were 587 holders of record of our Common Stock

Dividend Policy

We currently intend to retain any future eamings to support operations and to finance expansion and therefore do not anticipate paying

any cash dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable future Furthermore our Series Convertible Preferred Stock and Series

Convertible Preferred Stock are senior to our Common Stock as to the right to receive cash dividends There are current dividend arrearages on

our Series Convertible Preferred Stock and Series Convertible Preferred Stock and unless and until such arrearages are satisfied in full we

may not pay cash dividends on our Common Stock In addition the terms of any future debt agreements we may enter into are likely to

prohibit or restrict the payment of cash dividends on our common stock
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The table below shows information with respect to our equity compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements as of

December 31 2010

Number of

Securities

Remaining
Available For

Future

Number of Issuance Under

Securities to be Weighted- Equity

Issued Upon Average Compensation

Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans

Outstanding Outstanding Excluding

Options Options Securities

Warrants and Warrants and Reflected in

Plan Category Rights Rights Column

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 5518350 2.82 9981650

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

For description of our 2007 Executive Equity Incentive Plan and 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan see Note 14 to our

audited Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this report

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for

the year ended December 31 2010 The data should be read in conjunction with Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere herein

Amounts in thousands except share information

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

Statement of Operations Data

Revenue

Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization and impairment of land 4360 4398
Depreciation and amortization

Operating income loss 4360 4398
Interest income expense net 10

Other income expense 426
Income/Loss before equity in earnings loss of affiliate minority interest and incidental operations 4370 3979
Loss from discontinued operations 39571 118663

Net loss attributable to Circle Entertainment Inc 43941 114684

Less Gain from discharge of net assets due to bankruptcy plan 390752

Net Income/loss attributable to Circle Entertainment Inc 346811 114684

Basic and diluted loss per common share 5.31 2.16
Basic and diluted number of common shares outstanding 65284013 53118438

Reference is made to note discontinued operations to our consolidated fmancial statements included elsewhere in this report
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2010 2009

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents 372 79

Other current assets 1075

Assets related to discontinued operations 140960

Total assets 1447 141044

Current liabilities excluding current portion of debt 2496 1737

Liabilities related to discontinued operations 492431

Total liabilities 2496 494168

Members equity/Stockholders equity 1049 353124

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information this Annual Report on Form 10-K this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements

within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Forward-looking statements are those that predict or

describe fixture events or trends and that do not relate solely to historical matters You can generally identify forward-looking statements as

statements containing the words believe expect will anticipate intend estimate project assume or other similar

expressions although not all forward-looking statements contain these identifying words All statements in this Annual Report regarding our

future strategy fixture operations projected financial position estimated future revenue projected costs future prospects and results that might

be obtained by pursuing managements current plans and objectives are forward-looking statements You should not place undue reliance on

our forward-looking statements because the matters they describe are subject to known and unknown risks uncertainties and other

unpredictable factors many of which are beyond our control Important risks that might cause our actual results to differ materially from the

results contemplated by the forward-looking statements are contained in Item 1A Risk Factors and Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of this Annual Report and in our subsequent filings with the Securities and

Exchange Commission SECOur forward-looking statements are based on the information currently available to us and speak only as of

the date on which this Annual Report was filed with the SEC We expressly disclaim any obligation to issue any updates or revisions to our

forward-looking statements even if subsequent events cause our expectations to change regarding the matters discussed in those statements

Over time our actual results performance or achievements will likely differ from the anticipated results performance or achievements that are

expressed or implied by our forward-looking statements and such difference might be significant and materially adverse to our stockholders
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following management discussion and analysis offinancial condition and results of operations of the Company should be read

in conjunction with the historical audited consolidatedfinancial statements andfootnotes of the Companys historical audited consolidated

financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report Our historical results of operations reflected in our historical

audited consolidated financial statements are not indicative of our future results of operations as we have entered new line of business from

which we do not currently generate revenue

Executive Summary

On December 15 2010 our Las Vegas Property Subsidiary which had been in its Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding since April 21

2010 reorganized and emerged from its Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding under new ownership As result we no longer have an

ownership interest in the Las Vegas Subsidiary or the Las Vegas Property The Las Vegas Property was substantially our entire business For

description of the events surrounding our loss of the Las Vegas Property refer to Item BusinessThe Companys Former Line of

Business The Las Vegas Property Subsidiary has been de-consolidated as of January 2010 and is accounted for as discontinued

operation in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report

On September 10 2010 we through our wholly-owned subsidiary Circle Entertainment SV-T LLC entered into the License

Agreement with the ThrillRides Parties to use and commercially exploit the SkyView Technology which is expected to be the foundation of

the Companys new location-based entertainment line of business We have been pursuing the development and commercialization of the

SkyView Technology since then For further discussion of the new line of business based on the SkyView Technology refer to Item

BusinessThe Companys New Line Business We do not currently generate any revenues from this new line of business

As has been previously reported we are in severe financial distress and may not be able to continue as going concern We have no

current cash flow and cash on hand as of March 31 2011 is not sufficient to fund our past due obligations and short-term liquidity needs

including our ordinary course obligations as they come due We have received an opinion from our auditor expressing substantial doubt as to

our ability to continue as going concem Our ability to continue as going concem will depend on whether or not we can successfully

capitalize and finance implement and operate our new line of business

Managements discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the historical

financial statements included elsewhere herein However this Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and such historical financial statements and information should not be relied upon by you to evaluate our business and financial

condition going forward because they are not indicative of our future operating and financial results due to our entry into our new line of

business from which we do not currently generate revenue

Circle Entertainment Operating Results

Our results for the year ended December 31 2010 reflected revenue of $17.0 million and operating expenses of $4.4 million The

Company incurred corporate overhead expenses of $8.1 million for the year ended December 31 2010 Included in corporate overhead

expenses for the year ended December 31 2010 are $0.3 million in non-cash compensation and $0.3 million in shared services charges and

professional fees including legal and accounting costs The Company operated the Las Vegas Property through its Las Vegas Property

Subsidiary until June 23 2009 On June 23 2009 receiver was appointed as result of the first lien lenders exercising remedies under the

loan default The Companys financial information for the period the receiver was in control of the Las Vegas Property is prepared in reliance

by the information provided by the receiver The Company again operated the Las Vegas Property from April 21 2010 until December 15

2010 in accordance with the Bankruptcy Plan The Las Vegas Property Subsidiary has been de-consolidated as of January 2010 and is

accounted for as discontinued operation in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report

For the year ended December 31 2010 we had net interest expense of $39.6 million

For the
year

ended December 31 2010 the Company did not record provision for income taxes because the Company has incurred

taxable losses since its formation in 2007 As it has no history of generating taxable income the Company reduces any deferred tax assets by

full valuation allowance The Company anticipates incurring additional taxable losses while it completes the development and

commercialization of the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews The Company may in the future become subject to federal state and city

income taxation though it has not been since its inception

Results for the Year Ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Year Year

Ended Ended

December 31 December 31
amounts in thousands 2010 2009 Variance

Revenue 17042 18852 1810
Operatmg expenses excluding depreciation and amortization and impairment of land 19354 10292 9062
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Impairment of land 79087 79087

Depreciation and amortization 2067 2026 41

Income loss from operations 4379 72553 68174
Interest expense net and other 39562 42131 2569
Gain from discharge of net assets of Las Vegas Property Subsidiary due to bankruptcy plan 390752 390752

Net income/loss 346811 114684 461495
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Revenue

Revenue decreased $1.8 million or 9.6% in 2010 as compared to 2009 due primarily to the loss of some of the Las Vegas Propertys

tenants whose long term leases expired and the inability to replace such former tenants because of leasing restrictions contained in the

continuing tenants leases

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $9.1 million or 88.71% in 2010 as compared to 2009 primarily due to the reversal of licensing fee of

$10.0 million in 2009

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $0.04 million or 2.0% in 2010 as compared to 2009 due primarily to asset additions

placed into service during 2010

Impairment of Land

The Company recorded an impairment charge of $79.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 This charge reduces the

canying value of the Companys total investment in real estate to $137.7 million There is no tax benefit recorded associated with this charge

because the Company has generated losses since its formation in 2007 and has no history of generating taxable income

Interest Income/Expense

Interest expense net decreased $2.6 million or 6.1% in 2010 as compared to 2009 due to reduction in the amount of the Las Vegas

Property Subsidiarys mortgage debt on the Las Vegas Property and the ultimate discharge of such mortgage debt on December 15 2010 the

date on which the Las Vegas Subsidiarys Bankruptcy Plan became effective

Discontinued Operations

The net assets deficit were distributed to new ownership on the date of the acceptance of the Chapter 11 plan by the court in the

amount of $391174 million which was recorded as an extraordinary gain from the discharge of the net assets of the Las Vegas Property

Subsidiary

Net revenues included in discontinued operations related to the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary and the Las Vegas property were

$17.04 million and $18.9 million in fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 respectively

The results of discontinued operations include interest expense
that was based upon borrowings specifically attributable to the Las

Vegas Property Subsidiarys property operations For fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 the amount of interest
expense

reclassified to discontinued

operations was approximately $39.6 million and $41.6 million respectively

The Companys consolidated fmancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 852 Reorganizations ASC Topic 852 which requires that financial

statements for periods subsequent to the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings distinguish transactions and

events that are directly associated with the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys reorganization from the ongoing operations of the Companys
business Accordingly certain income expenses realized gains and losses and provisions for losses that were realized or incurred in the Las

Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter 11 bankruptcy are recorded as reorganization items on our consolidated statements of operations

At December 15 2010 the effective date of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys emergence from bankruptcy we did not meet the

requirements under ASC Topic 852 to adopt fresh start accounting Fresh start accounting requires the debtor to use current fair values in its

balance sheet for both assets and liabilities and to eliminate all prior earnings or deficits The two requirements to fresh start accounting are

the reorganization value of the debtors assets immediately before the date of confu-rnation of the plan of reorganization is less

than the total of all post- petition liabilities and allowed claims and

the holders of existing voting shares immediately before confirmation of the plan of reorganization receive less than 50% of the

voting shares upon emergence

These requirements are referred to as the fresh start applicability test For
purposes

of applying the fresh start applicability test

reorganization value is defined by ASC Topic 852 as the value attributed to the reconstituted entity as well as the expected net realizable

value of those assets that will be disposed before reconstitution occurs Therefore this value is viewed as the fair value of the entity before

considering liabilities and approximates the amount willing buyer would pay for the assets of the entity immediately after the restructuring
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As of December 15 2010 our fresh start calculation indicated that we did not meet the requirements to adopt freah start accounting

because the reorganization value of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys assets exceeded the total of post-petition liabilities and allowed claims

The Company recognized gain on reorganization of $390.8 million upon the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys emergence from bankruptcy

Summarizedfinancial information for the Companys discontinued operations forfiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009

The table below provides information regarding amounts included within discontinued operations dollars in millions

2010 2009

Loss from discontinued operations

Las Vegas Subsidiary 39.6 118.7

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Introduction The historical financial statements included in this annual report are not necessarily representative of our planned

business going forward or indicative of our future operating and financial results

On December 15 2010 our Las Vegas Property Subsidiary which had been in its Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding since April 21
2010 reorganized and emerged from its Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding under new ownership As result we no longer have an

ownership interest in the Las Vegas Subsidiary or the Las Vegas Property The Las Vegas Property was substantially our entire business For

description of the events surrounding our loss of the Las Vegas Property refer to Item BusinessThe Companys Former Line of

Business The Las Vegas Property Subsidiary has been de-consolidated as of January 2010 and is accounted for as discontinued

operation in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report

On September 10 2010 we through our wholly-owned subsidiary Circle Entertainment SV-I LLC entered into the License

Agreement with the ThrillRides Parties to use and commercially exploit the SkyView Technology which is expected to be the foundation of

the Companys new location-based entertainment line of business We have been pursuing the development and commercialization of the

SkyView Technology since then For further discussion of the new line of business based on the Sky View Technology refer to Item

BusinessThe Companys New Line Business We do not currently generate any revenues from this new line of business

We have no current cash flow and cash on hand is not sufficient to fund our short-term liquidity needs during 2011 including the

payment of executive salaries of approximately $1.4 million advance royalty payments to the ThrillRides Parties under the License Agreement

of approximately $0.6 million and payments under the Transaction Agreement for the Orlando Florida project of approximately $5000000
These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as going concern

Our independent registered public accounting firms report dated March 31 2011 to our consolidated financial statements for the
year

ended December 31 2010 includes an explanatory paragraph indicating substantial doubt as to our ability to continue as going concern due to

our need to secure additional capital in order to repay the past due amount under the mortgage loan and other obligations as they become due

During 2010 and to date in 2011 we have funded our short-term capital requirements through private placements of our equity

securities and borrowings under unsecured demand loans as described under Item Business 2010 and 2011 Private Placements of Equity

Securities and Borrowings under Unsecured Demand Loans

We intend to fund our new line of business and satisfy our liquidity requirements for the next twelve months through equity

andlor debt financings There is no assurance we will be able to do so on terms acceptable to us or at all
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Cash Flow for the Year Ended December 31 2010

Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities of $3.9 million for the year ended December 31 2010 consisted primarily of the net loss for the

period of $43 .9 million which includes share-based payments of $0.3 million offset by the loss attributed to discontinued operations of $39.6

million due to the disposition of the Las Vegas Subsidiary and the Las Vegas Property There were changes in working capital levels during the

period of $0.8 million for the year ended December 31 2010

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities of $0.2 million for the year ended December 31 2010 primarily reflects $0.22 million used for

capitalized development costs during the period and $0.01 million used for the purchase of property and equipment

Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities of $4.4 million for the year ended December 31 2010 reflects proceeds from private placements

of stock of $4.0 million and $0.4 million for stock warrant valuation

Cash Flow for the Year Ended December 31 2009

Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities of $15.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009 consisted primarily of the net loss for the

period of $114.7 million which includes the non-cash impairment of available-for-sale securities of $127 million depreciation and

amortization costs of $2.0 million deferred fmancing cost amortization of $0.1 million share-based payments of $0.6 million and the

impairment charge to land of $79.1 million for the decline in value of the Las Vegas Property There were changes in working capital levels

during the period of $27.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009

In vesting Activities

Cash provided by investing activities of $33.7 million for the year ended December 31 2009 primarily reflects $4.1 million from the

sale of marketable securities during the period and $29.6 million of restricted cash used

Financing Activities

Cash provided by Imancing activities of $20.7 million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 reflects proceeds from private

placements of stock of $0.9 million repayment of loan of$2l.0 million and repayment of another loan plus interest of $0.7 million principal

amount

Dividends

We currently intend to retain
any

future eamings to support operations and to fmance expansion and therefore do not anticipate paying

any cash dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable future Furthermore our Series Convertible Preferred Stock and Series

Convertible Preferred Stock are senior to our Cormnon Stock as to the right to receive cash dividends There are current dividend arrearages on

our Series Convertible Preferred Stock and Series Convertible Preferred Stock and unless and until such arrearages are satisfied in full we

may not pay cash dividends on our Common Stock In addition the terms of any future debt agreements we may enter into are likely to

prohibit or restrict the payment of cash dividends on our common stock

Commitments and Contingencies

There are various lawsuits and claims pending against us and which we have initiated against others We believe that any ultimate

liability resulting from these actions or claims will not have material adverse effect on our results of operations financial condition or

liquidity

Inflation

Inflation has affected the historical performances of the business primarily in terms of higher rents we receive from tenants upon lease

renewals and higher operating costs for real estate taxes salaries and other administrative expenses Although the exact impact of future

inflation is indeterminable we believe that our future costs to develop hotels and casinos will be impacted by inflation in construction costs
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Application of Critical Accouatiag Policies

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities at December 31 2008 consisted of common shares of Riviera Holdings Corporation then publicly traded

gaming company owned by the Company These securities are classified as available for sale in accordance with the provision of Financial

Accounting Standards concerning Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities and accordingly are carried at fair value

Based on the Companys evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline in value associated with these shares including weakening

conditions in the Las Vegas market where Riviera Holdings Corporation operated and its uncertain ability to hold the securities for

reasonable amount of time sufficient for an expected recovery of fair value the Company determined that the losses were other than temporary

as of December 31 2009 and recognized impairment loss of $0.1 million that is included in other expense in the accompanying statements of

operations for the year ended December 31 2009 As of December 31 2009 the Company had sold all of its common shares of Riviera

Holdings Corporation

Financial Instruments

We have policy and also are required by our lenders to use derivatives to partially offset the market exposure to fluctuations in

interest rates in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accountingfor Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

we recognize these derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value and adjust them on quarterly basis The accounting for changes in the fair

value of derivative instrument depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of hedging relationship and further on the

type of hedging relationship The Company does not enter into derivatives for speculative or trading purposes

The carrying value of our accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates fair value due to the short-term maturities of these

instruments The carrying value of our variable-rate note payable is considered to be at fair value since the interest rate on such instrument re

prices monthly based on current market conditions

Real Estate Investments

Land buildings and improvements are recorded at cost All specifically identifiable costs related to development activities are

capitalized into capitalized development costs on the consolidated balance sheet

We follow the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accountingfor the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets In accordance with the accounting standards we review our real estate portfolio for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable based upon expected undiscounted cash flows from the property We
determine impairment by comparing the propertys carrying value to an estimate of fair value In the event that the canying amount of

property is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value we will write down the asset to fair value As result of an impairment tests in 2009 the

Company recorded an impairment charge of $79.1 million in 2009 and 2.1 million in 2010 The Las Vegas Property was disposed of on

December 15 2010 upon effectiveness of the Bankruptcy Plan No proceeds were received

Incidental Operations

We follow the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accountingfor Costs and Initial Operations of Real Estate

Projects to account for certain operations In accordance with the accounting standards these operations are considered incidental and as

such for each entity when the incremental revenues exceed the incremental costs such excess is accounted for as reduction of capitalized

costs of the redevelopment project

The preparation of our financial statements in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principals GAAP
requires management to make estimates judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities disclosures of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting

period Management considers an accounting estimate to be critical if it requires assumptions to be made about matters that were highly

uncertain at the time the estimate was made and changes in the estimate or different estimates could have material effect on the Companys
results of operations On an ongoing basis we evaluate our estimates and assumptions including those related to income taxes and share-based

payments The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances The result of these evaluations forms the basis for making judgments about the canying values of assets and liabilities and

the reported amount of revenues and expenses that are not readily available from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

under different assumptions We have discussed the development selection and disclosure of our critical accounting policies with the Audit

Committee of the Companys Board of Directors
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The Company continuously monitors its estimates and assumptions to ensure any business or economic changes impacting these

estimates and assumptions are reflected in the Companys financial statements on timely basis including the sensitivity to change the

Companys critical accounting policies

The following accounting policies require significant management judgments and estimates

Income Taxes

We adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accounting for Uncertainly in Income Taxes and an

interpretation of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accounting for Income Taxes upon formation of the Company on June 15 2007

We have no uncertain tax positions under the adopted accounting standards

We account for income taxes in accordance accounting standards conceming income taxes which require that deferred tax assets and

liabilities be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of recorded assets and

liabilities The accounting standards also require that deferred tax assets be reduced by valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that

some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized In determining the future tax consequences of events that have been

recognized in our financial statements or tax returns judgment is required In determining the need for valuation allowance the historical and

projected financial performance of the operation that is recording net deferred tax asset is considered along with any other pertinent

information

Share-Based Payments

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards concerning Share-Based Payment the fair value of stock options is estimated as

of the grant date based on Black-Scholes option pricing model Judgment is required in determining certain of the inputs to the model

specifically the expected life of options and volatility As result of the Companys short operating history no reliable historical data is

available for expected lives and forfeitures The Company estimates the expected life of its stock option grants at the midpoint between the

vesting dates and the end of the contractual term This methodology is known as the simplified method and is used because the Company does

not have sufficient historical exercise data to provide reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term We estimated forfeitures based

on managements experience The expected volatility is based on an analysis of comparable public companies operating in our industry

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards for Fair Value Measurements The accounting standard

defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The provisions of

the accounting standard are effective for the Company beginning January 2008 for financial assets and liabilities and January 2009 for

non-financial assets and liabilities The Company has adopted the accounting standard for its marketable securities see note Formation of

the Company The Companys marketable securities qua1if as level one fmancial assets in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards

as they are traded on an active exchange market and are fair valued by obtaining quoted prices The Company does not have any level two

financial assets or liabilities that require significant other observable or unobservable inputs in order to calculate fair value The Companys
interest rate cap agreement see note qualifies as level three financial asset in accordance with accounting standards as of December 31
2009 however the balance as of December 31 2009 and changes in the period ended December 31 2009 did not have material effect on the

Companys financial position or operations The Company does not have any other level three financial assets or liabilities

In February 2007 the Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning The Fair Value Option for

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities providing companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value

The accounting standard also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that

choose different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities The adopted accounting standard is effective for fiscal years

beginning after November 15 2007 Effective January 2008 the Company elected not to report any additional assets and liabilities at fair

value

The Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Fair Value Measurements on January 2008 for

financial assets and liabilities and January 2009 for non-financial assets and liabilities The accounting standard defines fair value

establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The Companys marketable

securities qualified as level one financial assets in accordance with accounting standards as they were traded on an active exchange market and

were fair valued by obtaining quoted prices The Company does not have any level two fmancial assets or liabilities that require significant

other observable or unobservable inputs in order to calculate fair value The Company does not have any other level three financial assets or

liabilities The adoption of the accounting standards did not affect the Companys historical consolidated financial statements
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In March 2008 the FASB issued accounting standards concerning Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

an amendment of prior accounting standards which requires enhanced disclosures about an entitys derivative and hedging activities

Specifically entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about how and why an entity uses derivative instruments how

derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under prior accounting standards Accounting for Derivative Instruments

and Hedging Activities and its related interpretations and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entitys financial

position financial performance and cash flows The accounting standard is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim

periods beginning after November 15 2008 with early application encouraged The accounting standard encourages but does not require

comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption The Company adopted the accounting standard as of January 2009 as

required The adoption of the accounting standard did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In April 2008 the Financial Accounting Standards were issued concerning Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets

which amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of

recognized intangible asset under prior accounting standards concerning Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The intent of the staff

position is to improve the consistency between the useful life of recognized intangible asset under existing accounting standards and the

period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the assets under accounting standards and other GAAP The staff position is

effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15 2008 Early adoption of the standard

is prohibited The Company adopted the staff position as of January 2009 as required The adoption of the staff position did not have

material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

The Company adopted accounting standards concerning Business Combinations and accounting standards concerning noncontrolling

Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements on January 2009 These new standards will significantly change the accounting for and

reporting of business combination transactions and noncontrolling minority interests in consolidated financial statements The adoption of

accounting standards concerning business combinations will change the Companys accounting treatment for business combinations on

prospective basis The Company has completed its assessment of the impact of the accounting standard on its consolidated financial statements

and has concluded that the statement has not had significant impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements The Companys

adoption of accounting standards concerning noncontrolling interests has no significant impact for its existing noncontrolling interest because

the impact is limited to presentation and disclosure in the Companys financial statements The prior period has been restated to conform to the

2009 presentation as accounting standards require retrospective application of the presentation and disclosure requirements to all periods

presented prospective change is that future changes in noncontrolling interests are accounted for as equity transactions unless the change

results in loss of control

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards concerning Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The accounting standards amend previous standards concerning Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments to require disclosures

about the fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies as well as in annual financial statements

The accounting standards are effective for interim reportthg periods ending after June 15 2009 The Company adopted the staff position and

bulletin as of September 30 2009 as required The adoption did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards concerning Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary

Impairments which amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance for debt securities to make the guidance more operational and to

improve the presentation and disclosure of other-than-temporary impairments on debt and equity securities in the financial statements The

iccounting standards do not amend existing recognition and measurement guidance related to other-than-temporary impairments of equity

The accounting standards are effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 The Company adopted

.he accounting standards as of September 30 2009 as required The adoption of the accounting standards did not have material impact on the

ompanys consolidated financial statements

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards concerning Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity

or the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identiing Transactions That Are Not Orderly The accounting standard provides

idditional guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with accounting standards concerning Fair Value Measurements when the

iolume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased The accounting standard also includes guidance on

dentitying circumstances that indicate transaction is not orderly The accounting standard is effective for interim and annual reporting

eriods ending after June 15 2009 and shall be applied prospectively The Company adopted the accounting standard as of September 30

W09 as required The adoption of the accounting standard did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in

3usiness Combination That Arise from Contingencies which amends and clarifies prior accounting standards Business Combinations to

Lddress application issues on initial recognition and measurement subsequent measurement and accounting and disclosure of assets and

iabilities arising from contingencies in business combination The staff position is effective for all assets acquired or liabilities assumed

trising from contingencies in business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting

eriod beginning on or after December 15 2008 The Company expects that the adoption of the staff position will have an impact on its

onsolidated financial statements if the Company acquires companies in the future
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The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards concerning Subsequent Events which establishes general standards of

accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be

issued In addition under the new accounting standard an entity is required to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been

evaluated as well as whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued or the date the financial statements were available to be

issued The accounting standard does not apply to subsequent events or transactions that are within the scope of other applicable GAAP that

provide different guidance on the accounting treatment for subsequent events or transactions The new accounting standard is effective for

interim or annual financial periods ending after June 15 2009 and shall be applied prospectively The Company adopted the accounting

standard as of September 30 2009 as required The adoption of the accounting standard did not have material impact on the Companys

consolidated financial statements

In June 2009 the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards concerning The FASB Accounting Standards Codification TM
and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles replacement of prior FASB Statements which identifies the sources of

accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities

that are presented in conformity with GAAP in the United States the GAAP hierarchy The accounting standard establishes the FASB

Accounting Standards Codification TM as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by

nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP The accounting standard is effective for most

financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 The accounting standard primarily is codification

of existing generally accepted accounting principles the Company does not believe the standard will have an effect on the Companys financial

position or statement of operations

In June 2009 the FASB issued amendments to previous accounting interpretation conceming variable interest entities The objective

of the accounting standards is to improve financial reporting by enterprises involved with variable interest entities and to provide more relevant

and reliable information to users of financial statements The accounting standard is effective as of the beginning of each reporting entitys first

annual reporting period that begins after November 15 2009 for interim periods within that first annual reporting period and for interim and

annual reporting periods thereafter Earlier application is prohibited The Company is currently determining the impact of accounting standard

on its consolidated financial statements

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off balance sheet arrangements

Seasonality

We do not consider our new line of business to be seasonal

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk arising from changes in market rates and prices interest rates and the market price of our common

stock To mitigate these risks we may utilize derivative financial instruments among other strategies We do not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes

Interest Rate Risk

The $475 million mortgage loan pays interest at variable rates ranging from 3.75% to 1.25%% at December 31 2009 rate cap

greement to protect the one-month LIBOR rate at maximum of 3.5% was purchased in conjunction with the extension of the Mortgage Loan

effective July 2008 This rate cap agreement lapsed on January 2009 in conjunction with the maturity of the loan At December 31 2010

he loan was discharged as result of the Bankruptcy Plan

Foreign Exchange Risk

We presently have no operations outside the United States As result we do not believe that our financial results have been or will be

-naterially impacted by changes in foreign currency exchange rates
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Circle Entertainment Inc

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Circle Entertainment Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Circle Entertainment Inc the Company as of December 31
2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity deficit and cash flows for the year ended December 31
2010 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 These financial statements and schedule are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on

our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Companys intemal control over financial reporting Our audits included

consideration of intemal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we

express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial position of

Circle Entertainment Inc at December 31 2010 and the consolidated results of its operations and cash flows for the
year

ended December 31

2010 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when

considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set

forth therein

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming Circle Entertainment Inc will continue as going concem As

more filly discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company has limited available cash has working capital

deficiency and will need to secure new financing or additional capital in order to pay its obligations These conditions raise substantial doubt

about the Companys ability to continue as going concern Managements plan as to these matters is also described in Note These financial

statements do not include adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty

1sf L.L Bradford Company LLC

Las Vegas Nevada

March 31 2011

32

ttp//apps shareholder.comlsec/viewerContent aspxcompanyidFXLEdocid7 83231 0print 7/15/2011



Circle Entertainment Inc Annual Report Page 49 of 137

Circle Entertainment Inc

F/K/A FX Real estate and Entertainment Inc

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

amounts in thousands except share data

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 372 79

Restricted cash

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets 373 84

Investment in real estate

Land

Building and improvements

Furniture fixtures and equipment

Capitalized development costs 223

Less accumulated depreciation

Net investment in real estate 23

Other assets 843

Assets related to discontinued operations 140960

Acquired lease intangible assets net

Total assets 1447 141044

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIT

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2336 1628

Debt in default note

Due to related parties 160 109

Other current liabilities

Liabilities related to discontinued operations 492431

Total current liabilities 2496 494168

Related party debt

Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities 2496 494168

Contingently redeemable stockholders deficit

Stockholders deficit

Preferred stock $0.01 par value authorized 75000000 shares 1500 shares and shares of Series

Preferred 2050 shares and shares of Series Preferred and share of Non-Voting Designated Stock

issued and outstanding at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively

Common stock $0.01 par value authorized 300000000 shares 65403876 and 63841377 shares issued

and outstanding at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively 654 638

Additional paid-in-capital 90486 300480

Subscription receivable

Accumulated deficit 92189 654238
Non-controlling interest

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total stockholders deficit 1049 353124

rotal liabilities and stockholders deficit 1447 141044

Sec accompanying notes to consolidated and combined flnancial statements
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Circle Entertainment Inc

F/KIA FX Real estate and Entertainment Inc

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

amounts in thousands except share and per share data

Consolidated Consolidated

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

Revenue

Operating expenses

License fees 10000
Selling general and administrative expenses 4360 5602

Total operating expenses 4360 4398

Income loss from operations 4360 4398

Interest income

Interest expense 10
Other income expense 126
Gain from discharge of net assets of Las Vegas Property Subsidiary due to bankruptcy plan 390752

Income tax expense 300
Loss from discontinued operations 39571 118663

Net Income/loss 346811 114684

Basic and diluted income/loss per share 5.31 2.16

Basis and diluted average number of common shares outstanding 65284013 53118438

See accompanying notes to consolidated and combined financial statements
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Circle Entertainment Inc

F/K/A FX Real estate and Entertainment Inc

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
amounts in thousands

Consolidated Consolidated

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities

Net Income/loss 346811 114684
Net loss attributed to discontinued operations 39729 118663

Less gain from discharge of net assets of Las Vegas Property Subsidiary due to bankruptcy plan 390752
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used by operating activities

Reversal of licensing fee due to termination of agreement 10000
Share-based payments 314 582

Impairment of available-for-sale securities 126

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Other current and non-current assets 838 1075
Accounts payable and accrued

expenses 707 942

Accrued license fees

Due to related parties 51 193

Net cash used in operating activities 3978 5639

Cash flows provided by used in investing activities

Capitalized development costs 223
Acquisitions of real estate 47
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 4105

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 231 4058

Cash flows provided by used in financing activities

Proceeds from private placement of units 4009 870

Warrant valuation 493

Repayment of Margin loan plus interest 741
Contribution from minority interest 45

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 4502 174

Net increase/decrease in cash and equivalents 293 1407
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 79 1486

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 372 79

Supplemental cash flow disclosures

ash paid for interest 1264 9163
ash paid for debt restructuring 5.160 4.290

Non-cash financing and investing activities

See accompanying notes to consolidated and combined financial statements
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Circle Entertainment Inc

F/K/A FX Real estate and Entertainment Inc

STATEMENT OF STOCKhOLDERS EQUITY DEFICIT
amounts in thousands except share data

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Additional Stock

Paid-In- Subscription Accumulated

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Receivable Deficit Total

Balance at December31 2008 51992417 520 $299142 539554 $239892
Private placement of units 11848960 118 756 874

Stock subscription receivable

Stock option expense
582 582

Net loss 114684 114684

Balance at December 31 2009 63841377 638 300480 654238 $353124

Private placement of units 3550 1562499 16 3989 4005
Stock subscription receivable

Stock option expense 314 314

Eliminated amounts of discontinued operations 214790 215238 448

Warrant valuation 493 493

Net income 346811 346811

Balance at December31 2010 3550$ 65403876 654 90486 92189 1049

See accompanying notes to consolidated and combined financial statements
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Circle Entertainment Inc

F/K/A FX Real estate and Entertainment Inc

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Presentation

The financial information contained in these consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

reflects the results of operations of Circle Entertainment Inc Circle or the Company Delaware corporation and its consolidated

subsidiaries

On January 11 2011 the Company changed its corporate name to Circle Entertainment Inc from FX Real Estate and

Entertainment Inc

As used in these consolidated financial statements the words Las Vegas Property Subsidiary refer to our former subsidiary FX

Luxury Las Vegas LLC into which its predecessor entities and the Companys then consolidated subsidiaries as the owners of the Las

Vegas Property as defmed below were merged on November 2009 Prior to November 2009 these predecessor entities include FX

Luxury Las Vegas LLC FX Luxury Las Vegas II LLC and FX Luxury Las Vegas Parent LLC and their predecessor entities BP Parent

LLC Metroflag BP LLC and Metroflag Cable LLC

As used in these consolidated financial statements the words Las Vegas Property refer to 17.72 contiguous acres of land located at

the southeast corner of Las Vegas Boulevard and Harmon Avenue in Las Vegas Nevada

On December 15 2010 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary which had been in Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings since April 21

2010 reorganized and emerged from its Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings under new ownership As result the Company no longer has an

ownership interest in the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary or the Las Vegas Property Accordingly the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary has been

de-consolidated as of January 2010 and is accounted for as discontinued operation in these consolidated financial statements as described

in note below

The consolidated fmancial statements of Circle include the accounts of all subsidiaries and the Companys share of earnings or losses

ofjoint ventures and affiliated companies under the equity method of accounting All intercompany accounts and transactions have been

eliminated

Organization and Background

Business of the Company

The Companys New Line of Business

On September 10 2010 the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary Circle Entertainment SV-I LLC entered into an

Exclusive License Agreement the License Agreement with William Kitchen Kitchen and US ThriliRides LLC Kitchens wholly-

owned corporate affiliate ThrillRides and together with Kitchen the ThrillRides Parties pursuant to which the ThrillRides Parties have

granted worldwide exclusive license to us to use and commercially exploit all of Kitchens patents ThrillRides trademark and Kitchens

other intellectual property trade secrets and know-how pertaining to all aspects of the adaptation of an observation wheel legally known as

SkyViewTM including without limitation its engineering design development construction operation and maintenance collectively the

SkyView Technology Concurrently with their entry into the License Agreement the parties also entered into related Development

Agreement the Development Agreement pursuant to which the ThrillRides Parties are responsible for the supervision and management of

the construction development and installation of SkyViews on our behalf

The SkyView Technology is expected to be the foundation of the Company new location-based entertainment line of business The

Company intends to commercially exploit the Sky View Technology by owning and operating SkyViews through direct and indirect

for its own account and selling licensing operating and maintaining SkyViews through direct and indirect subsidiaries for the

iccount of third parties The Sky View Technology and the SkyViews remains under development No prototype has been built nor have any

Sky Views been sold or sublicensed Development and commercialization of the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews will require

capital and financing There is no assurance that the Company will either obtain the
necessary capital and financing to develop and

ommercialize the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews or even if such capital and financing is obtained it will be able to successfully

ievelop and commercialize the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews

brief description of the terms and conditions of the License Agreement and the Development Agreement is set forth in Note 18

low

Reference is made to Note 20 below for description of the Companys proposed co-development of project in Orlando Florida on

ittp//apps shareholder com/sec/viewerContent.aspxcompanyidFXLEdocith78 3231 0print 7/15/2011



Circle Entertainment Inc Annual Report Page 55 of 137

which the Companys SkyViewTM observation wheel will be placed beside retail restaurant and bar and entertainment facilities

37

ittp//apps shareholder.comlsec/viewerContent.aspxcompanyid FXLEdocid 783231 0print 7/15/2011



Circle Entertainment Inc Aimual Report Page 56 of 137

The Companys Former Line of Business

The Companys original business consisted of owning and operating the Las Vegas Property 17.72 contiguous acres of land located at

the southeast corner of Las Vegas Boulevard and Harmon Avenue in Las Vegas Nevada While owned by the Company the Las Vegas

Property was occupied by motel and several commercial and retail tenants with mix of short and long-term leases The Company had

commenced design and planning for redevelopment plan for the Las Vegas Property that included hotel casino entertainment retail

commercial and residential development project As result of the 2008 disruption in the capital markets and the economic downturn in the

United States in general and Las Vegas in particular the Company determined not to proceed with its originally proposed plan for the

redevelopment of the Las Vegas Property and intended to consider alternative plans with respect to the development of the

property However on or about January 2009 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary went into default under the $475 million mortgage loans

secured by the Las Vegas Property when it was unable to repay the loans at maturity on or about January 2009 The Company continued

commercial leasing activities on the property until June 23 2009 when as result of the default under the first mortgage loan the first lien

lenders had receiver appointed to take control of the property and as consequence the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary ceased managing or

operating such property

As described in Note below on April 21 2010 the Las Vegas Subsidiary become debtor in possession in chapter 11 bankruptcy

proceedings until December 15 2010 when it reorganized and emerged therefrom under new ownership pursuant to its bankruptcy court-

approved plan of reorganization As result the Company no longer has an ownership interest in the Las Vegas Subsidiary or the Las Vegas

Property The Las Vegas Property was substantially the Companys entire business The Las Vegas Property Subsidiary has been de

consolidated as of January 2010 and is accounted for as discontinued operation in these consolidated financial statements as described in

note below

Formation of the Company

Circle Entertainment Inc formerly known as FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc as result of corporate name change on

January 112011 was formed as result of the following transactions involving predecessor entities and other parties that occurred between

April 2007 and January 2008

FX Luxury Realty LLC FXLR was formed under the laws of the state of Delaware on April 13 2007 FXLR was inactive

from inception through May 10 2007

On May 11 2007 Flag Luxury Properties LLC Flag real estate development company in which Robert F.X Sillerman

and Paul Kanavos each owned an approximate 29% interest contributed to the Company its 50% ownership interest in

predecessor entities of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary for all of the membership interests in FXLR The sale of assets by

Flag was accounted for at historical cost as FXLR and Flag were entities under common control

On May 30 2007 FXLR entered into an agreement to acquire the remaining 50% ownership interest in the predecessor entities

of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary that it did not already own This purchase was completed on July 2007 As result of

this purchase FXLR owned 100% of the predecessor entities of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary and therefore the Las

Vegas Property The total consideration paid by FXLR for the remaining 50% interest in such predecessor entities was $180

million $172.5 million of which was paid in cash at closing and $7.5 million of which was an advance payment made in May
2007 funded by $7.5 million loan from Flag The cash payment at closing was funded from $92.5 million of cash on hand

and $105 million in additional borrowings which was reduced by $21.3 million deposited into restricted cash account to

cover debt service commitments and $3.7 million in debt issuance costs The $7.5 million loan from Flag was repaid on July

2007

On June 2007 CKX Inc CKX company in which Robert F.X Sillerman is the largest stockholder and of which he

then served as chief executive officer contributed $100 million in cash to FXLR in exchange for 50% of the common

membership interests in FXLR

Circle Entertainment Inc was formed under the laws of the state of Delaware on June 15 2007

On September 26 2007 CKX together with other holders of common membership interests in FXLR contributed all of their

common membership interests in FXLR to Circle Entertainment Inc in exchange for shares of common stock of Circle

Entertainment Inc As result of this exchange Circle Entertainment Inc held 100% of the outstanding common membership

interests of FXLR

On September 26 2007 CKX acquired an additional 0.742% of the outstanding capital stock of Circle Entertainment Inc for

price of $1.5 million

ittp //apps shareholder.com/sec/viewerContent aspxcompanyidFXLEdocid 783231 0print 7/15/201



Lircie tntertainment Inc Aimual Report Page 57 of 137

38

ttp//apps shareholder.comlsec/viewerContent.aspxcompanyidFXLEdocid78 3231 0print 7/15/2011



Circle Entertainment Inc Annual Report Page 58 of 137

On November 29 2007 Circle Entertainment Inc reclassified its common stock on basis of 194515.758 shares of common

stock for each share of common stock then outstanding and

On January 10 2008 Circle Entertainment Inc became publicly traded company as result of CKX distributing all of the

shares of Circle Entertainment Inc common stock held by it to its stockholders of record as of December 31 2007

On December 24 2009 FXL Inc new wholly-owned subsidiary of Circle Entertainment Inc succeeded to Circle Entertainment

Inc.s interest in FXLR

On December 15 2010 Circle Entertainment Inc surrendered its interest held by FXLR in the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary

pursuant to the Bankruptcy Plan whereupon it no longer had an ownership interest in the Las Vegas Property

2009 2010 and 2011 Private Placements of Equity Securities and Borrowings under Unsecured Demand Loans

During 2009 2010 and to date in 2011 the Company has ffinded its short-term capital requirements through the following private

placements of its equity securities and borrowings under unsecured demand loans

Common Stock

In September 2009 the Company entered into subscription agreements to raise $250000 from Robert F.X Sillerman Paul Kanavos

andior greater than 10% stockholders They purchased an aggregate of 4166668 shares at purchase price of $0.06 per
unit such purchase

price representing the average trading price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30 day period

immediately preceding the date of the subscription agreements Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys common stock

warrant to purchase one share of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.07 per
share and warrant to purchase one share

of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.08 per share The warrants are exercisable for period of seven years and are

identical in all respects except for their exercise prices The funding of each purchase took place before September 10 2009

On November 2009 the Company entered into subscription agreements with Laura Baudo Sillerman the spouse of Robert F.X

Sillerman the Companys Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Paul Kanavos the Companys President and director and his spouse

Dayssi Olarte de Kanavos and TTERB Living Trust an affiliate of Brett Torino greater than 10% stockholder of the Company pursuant to

which such parties agreed to purchase an aggregate of 4166667 units at purchase price of $0.09 per unit such purchase price representing

the average trading price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the date of the subscription agreements Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys common stock warrant to

purchase one share of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share and warrant to purchase one share of the

Companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.11 per share The warrants are exercisable for period of seven years and are identical in

all respects except for their exercise prices The aggregate proceeds to the Company from the sale of the units pursuant to the subscription

agreements were $375000 The funding of each purchase occurred on November 2009

On December 24 2009 the Company sold an aggregate of 3515625 shares of its common stock to Laura Baudo Sillerman the

spouse of Robert F.X Sillerman the Companys Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Paul Kanavos the Companys President and his

spouse Dayssi Olarte de Kanavos and TTERB Living Trust an affiliate of Brett Torino greater than 10% stockholder of the Company upon

their exercise of like number of Company warrants The Company received aggregate proceeds of $250000 from the exercise of the

warrants Mrs Sillerman Mr Kanavos and his
spouse

and TTERB Living Trust each purchased 1171875 shares of common stock upon the

exercise of like number of warrants for an aggregate exercise price of $83333.33 The exercise price of the warrants for 1041667 shares was

$0.07 per share while the exercise price of the warrants for the remaining 130208 shares was $0.08 per share

On January 28 2010 the Company sold an aggregate of 1562499 shares of its common stock to Laura Baudo Sillerman the spouse

of Robert F.X Sillerman the Companys Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Paul Kanavos the Companys President and his spouse

Dayssi Olarte de Kanavos and TTERB Living Trust an affiliate of Brett Torino greater than 10% stockholder of the Company upon their

xercise of like number of Company warrants The Company received aggregate proceeds of $125000 from the exercise of the warrants

which were exercisable at $0.08 per share Mrs Sillerman Mr Kanavos and his
spouse

and TTERB Living Trust each purchased 520833

of common stock upon the exercise of like number of warrants for an aggregate exercise price of $41666.66
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Series Convertible Preferred Stock

On February 11 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater

than 10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 99 units at purchase price of $1000

per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly created and issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock $0.01 par value

per share the Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to 10989 shares of the Companys common stock

such number of shares being equal to the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period

immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $0.273 per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate

proceeds of $99000 from the sale of the units

On March 52010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 180 units at purchase price of $1000 per

unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up

to 10309.278 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of$1000

per
share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pinic Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of$0.291 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of$ 180000 from the sale of the units

On March 11 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 600 units at purchase price of $1000 per

unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up

to 10277.49 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of$1000

per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of$0.2919 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years
The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $600000 from the sale of the units

On April 52010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 270 units at purchase price of $1000 per

unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up

to 9866.79 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of$1000

per
share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closthg date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $03041 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $270000 from the sale of the units

On May 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 150 units at purchase price of $1000 per

unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up
to 11448.19 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of$1000

per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $02621 per

share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of$ 150000 from the sale of the units

On June 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 99 units at purchase price of$ 1000 per

Unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up
10 12484.39 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of$1000

per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as

reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $0.2403 per

such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referenced in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period

years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $99000 from the sale of the units

On July 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater than

10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 102 units at purchase price of $1000 per

mit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up

14869.88 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value ofSl MOO

er snare of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as
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reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii200% at an exercise price of

$0.20 18 per share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in the preceding clause The warrants are

exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of$102000 from the sale of the units
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After giving effect to the sale of shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock on July 2010 the Company had issued and sold all

1500 authorized shares of Series Convertible Stock Because there are at least 1000 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

outstanding the Companys board of directors is required at the request of the holders of majority of the Series Convertible Preferred

Stock to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting vacancy to be filled by director designated by such holders Such holders

have not made such request thus far

Because the foregoing private placements involved certain of the Companys directors and certain greater than 10% stockholders and

their affiliates such private placements were approved by majority of the Companys disinterested directors to the extent applicable

Series Convertible Preferred Stock Certjflcate of Design ation

The Company created 1500 shares of Series Convertible Stock by filing Certificate of Designation the Series Certificate of

Designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware thereby amending its Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation as

amended The Company issued and sold an aggregate of 1500 shares of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock as part of the units The

designation powers preferences and rights of the shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock and the qualifications limitations and

restrictions thereof are contained in the Series Certificate of Designation and are summarized as follows

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock have an initial stated value of $1000 per share which is subject to increase

periodically to include accrued and unpaid dividends thereon as increased periodically the Stated Value

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to receive quarterly cumulative cash dividends at rate equal to

8% per annum of the Stated Value whenever funds are legally available and when and as declared by the Companys board of

directors

Each share of Series Convertible Stock are convertible into shares of Company common stock at conversion prices equal to

120% of the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the

30-day period immediately preceding the applicable date of issuance the Conversion Price The Conversion Price is subject to

adjustment to give effect to dividends stock splits recapitalizations and similarevents affecting the shares of Company common
stock

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible at the option of the holders into shares of Company common
stock at the Conversion Price if at any time the closing price of the shares of Company common stock is at the Conversion Price

for ten 10 consecutive trading days The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible each time for period of

60-days thereafter

Upon the earlier of consummation of the Companys sale or series of related sales of its capital stock or securities

convertible into its capital stock from which the Company generates net proceeds of at least $25 million or the fifth

anniversary of the date of their issuance the Series Convertible Preferred Stock shall automatically convert into the number of

shares of Company common stock equal to the then current Stated Value divided by the Conversion Price

If at any time the closing price of the shares of Company common stock is at least 10 times the applicable weighted average

closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the applicable date of issuance of particular share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock for fifteen 15 consecutive

trading days the Company may redeem such share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock at the then current Stated

Value Such shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are redeemable each time in whole or in part for period of 120-days

thereafter

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock is senior in liquidation preference to the shares of Company common stock

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock vote as class with the outstanding shares of Company common stock on an

as-converted basis except as otherwise required by the Series Certificate of Designation or applicable law

the consent of the holders of 51% of the outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock shall be
necessary for the

Company to increase the authorized number of shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock or alter amend or change any

of the terms designations powers privileges or rights or restrictions provided for the benefit of the Series Convertible

Preferred Stock ii create or issue any Company capital stock or any securities convertible into any Company capital stock

having rights preferences or privileges senior to or on parity with the Series Convertible Preferred Stock or iii amend the

Companys Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws in manner that is materially adverse to the Series

Convertible Preferred Stock
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From the date on which at least 1000 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding the Director

Commencement Date the Companys board of directors is required at the request of the holders of majority of the Series

Convertible Preferred Stock to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting vacancy to be filled by director

designated by the holders of majority of the then outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock the Class

Director From the Director Commencement Date until the date on which less than 50% of the shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock outstanding on the Director Commencement Date are outstanding the holders of the Series Convertible

Preferred Stock voting as separate class have the right to elect one Class Director to the Companys board of directors at

each meeting of stockholders or each consent of the Companys stockholders for the election of directors and to remove from

office such Class Director and to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation death or removal of such Class Director Each

share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to one vote and
any

election or removal of the Class Director shall be

subject to the affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

The foregoing description of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to

the full text of the Series Certificate of Designation and the form of Warrant copies of which are listed and incorporated by reference as

Exhibits 3.3 and 10.24 respectively to this report and are incorporated herein by reference

Series Convertible Preferred Stock

On August 17 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater

than 10% stockholders pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 150 units at purchase price of$1000

per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly created and issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock $0.01 par value

per share the Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to 12507.8 shares of the Companys common stock

such number of shares being equal to the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period

immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $02399 per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate

proceeds of$150000 from the sale of the units

On September 21 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors and other accredited investors

pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 500 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit

consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to 14306.15

shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000 per share of

Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on

the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an exercise price of $0 .2097 per share such

exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants are exercisable for period of years

The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $500000 from the sale of the units

On September 27 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive officers and greater

than 10% stockholders and other accredited investors pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 300 units

at purchase price of$l000 per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys newly issued Series Preferred Stock and

warrant to purchase up to 11389.52 shares of the Companys common stock such number of shares being equal to the product ofi the initial

stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per
share of the

Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the closing date and ii 200% at an

exercise price of $02634 per share such exercise price representing 150% of the closing price referred to in preceding clause The warrants

are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $300000 from the sale of the units

On October 18 through October 22 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreements with accredited investors pursuant to

which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 800 units at purchase price of$l000 per unit Each unit consists ofx
one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to specified number of

shares of the Companys common stock determined based on the product ofi the initial stated value of$l000 per share of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink

Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the applicable closing date and ii 200% at specified exercise price per share such

exercise price representing 150% of the applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys

common stock underlying each warrant ranges from 8090.61 shares to 8322.93 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant

is exercisable ranges from $0360 to $0.371 due to variances in the closing prices referenced in clause of the preceding sentence The

warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $800000 from the sale of the units

On December 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreement with an accredited investor pursuant to which the

aurchaser purchased from the Company 100 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys

iewly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to specified number of shares of the Companys common

determined based on the product ofi the initial stated value of$l000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the

Neighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

xeceding the applicable closing date and ii 200% at specified exercise price per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

ittp //apps.shareholder.comlsec/viewerContent.aspxcompanyid FXLEdocid783 231 0print 7/15/2011



Circle Entertainment Inc Annual Report Page 64 of 137

applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys common stock underlying each

warrant is 6559.53 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant is exercisable is $04574 The warrants are exercisable for

period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of$100000 from the sale of the units

On December 23 2010 the Company entered into subscription agreement with an accredited investor pursuant to which the

purchaser purchased from the Company 200 units at purchase price of$ 1000 per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys

newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to specified number of shares of the Companys common
stock determined based on the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the

weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the applicable closing date and ii200% at specified exercise price per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

applicable Closing Price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys common stock underlying each warrant is

6925.21 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant is exercisable is $04332 The warrants are exercisable for period of

years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $200000 from the sale of the units
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On February through February 14 2011 the Company entered into subscription agreements with accredited investors pursuant to

which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 330 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit consists ofx
one share of the Companys newly issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to specified number of

shares of the Companys common stock determined based on the product ofi the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink

Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the applicable closing date and ii200% at specified exercise price per share such

exercise price representing 150% of the applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys

common stock underlying each warrant ranges from 3175.61 shares to 5538.62 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant

is exercisable ranges from $0.3 149 to $0.54 17 due to variances in the closing prices referenced in clause of the preceding sentence The

warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $330000 from the sale of the units The

Company also issued 35000 shares of Series convertible Preferred Stock in satisfaction of $35000 sales commission owed to an individual

in connection with previous sales of the Companys securities in the offering

On February 15 through March 2011 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive

officers and greater than 10% stockholders and other accredited investors pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an

aggregate of 85 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys Series Convertible

Preferred Stock $0.01 par value per share and warrant to purchase up to specified number of shares of the Companys common stock

determined based on the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the

weighted average closing price per share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the applicable closing date and ii 200% at specified exercise price per share such exercise price representing 150% of the

applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys common stock underlying each warrant

ranges from 2676 shares to 2820 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant is exercisable ranges from $0.53 19 to $0.5606

due to variances in the closing prices referenced in clause of the preceding sentence The warrants are exercisable for period of

years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $85000 from the sales of the units

After giving effect to the sale of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock on March 2011 the Company had issued and sold all

2500 authorized shares of Series Convertible Stock Because there are at least 1667 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

outstanding the Companys board of directors is required at the request of the holders of majority of the Series Convertible Preferred

Stock to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting vacancy to be filled by director designated by such holders Such holders

have not made such request thus far

Because the foregoing private placements involved certain of the Companys directors officers greater than 10% stockholders and

affiliates such private placements were approved by majority of the Companys disinterested directors to the extent applicable
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Series Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate of Design ation

On August 17 2010 the Company created 2500 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock by filing Certificate of Designation

the Series Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware thereby amending its Amended and Restated

Certificate of Incorporation as amended The designation powers preferences and rights of the shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

and the qualifications limitations and restrictions thereof are contained in the Series Certificate of Designation and are summarized as

follows

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock have an initial stated value of $1000 per share which is subject to increase

periodically to include accrued and unpaid dividends thereon as increased periodically the Stated Value

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to receive quarterly cumulative cash dividends at rate equal to

8% per annum of the Stated Value whenever funds are legally available and when and as declared by the Companys board of

directors The dividend rights of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock are on parity with the dividend rights of the

Companys outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock

Each share of Series Convertible Stock is convertible into shares of Company common stock at conversion prices equal to

120% of the weighted average closing price per share of Company common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day

period immediately preceding the applicable date of issuance the Conversion Price The Conversion Price is subject to

adjustment to give effect to dividends stock splits recapitalizations and similarevents affecting the shares of Company common
stock

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible at the option of the holders into shares of Company common

stock at the Conversion Price if at any time the closing price of the shares of Company common stock is at the Conversion Price

for ten 10 consecutive trading days The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible each time for period of

60-days thereafter

Upon the earlier of consummation of the Companys sale or series of related sales of its capital stock or securities

convertible into its capital stock from which the Company generates net proceeds of at least $25 million or the fifth

anniversary of the date of their issuance the Series Convertible Preferred Stock shall automatically convert into the number of

shares of Company common stock equal to the then current Stated Value divided by the Conversion Price

If at any time the closing price of the shares of Company common stock is at least 10 times the applicable weighted average

closing price per share of Company common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding

the applicable date of issuance of particular share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock for fifteen 15 consecutive trading

days the Company may redeem the outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock at the then current Stated Value The shares

of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are redeemable each time in whole or in part for period of 120-days thereafter

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are senior in liquidation preference to the shares of Company common stock

and on parity with the Companys outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock

The shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock vote on an as-converted to common stock basis as class with the outstanding

shares of Company common stock and the Companys outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock on an as-converted to

common stock basis except as otherwise required by the Series Certificate of Designation or applicable law

The consent of the holders ofSl% of the outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock shall be necessary for the

Company to increase the authorized number of shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock or alter amend or change any

of the terms designations powers privileges or rights or restrictions provided for the benefit of the Series Convertible

Preferred Stock ii create or issue
any Company capital stock or any securities convertible into any Company capital stock

having rights preferences or privileges senior to or on parity with the Series Convertible Preferred Stock or iii amend the

Companys Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws in manner that is materially adverse to the Series

Convertible Preferred Stock

From the date on which at least 1667 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding the Series Director

Commencement Date the Companys board of directors is required to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting

vacancy to be filled by director designated by the holders of majority of the then outstanding shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock the Class Director From the Series Director Commencement Date until the date on which less than 50%

of the shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding on the Series Director Commencement Date are outstanding

the holders of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock voting as separate class have the right to elect one Class Director

to the Companys board of directors at each meeting of stockholders or each consent of the Companys stockholders for the

election of directors and to remove from office such Class Director and to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation death or
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removal of such Class Director Each share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to one vote and any election or

removal of the Class Director shall be subject to the affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the outstanding shares of

Series Convertible Preferred Stock

removal of the Class Director shall be subject to the affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the outstanding shares of

Series Convertible Preferred Stock
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The foregoing description of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to

the lull text of the Series Certificate of Designation and the form of Warrant copies of which are listed and incorporated by reference as

Exhibits 3.4 and 10.28 respectively to this report and are incorporated herein by reference

2011 Unsecured Demand Loans

On March through March 2011 certain of the Companys directors executive officers and greater than 10% stockholders made

unsecured demand loans to the Company totaling $900000 bearing interest at the rate of 6% per annum

The Company intends to use the loan proceeds to fund working capital requirements and for general corporate purposes Because

certain of the directors executive officers and greater than 10% stockholders of the Company made the loans majority of the Companys
disinterested directors approved the loans

The foregoing description of the loans is not complete and it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the form of

Promissory Note evidencing the loans copy of which is listed and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.33 to this report and is

incorporated herein by reference

Discontinued Operations

On December 15 2010 our Las Vegas Property Subsidiary which had been in Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings since April 21

2010 reorganized and emerged from its Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings under new ownership As result we no longer have an ownership

interest in the Las Vegas Subsidiary or the Las Vegas Property The Las Vegas Property was substantially our entire business For

description of the events surrounding our loss of the Las Vegas Property refer to note below

The results of the Las Vegas Subsidiary prior to its reorganization and emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings are

included within discontinued operations for all periods presented

thousands

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Receivables net

Deferred rent receivable

Investment in real estate at cost net

Other intangible assets

Prepaids and other assets
_____________

lotal

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Due to related party

Deferred revenue

Other liabilities and accrued expenses

Long-term borrowings ___________

Total
_____________

Net assets

The following is summary of the assets and liabilities associated with the Las Vegas Subsidiary as of December 31 2010 dollars in

399

1690

184

1132

135709

946

101

140161

76177

1072

70

16

454000

531335

391174
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The net assets deficit were distributed to new ownership on the date of the acceptance of the Chapter II plan by the court in the

amount of $391174 million which was recorded as an extraordinary gain from the discharge of the net assets of the Las Vegas Property

Subsidiary

Net revenues included in discontinued operations related to the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary and the Las Vegas property were

$17.04 million and $18.9 million in fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 respectively

The results of discontinued operations include interest expense that was based upon borrowings specifically attributable to the Las

Vegas Property Subsidiarys property operations For fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 the amount of interest expense reclassified to discontinued

operations was approximately $39.6 million and $41 .6 million respectively

The Companys consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 852 Reorganizations ASC Topic 852 which requires that financial

statements for periods subsequent to the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings distinguish transactions and

events that are directly associated with the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys reorganization from the ongoing operations of the Companys
business Accordingly certain income expenses realized gains and losses and provisions for losses that were realized or incurred in the Las

Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter 11 bankruptcy are recorded as reorganization items on our consolidated statements of operations

At December 15 2010 the effective date of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys emergence from bankruptcy the Company did not

meet the requirements under ASC Topic 852 to adopt fresh start accounting Fresh start accounting requires the debtor to use current fair values

in its balance sheet for both assets and liabilities and to eliminate all prior earnings or deficits The two requirements to fresh start accounting

are

the reorganization value of the debtors assets immediately before the date of confirmation of the plan of reorganization is less

than the total of all post- petition liabilities and allowed claims and

the holders of existing voting shares immediately before confirmation of the plan of reorganization receive less than 50% of the

voting shares upon emergence

These requirements are referred to as the fresh start applicability test For purposes
of applying the fresh start applicability test

reorganization value is defined by ASC Topic 852 as the value attributed to the reconstituted entity as well as the expected net realizable

value of those assets that will be disposed before reconstitution occurs Therefore this value is viewed as the fair value of the entity before

considering liabilities and approximates the amount willing buyer would pay for the assets of the entity immediately after the restructuring

As of December 15 2010 the Companys fresh start calculation indicated that it did not meet the requirements to adopt freah start

accounting because the reorganization value of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys assets exceeded the total of post-petition liabilities and

allowed claims The Company recognized gain on reorganization of $390.8 million upon the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys emergence

from bankruptcy

Summarized financial information for the Companys discontinued operations forfiscal 2010 andfiscal 2009

The table below provides information regarding amounts included within discontinued operations dollars in millions

2010 2009

Loss from discontinued operations

Las Vegas Subsidiary 39.6 118.7

Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared assuming that the Company will continue as going concern and

contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business

The Company intends to commercially exploit the Sky View Technology by owning and operating Sky Views

through direct and indirect subsidiaries for its own account and selling licensing operating and maintaining Sky Views

through direct and indirect subsidiaries for the account of third parties The Sky View Technology and the Sky Views

remains under development No prototype has been built nor have any Sky Views been sold or

sublicensed Development and commercialization of the Sky View Technology and the SkyViews will require

significant capital and financing There is no assurance that the Company will either obtain the necessary capital and

financing to develop and commercialize the SkyView Technology and the Sky Views or even if such capital and

financing is obtained it will be able to successfi.iiiy develop and commercialize the Sky View Technology and the
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Sky Views

We have received opinions from our auditors expressing substantial doubt as to our ability to continue as going concern Investors

are encouraged to read the information set forth herein in order to better understand the financial condition of and risks of investing in the

Company

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are classified as cash and cash equivalents The fair value

of cash and cash equivalents approximates the amounts shown on the financial statements Cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted

cash in accounts maintained with major financial institutions

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily consists of cash deposits and impound accounts for interest property taxes insurance rents and

development costs as required under the terms of the Companys loan agreements

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities at December 31 2008 consisted of common shares of Riviera Holdings Corporation then publicly traded

gaming company owned by the Company These securities are classified as available for sale in accordance with the provision of Financial

Accounting Standards concerning Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities and accordingly are carried at fair value

Based on the Companys evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline in value associated with these shares including weakening

conditions in the Las Vegas market where Riviera Holdings Corporation operated and its uncertain ability to hold the securities for

reasonable amount of time sufficient for an expected recovery of fair value the Company determined that the losses were other than temporary

as of December 31 2009 and recognized impairment loss of $0.1 million that is included in other expense in the accompanying statements of

operations for the year ended December 31 2009 As of December 31 2009 the Company had sold all of its common shares of Riviera

Holdings Corporation
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has policy and also was required by the Las Vegas Subsidiarys lenders to use derivatives to partially offset the

market exposure to fluctuations in interest rates In accordance with accounting standards the Company recognizes these derivatives on the

balance sheet at fair value and adjusts them on quarterly basis The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivative instrument

depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of hedging relationship and fUrther on the type of hedging relationship The

Company does not enter into derivatives for speculative or trading purposes

The carrying value of the Companys accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates fair value due to the short-term maturities

of these instruments The carrying value of the Companys variable-rate note payable is considered to be at fair value since the interest rate on

such instrument re-prices monthly based on current market conditions

Real Estate In vestments

Land buildings and improvements are recorded at cost All specifically identifiable costs related to development activities are

capitalized into capitalized development costs on the consolidated balance sheet

We follow the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards conceming Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived

Assets In accordance with the accounting standards we review our real estate portfolio for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable based upon expected undiscounted cash flows from the property We

determine impairment by comparing the propertys carrying value to an estimate of fair value In the event that the carrying amount of

property is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value we will write down the asset to fair value As result of an impairment tests in 2009 the

Company recorded an impairment charge of $79.1 million in 2009 and $2.1 million in 2010 The Las Vegas Property was disposed of as of

December 15 2010 pursuant to the Bankruptcy Plan No proceeds were received and the debt was discharged

Loss Per Share/Common Shares Outstanding

Earnings loss per share is computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards conceming Earnings Per Share Basic

carnings loss per share is calculated by dividing net income loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of

shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings loss per share includes the determinants of basic earnings loss per
share and in

addition gives effect to potentially dilutive common shares The diluted eamings loss per share calculations exclude the impact of all share-

based stock plan awards because the effect would be anti-dilutive For the years ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 10962794

and 10962794 shares respectively were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because their inclusion would have been

anti-dilutive

Deferred Financing Costs

Financing costs are capitalized and amortized to interest expense over the life of the loan as an adjustment to the yield

Share-Based Payments

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards concerning Share-Based Payment the fair value of stock options is estimated as

of the grant date based on Black-Scholes option pricing model Judgment is required in determining certain of the inputs to the model

specifically the expected life of options and volatility As result of the Companys short operating history no reliable historical data is

available for expected lives and forfeitures The Company estimates the expected life of its stock option grants at the midpoint between the

vesting dates and the end of the contractual term This methodology is known as the simplified method and is used because the Company does

not have sufficient historical exercise data to provide reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term We estimated forfeitures based

on managements experience The expected volatility is based on an analysis of comparable public companies operating in the Companys

industry

Income Taxes

In calculating the provision for income taxes on an interim basis the Company uses an estimate of the annual effective tax rate based

upon the facts and circumstances known at the time The Companys effective tax rate is based on expected income statutory rates and

permanent differences applicable to the Company in the various jurisdictions in which the Company operates
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As it has no history of generating taxable income the Company reduces any deferred tax assets by full valuation allowance For the

year ended December 31 2010 the Company did not record income tax expense
due to the losses incurred since inception For the year

ended

December 31 2009 the Company did record income tax expense due to an estimated gain on partnership transfer with negative basis from

FXLR LLC to FXL Inc resulting in an estimated alternative minimum taxable income of$1.5 million The alternative minimum tax was

estimated at $0.3 million at the applicable tax rate The income tax accrued for the year ended December 31 2009 was reversed during the year

ended December31 2010 after the completion of the Companys tax returns

The Company does not have any uncertain tax positions and does not expect any reasonably possible material changes to the estimated

amount of liability associated with its uncertain tax positions through December 31 2010

There are no income tax audits currently in process with any taxing jurisdictions

Risks and Uncertainties

The Sky View Technology is expected to be the foundation of the Company new location-based entertainment line of business The

Company intends to commercially exploit the Sky View Technology by owning and operating SkyViews through direct and indirect

subsidiaries for its own account and selling licensing operating and maintaining SkyViews through direct and indirect subsidiaries for the

account of third parties The SkyView Technology and the SlcyViews remains under development No prototype has been built nor have any

SkyViews been sold or sublicensed Development and commercialization of the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews will require

significant capital and financing There is no assurance that the Company will either obtain the necessary capital and financing to develop and

commercialize the SkyView Technology and the SkyViews or even if such capital and financing is obtained it will be able to successfully

develop and commercialize the SkyView Technology and the Sky Views

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes Actual

results could differ from those estimates

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards concerning Fair Value Measurements The accounting standard defines fair

value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The provisions of the

accounting standard are effective for the Company beginning January 2008 for financial assets and liabilities and January 12009 for non

financial assets and liabilities The Company has adopted the accounting standard for its marketable securities see note Formation of the

Company The Companys marketable securities qualify as level one financial assets in accordance with accounting standards as they are

traded on an active exchange market and are fair valued by obtaining quoted prices The Company does not have any level two financial assets

or liabilities that require significant other observable or unobservable inputs in order to calculate fair value The Companys interest rate cap

agreement see note qualifies as level three financial asset in accordance with accounting standards as of December 31 2009 however the

balance as of December 31 2008 and changes in the period ended December 31 2008 did not have material effect on the Companys
financial position or operations The Company does not have any other level three financial assets or liabilities

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards concerning The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities providing companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value The accounting standard also

establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different measurement

attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities The accounting standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007

Effective January 2008 the Company elected not to report any additional assets and liabilities at fair value

The Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Fair Value Measurements on January 2008 for

financial assets and liabilities and January 2009 for non-financial assets and liabilities The accounting standard defines fair value

establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The Companys marketable

securities qualified as level one financial assets in accordance with accounting standards as they were traded on an active exchange market and

were fair valued by obtaining quoted prices The Company does not have any level two financial assets or liabilities that require significant

ather observable or unobservable inputs in order to calculate fair value The Company does not have any other level three financial assets or

liabilities The adoption of the accounting standards did not affect the Companys historical consolidated financial statements

In March 2008 the Company adopted accounting standards concerning Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
\ctivities an amendment of prior accounting standards which requires enhanced disclosures about an entitys derivative and hedging

ictivities Specifically entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about how and why an entity uses derivative instruments

iow derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under prior accounting standards Accounting for Derivative

nstruments and Hedging Activities and its related interpretations and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an

ntitys financial position financial performance and cash flows The accounting standard is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal

ears and interim periods beginning after November 15 2008 with early application encouraged The accounting standard encourages but
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does not require comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption The Company adopted the accounting standard as of

January 2009 as required The adoption of the accounting standard did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements
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In April 2008 the Company adopted staff position concerning Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets which

amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of recognized

intangible asset under prior accounting standards concerning Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The intent of the staff position is to

improve the consistency between the useful life of recognized intangible asset under existing accounting standards and the period of expected

cash flows used to measure the fair value of the assets under accounting standards and other GAAP The staff position is effective for financial

statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15 2008 Early adoption of the standard is prohibited The

Company adopted the staff position as of January 2009 as required The adoption of the staff position did not have material impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements

The Company adopted accounting standards concerning Business Combinations and accounting standards concerning Noncontrolling

Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements on January 2009 These new standards will significantly change the accounting for and

reporting of business combination transactions and noncontrolling minority interests in consolidated financial statements The adoption of

accounting standards concerning business combinations will change the Companys accounting treatment for business combinations on

prospective basis The Company has completed its assessment of the impact of the accounting standard on its consolidated financial statements

and has concluded that the statement has not had significant impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements The Companys

adoption of accounting standards concerning noncontrolling interests has no significant impact for its existing noncontrolling interest because

the impact is limited to presentation and disclosure in the Companys financial statements The prior period has been restated to conform to the

2009 presentation as accounting standards require retrospective application of the presentation and disclosure requirements to all periods

presented prospective change is that future changes in noncontrolling interests are accounted for as equity transactions unless the change

results in loss of control

In April 2009 the Company adopted staff position concerning Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments The

staff position and bulletin amend previous standards concerning Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments to require disclosures

about the fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies as well as in annual financial statements

The staff position and bulletin are effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 The Company adopted the staff position

and bulletin as of September 30 2009 as required The adoption did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

siatements

In April 2009 the Company adopted staff positions concerning Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary

Impairments which amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance for debt securities to make the guidance more operational and to

improve the presentation and disclosure of other-than-temporary impairments on debt and equity securities in the financial statements The staff

positions do not amend existing recognition and measurement guidance related to other-than-temporary impairments of equity securities The

staff positions are effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 The Company adopted the staff positions as of

September 30 2009 as required The adoption of the staff positions did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

In April 2009 the Company adopted staff position concerning Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for

the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly The staff position provides additional

guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with accounting standards concerning Fair Value Measurements when the volume and level

of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased The staff position also includes guidance on identifying circumstances that

indicate transaction is not orderly The staff position is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 and shall

be applied prospectively The Company adopted the staff position as of September 30 2009 as required The adoption of the staff position did

not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In April 2009 the Company adopted staff position concerning Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in

Business Combination That Arise from Contingencies which amends and clarifies prior accounting standards Business Combinations to

address application issues on initial recognition and measurement subsequent measurement and accounting and disclosure of assets and

liabilities arising from contingencies in business combination The staff position is effective for all assets acquired or liabilities assumed

irising from contingencies in business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting

jeriod beginning on or after December 15 2008 The Company expects that the adoption of the staff position will have an impact on its

financial statements if the Company acquires companies in the future

In May 2009 the Company adopted accounting standards concerning Subsequent Events which establishes general standards of

iccounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be

ssued In addition under the new accounting standard an entity is required to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been

valuated as well as whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued or the date the financial statements were available to be

ssued The accounting standard does not apply to subsequent events or transactions that are within the scope of other applicable GAAP that

rovide different guidance on the accounting treatment for subsequent events or transactions The new accounting standard is effective for

nterim or annual financial periods ending after June 15 2009 and shall be applied prospectively The Company adopted the accounting

as of September 30 2009 as required The adoption of the accounting standard did not have material impact on the Companys
onsolidated financial statements
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In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued accounting standards concerning The FASB Accounting

Standards Codification TM and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles replacement of prior FASB Statements which

identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements of

nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with GAAP in the United States the GAAP hierarchy The accounting standard

establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification TM as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to

be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP The accounting standard is

effective for most financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 The accounting standard

primarily is codification of existing generally accepted accounting principles the Company does not believe the standard will have an effect

on the Companys financial position or statement of operations

In June 2009 the FASB issued amendments to previous accounting interpretation concerning variable interest entities The objective

of the accounting standards is to improve financial reporting by enterprises involved with variable interest entities and to provide more relevant

and reliable information to users of financial statements The accounting standard is effective as of the beginning of each reporting entitys first

annual reporting period that begins after November 15 2009 for interim periods within that first annual reporting period and for interim and

annual reporting periods thereafter Earlier application is prohibited The Company is currently determining the impact of accounting standard

on its consolidated financial statements

Reclassjflcations

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation

Debt and Notes Payable and the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding

Mortgage Loan Default The Companys consolidated debt as of December 31 2009 included mortgage loan on the Las

Vegas Property in the principal amount of $475 million the Mortgage Loan The Mortgage Loan was not guaranteed by Circle

Entertainment nor has Circle Entertainment pledged any assets to secure the Mortgage Loan The Mortgage Loan was secured only by first

lien and second lien security interests in substantially all of the assets of the Las Vegas Subsidiary including the Las Vegas Property As

of December 31 2010 the Mortgage Loan was discharged pursuant to the Bankruptcy Plan described herein

On January 2009 following the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys failure to repay the Mortgage Loan at maturity the first lien

lenders under the Mortgage Loan delivered their demand for repayment of all of the obligations owed to them under the loan including the first

lien principal amount of $280 million On January 30 2009 the first lien lenders seized the cash collateral reserve accounts established under

the Loan from which the Property Subsidiary had been thawing working capital flinds to meet ordinary expenses including operating the Las

Vegas Property and applied $21 million of that amount to the outstanding principal under the first lien loan The Company operated the Las

Vegas Property through its Property Subsidiary until June 23 2009 when receiver was appointed as result of the first lien lenders

exercising remedies under the loan default After the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys default on the Mortgage Loan on January 2009 and

until June 23 2009 the property revenues were paid into collateral account maintained under the supervision of the first lien lender and the

Company applied for disbursements to pay for expenses incurred in connection with property operations After that date the receiver was in

charge of operating leasing and managing the property and the Company was no longer involved in such activities For the period in which

the receiver was in charge the Companys results are reported in reliance on the financial records maintained by the receiver

As result of such default and prior to the receivers appointment on April 2009 the first lien lenders sent Notice of Breach and

Election to Sell initiating the trustee sale procedure against the Las Vegas Property Under Nevada law the Las Vegas Property was then

subject to being sold in trustee sale to satisfy the first lien lenders obligations secured by the property provided the lenders had satisfied the

Nevada procedures and further provided that the sale had not been stayed through bankruptcy or other filings or by consensual delay by such

lenders Although the second lien portion of the Mortgage Loan $195 millionwas also in default pursuant to the inter-creditor agreement

among the first and second lien lenders the second lien lenders were restricted from exercising their remedies so long as the first lien lenders

continued exercising their remedies

On July 132009 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary received Notice of Trustees Sale dated July 2009 pursuant to which the

trustee was to cause the Las Vegas Property to be sold to the highest bidder for cash so as to satisfy the outstanding obligations to the first lien

lenders secured by the Property Such proposed sale was initially scheduled for September 2009 and was adjourned multiple times and

ultimately abandoned as result of the Las Vegas Subsidiarys chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings
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Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter II Bankruptcy Proceeding On April 21 2010 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary filed

voluntary petition for relief under chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of

Nevada Case No 10-17015 the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding pursuant to which the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary presented its

pre-packaged plan in accordance with lock-up and plan support agreement dated as October 23 2009 as amended the Lock Up
Agreement it had previously entered into with the first lien lenders under the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys $475 million mortgage loans

secured by the Las Vegas Property and two corporate affiliates LIRA Property Owner LLC and its parent LIRA LLC collectively the

Newco Entities of Robert F.X Sillerman Paul Kanavos and Brett Torino who are directors executive officers and/or greater than 10%

stockholders of the Company The Lock Up Agreement had contemplated the orderly liquidation of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary in the

Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding by disposing of the Las Vegas Property for the benefit of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys and its

predecessor entities creditors either pursuant to an auction sale for at least $256 million or if the auction sale had not been completed

pursuant to prearranged sale to the Newco Entities under the terms of the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceedings plan of liquidation

On December 23 2009 the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary entered into second lock up and plan support agreement as amended the

Second Lock Up Agreement with the first lien lenders certain of the second lien lenders the Participating Second Lien Lenders and the

first and second lien agents under the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys $475 million mortgage loans and LIRA LLC the Equity Parent

corporate affiliate of Robert F.X Sillerman Paul Kanavos and Brett Torino the Equity Sponsors

The Second Lock Up Agreement primarily differed from the Lock Up Agreement in that the first lien lenders and the Participating

Second Lien Lenders were both parties to it and the Las Vegas Property was to be sold in prearranged sale not conditioned upon an

unsuccessful public auction to an entity co-owned by the Equity Sponsors and the Participating Second Lien Lenders and potentially other

participating unsecured creditors pursuant to prepackaged chapter 11 bankruptcy case to be filed by the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary The

purpose of the Second Lock Up Agreement like the Lock Up Agreement was to pursue an orderly liquidation of the Las Vegas Property

Subsidiary for the benefit of its and its predecessor entities creditors The Second Lock Up Agreement then terminated in accordance with

its terms on February 12 2010 and the Lock Up Agreement was reinstated

On June 2010 the Lock Up Agreement terminated in accordance with its terms and was of no further force or effect except for

certain provisions thereof that survived in accordance with their terms and otherwise for purposes of determining the amount of any applicable

adequate protection payments authori7ed by the Bankruptcy Court in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding Nevertheless the Las Vegas

Property Subsidiary remained debtor in possession in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding

As result of termination of the Lock Up Agreement the Bankruptcy Court terminated the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys

exclusivity to present plan of organization or liquidation in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding and allowed interested parties to present

competing plans to the Bankruptcy Court Thereafter the first lien lenders and the second lien lenders filed competing plans of reorganization

with the Bankruptcy Court prior to October 12 2010

On October 12 2010 majority-in-interest of the second lien lenders with the support of the first lien lenders filed third amended

plan of reorganization the Bankruptcy Plan with the Bankruptcy Court

On November 2010 the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Bankruptcy Plan As indicated in the following summary of the material

features of the Bankruptcy Plan when the Bankruptcy Plan became effective on December 15 2010 we no longer had any ownership interest

in the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary or the Las Vegas Property

Under the Bankruptcy Plan the reorganized Las Vegas Property Subsidiary continues to own the Las Vegas Property subject to new
first mortgage loan from the existing first lien lenders and it is wholly-owned by newly organized limited liability company the Debtors

Parent The second lien lenders own the equity of the Debtors Parent in the proportion they subscribed for their share of the Debtors

Parents new equity and made capital contribution in the pro rata amount of the Total Capital Contribution as defined below accordingly

The Las Vegas Property is encumbered by new first mortgage loan secured by two notes $188 million Class note with interest at the rate

of 3.95% per annum and $71 million plus an amount not greater than $7.5 million relating to unpaid interest as of the effective date Class

note with interest at the rate of 2% per annum All of the interest payments on the Class note amortize the principal on dollar-for-dollar

basis Both notes mature in six years subject to three one-year extension rights under certain circumstances The first lien lenders also have

contingent profits interest in the Debtors Parent equal to 4% of profits until the second lien lenders have received the amount of their

bankruptcy claim approximately $233100000 and 10% thereafter

The second lien lenders were entitled under the Bankruptcy Plan to subscribe for 94% of the new equity in the Debtors Parent by

ontributing their pro rata share of the Total Capital Contribution and agreeing to guarantee three months of interest payments They also had

contingent rights to subscribe for additional equity in the Debtors Parent based on increased future valuation total capital contribution of

pproximateIy $1.75 million was to be used for an interest reserve and an amount up to $10 million to reimburse the second lien lenders and

heir counsel for costs and expenses incurred in connection with the bankruptcy proceeding such amount of up to approximately $1 1750000
is herein the Total Capital Contribution Each subscribing second lien lender was also subject to its share of potential $5 million capital

all if needed in connection with
property operations
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The Companys subsidiary FX Luxury LLC FX Luxury as the original equity owner of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary was

entitled under the Bankruptcy Plan to subscribe for up to 6% of the equity in the Debtors Parent by contributing ratable share of the Total

Capital Contribution While FX Luxury approved the Bankruptcy Plan it did not subscribe for any equity in the Debtors Parent As result of

approving the Bankruptcy Plan the Company is potentially entitled to the Class Right the Contingent Interest which would enable it to

purchase within six years up to 5% of the equity of the Debtors Parent at the date of exercise at purchase price equal to $450 million minus

the first lien indebtedness divided by the number of equity units outstanding on the date of exercise Therefore upon the effective date of the

Bankruptcy Plan the Company no longer had
any ownership interest in the Debtor other than the potential Contingent Interest or the Las

Vegas Property

All of the trade creditors and all administrative claims were satisfied in the Bankruptcy As part of the Bankruptcy Plan the Las

Vegas Property Subsidiary and parties to the Bankruptcy received releases except for fraud and gross misconduct when the Bankruptcy Plan

became effective

The foregoing description of the Lock Up Agreement the Second Lock Up Agreement and the Bankruptcy Plan is not complete and is

qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of them copies of which are listed and incorporated by reference as Exhibits 10.17 10.18

10.19 10.20 10.21 and 10.22 to this report and are incorporated herein by reference

Related Party Debt

In March 2008 the Company made payment in the amount of $51000 on behalf of 19X Inc company that is owned and

controlled in part by Robert F.X Sillerman The Company made the payment for administrative convenience concurrent with its own

payment for travel expenses incurred in connection with trip taken for shared business opportunity As of December 31 2010 the full

amount of the obligation was discharged Mr Sillerman receives no compensation from the Company for acting as its Chief Executive Officer

and for serving as director The Compensation Committee approved forgiving the obligation as compensation to him

Impairment of Land

The Company follows the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accountingfor the impairment or Disposal of

Long-Lived Assets In accordance with the accounting standard the Company reviews their real estate portfolio for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable based upon expected undiscounted cash flows

from the property

In accordance with accounting standards concerning Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets long-lived

asset asset group shall be tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be

recoverable As result of the global recession and fmancial crisis and based upon valuation report obtained for the Las Vegas Property from

an independent appraisal firm combined with certain assumptions made by management the Company recorded an impairment charge to land

of $325.1 million as of December 31 2008 This charge reduced the carrying value of the Las Vegas Property to its then estimated fair value of

$218.8 million The global financial crisis had particularly negative impact on the Las Vegas real estate market including significant

reduction in the number of visitors and per visitor spending the abandonment of and/or loan defaults related to several major new hotel and

casino development projects as well as publicly expressed concerns regarding the financial viability of several of the largest hotel and casino

operators in the Las Vegas market These factors combined with the lack of availability of financing for development has resulted in near

cessation of land sales on the Las Vegas strip The economy continued to deteriorate in the Las Vegas market due to high unemployment and

foreclosure rates and decrease in visitation volume and less spend per visitor and as result management believes there are new indicators

that the recoverable amount of the Las Vegas Property may not exceed its carrying value warranting further impairment of the Las Vegas

Property The Company obtained preliminary update of the appraisal as of June 30 2009 by the same firm and as result had recorded an

additional impairment charge of $77.0 million to the value of the land The Company obtained an update of the appraisal by the same firm as of

February 16 2010 and as result has recorded an additional impairment charge of $2.1 million to the value of the land The Las Vegas

Property was disposed of on December 15 2010 upon effectiveness of the Bankruptcy Plan No proceeds were received

Terminated License Agreements with Related Parties

On June 2007 the Company entered into license agreements with Elvis Presley Enterprises Inc an 85%-owned subsidiary of

CKX Inc CKXE and Muhammad Au Enterprises LLC an 80%-owned subsidiary of CKX which allowed the Company to use

the intellectual property and certain other assets associated with Elvis Presley and Muhammad Ali in the development of its real estate and

other entertainment attraction-based projects The Companys license agreement with Elvis Presley Enterprises granted the Company among
other rights the right to develop one or more hotels as part of the master plan of Elvis Presley Enterprises Inc to redevelop the Graceland

property and surrounding areas in Memphis Tennessee
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On March 2009 following the Companys failure to make the $10 million annual guaranteed minimum royalty payments for 2008
the Company entered into Termination Settlement and Release agreement with EPE and MAE pursuant to which the parties agreed to

terminate the Elvis Presley and Muhammad Ali license agreements and to release each other from all claims related to or arising from such

agreements In consideration for releasing the Company from any claims related to the license agreements EPE and MAE will receive 10% of

any future net proceeds or fees received by the Company from the sale andlor development of the Las Vegas Property up to maximum of

$10 million The Company has the right to buy-out this participation right at any time prior to April 2014 for payment equal to

$3.3 million plus interest at 7% per annum calculated from year until repaid plus ii 10% of any net proceeds received from the sale of

some or all of the Las Vegas Property during such buy-out period and for six months thereafter provided that the amount paid under clauses

and ii shall not exceed $10 million

10 Acquired Lease Intangibles

The Companys acquired intangible assets are related to above-market leases and in-place leases under which the Company is the

lessor The intangible assets related to above-market leases and in-place leases have remaining weighted average amortization period of

approximately 23.0 years and 23.4 years respectively The amortization of the above-market leases and in-place leases which represents

reduction of rent revenues for the year ended December 31 2010 and 2009 was $0.1 million and $0.1 million respectively Acquired lease

intangibles liabilities included in the accompanying balance sheets in other current liabilities are related to below-market leases under which

the Company is the lessor The remaining weighted-average amortization period is approximately 4.6 years The Acquired Lease Intangibles

were included in the net assets of the Las Vegas Property Subsidiary which were discharged due to the bankruptcy plan

Acquired lease intangibles consist of the following in thousands

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

Assets

Above-market leases

In-place leases

Accumulated amortization

Net

Liabilities

Below-market leases

Accumulated accretion

Net

Ownership of the Las Vegas Property was transferred as of December 31 2010 pursuant to the Bankruptcy Plan

The estimated aggregate amortization and accretion amounts from acquired lease intangibles for each of the next five years are as

follows

Amortization Minimum

Expense Rent

Years Ending December 31 in thousands

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

11 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company had entered into interest rate cap agreements the Cap Agreements with Credit Suisse with notional amounts totaling

475 million relating to the Mortgage Loan In connection with the extension of the Mortgage Loan the Company entered into an interest rate

ap agreement that expired on January 2009
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12 Commitments

Total rent expense
for the Company under operating leases for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 was less than $0.1

million and $0.6 million respectively The Companys future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases are as

follows

in thousands

Years Ending December 31

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafter

Total 15

The Company has entered into employment contracts with certain key executives and employees which include provisions for

severance payments in the event of specified terminations of employment Expected payments under employment contracts are as follows

in thousands

Year Ending December 31

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafter

Total

13 Stockholders Equity

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 there were 65403876 and 63841377 shares of common stock issued and outstanding

respectively Except as otherwise provided by Delaware law the holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per
share on all matters

to be voted upon by the stockholders

The Companys Board of Directors has the authority without action by the stockholders to designate and issue preferred stock in one

or more series and to designate the rights preferences and privileges of each series which may be greater than the rights of the common

stock As of December 2010 there were 1500 shares of Series Preferred Stock issued and outstanding and 2050 shares of Series

Preferred Stock issued and outstanding As of December 31 2009 there were shares of Series Preferred Stock issued and outstanding and

shares of Series Preferred Stock issued and outstanding As of December 31 2010 and 2009 there was one share of Non-Voting

Designated preferred stock issued and outstanding

14 Share-Based Payments

Equity Incentive Plan

Our 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan the 2007 Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors in December 2007 and

approved by the Companys stockholders at the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders which was held in September 2008 Under the 2007

Plan the maximum number of shares of common stock that may be subject to stock options stock awards deferred shares or performance

shares is 3000000 No one participant may receive awards for more than 1000000 shares of common stock under the plan
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Executive Equity Incentive Plan

In December 2007 the Companys 2007 Executive Equity Incentive Plan the 2007 Executive Plan was adopted by the Board of

Directors and approved by the Companys stockholders at the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders which was held in September 2008 Under

the 2007 Executive Plan the maximum number of shares of common stock that may be subject to stock options stock awards deferred shares

or performance shares is 12500000

Stock Option Grants

The weighted average fair value of the options granted on January 102008 and May 19 2008 to executive-designees and other non-

employees was $0.00 per option at December 31 2010 Fair value at December 31 2010 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing

model based on the weighted average assumptions of

Risk-free rate 2.24%

Volatility 67%

Weighted average expected life remaining at December 31 2009 5.6 years

Dividend yield 0.0%

The weighted average fair value of the options issued on May 19 2008 to employees was $1.64 per option Fair value at the grant

date was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the weighted average assumptions of

Risk-free rate 2.24

Volatility 67

Weighted average expected life 3.0 years

Dividend yield 0.0

The Company estimated the original weighted average expected life of its stock option grants at the midpoint between the vesting

dates and the end of the contractual term This methodology is known as the simplified method and was used because the Company does not

have sufficient historical exercise data to provide reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term The expected volatility is based on

an analysis of comparable public companies operating in the Companys industry

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company has total of 5563350 and 12793350 options outstanding respectively to

employees directors executive-designees and other non-employees Compensation expense for stock option grants included in the

accompanying statements of operations in selling general and administrative expenses and loss from incidental operations is being recognized

ratably over the vesting periods of the grants and was $0.4 million and $0.6 million for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively

15 Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of the following

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

in thousands in thousands

Current provision benefit

Federal 300

State

Deferred provision benefit

Federal

State

Fotal income tax expense 300
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Income tax expense as reported is different than income tax expense computed by applying the statutory federal rate of 35% for the

tax year ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 The specific differences are as follows

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

in thousands in thousands

Expense benefit at statutory federal rate 39818
Non-consolidated subsidiaries

Income/loss taxed directly to FXLR LLCs historical partners

Valuation allowance 39818

Income tax expense

Significant components of the Companys net deferred tax assets liabilities are as follows

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

in thousands in thousands

Deferred income tax assets

Land 112472

Fixed assets 27613

Deferred revenue 313

Bad debt 57

Net operating loss carryforwards 52194
Marketable securities

Other 195

Total deferred income tax assets gross 192844

Less valuation allowance 192494

Total deferred income tax assets net 350

Deferred tax liabilities

Acquired lease intangibles 350

Total deferred income tax liabilities 350

Total deferred income tax assets liabilities net

The deferred tax assets at December 31 2010 and 2009 were reduced by valuation allowance of $0 and $192.5 million respectively

This valuation allowance was established since the Company has no history of earnings and anticipates incurring additional taxable losses

while it completes the development and commercialization of the SkyView Technology and the Sky Views

The Company has $188.8 million of net operating losses which start expiring in 2027

The Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards concerning Accountingfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes an

interpretation of previous Financial Accounting Standards upon the formation of the Company on June 15 2007 As result of the

implementation of the accounting standards the Company reviewed its uncertain tax positions in accordance with the recognition of the

standards As result of this review the Company concluded that it has no uncertain tax positions Any potential uncertain tax positions

relating to the partnerships that it acquired would accrue to the partnerships historic partners and not to the Company The Company does not

expect any reasonably possible material changes to the estimated amount of liability associated with its uncertain tax positions through

December 312010

The Company will recognize interest and penalties related to any uncertain tax positions through income tax expense

The Company may in the future become subject to federal state and city income taxation though it has not been since its inception

Ihere are no income tax audits currently in process with any taxing jurisdictions
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16 Litigation

Huff Litigation

On April 29 2010 the Company was notified that it has been named as nominal defendant in derivative lawsuit filed on April 28

2010 by stocltholders The Huff Alternative Fund L.P and The Huff Alternative Parallel Fund L.P collectively Huff on behalf of the

Company in the New York Supreme Court in Manhattan New York Index No 650338-10 against the Companys directors Harvey

Silverman Michael Meyer John Miller Robert Sudack Paul Kanavos and Robert F.X Sillerman and Brett Torino stockholder and

former officer of the Company

The filing of the lawsuit was precipitated by the Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys initiation of its Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding

pursuant to the Lock Up Agreement

Prior to filing its lawsuit on April 14 2010 Huff made formal demand upon the Companys Board of Directors to among other

things terminate and cease all efforts in furtherance of the Lock Up Agreement and commence an action against the defendants for alleged

breaches of fiduciary duties of care and loyalty as set forth in its lawsuit and summarized below

In its lawsuit Huff alleges that such director defendants and stockholder defendant as former officer of the Company breached their

fiduciary duties of care and loyalty to the Company its creditors and its non defendant stockholders by among other things committing or

permitting acts of misconduct such as self-dealing and disloyalty without justifiable excuse ii causing the Company to be contractually

bound to transfer the Las Vegas Property to the Newco Entities and iii usurping various corporate opportunities with respect to the Las Vegas

Property for which Huff is seeking on behalf of the Company damages of not less than $100 million plus punitive damages In addition Huff

alleges substantially the same claims against defendants Messrs Kanavos and Torino for which Huff is seeking on behalf of the Company

damages of not less than $50 million plus punitive damages

The Company was formally served with the lawsuit on May 2010 and filed motion to dismiss the lawsuit on July 16 2010 Huff

filed an answer to the motion to dismiss on September 2010 and reply papers were filed on October 2010 The Court head oral arguments

with respect to the motions on November 16 2010 and the Company is waiting decision by the Court

The Company believes the lawsuit is without merit and intends to vigorously defend against it

Las Vegas Property Subsidiarys Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding

Reference is made to Note above for description of our former Las Vegas Subsidiarys Chapter ii Bankruptcy Proceeding

Miscellaneous

We are also suhject to certain claims and litigation in the ordinary course of business It is the opinion of management that the

outcome of such matters will not have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

17 Related Party Transactions

In March 2008 the Company made payment in the amount of $51000 on behalf of 19X Inc company that is owned and

controlled in part by Robert F.X Sillerman The Company made the payment for administrative convenience concurrent with its own

payment for travel expenses incurred in connection with trip taken for shared business opportunity As of December 2010 the full

amount of the obligation was discharged Mr Sillerman receives no compensation from the Company for acting as its Chief Executive Officer

and for serving as director The Compensation Committee approved forgiving the obligation as compensation to him

Siared Service.c Agreements

The Company entered into shared services agreement with CKX in 2007 pursuant to which employees of CKX including members

if senior management provide services for the Company and certain of our employees including members of senior management are

xpected to provide services for CKX The services being provided pursuant to the shared services agreement include management legal

iccounting and administrative The agreement was terminated on June 30 2009 For the period ended June 30 2009 CKX incurred and billed

ircle $0.05 million The services provided were approved by the audit committee and the related fees were paid
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Certain employees of Flag from time to time provide services for the Company The Company is required to reimburse Flag for these

services provided by such employees and other overhead costs in an amount equal to the fair value of the services as agreed between the parties

and approved by the audit committee For the year ended December 31 2010 Flag incurred and billed Circle $0.1 million The services

provided for the year ended December 31 2010 were approved by the audit committee For the year ended December 31 2009 Flag incurred

and billed Circle $0.1 million The services provided for the year ended December 31 2009 were approved by the audit committee and the

related fees were paid subsequent to December 31 2009 The services provided consisted primarily of accounting and legal services provided

by Flag on behalf of Circle Paul Kanavos the Companys President and Mitchell Nelson the Companys General Counsel under their

respective employment agreements as amended are required to devote working time required to satisfy the provisions of their employment

agreements and perform their functions for the Company provided that they shall each be entitled to devote additional working time to such

business or other affairs as each deems appropriate This arrangement was approved by the Companys independent directors To the extent

that they use Company employees and/or services for such purposes they are required to reimburse the Company therefor Such arrangement

is reviewed by the Companys audit committee quarterly and appropriate adjustments or reimbursements are made under the shared services

agreement

In late 2010 the Company entered into shared services agreement with BPS Parent LLC BPS company substantially owned

and controlled by Paul Kanavos and Brett Torino pursuant to which the Company reimburses BPS for the services of management and related

executive personnel in the field of real estate business development with
respect to location-based entertainment businesses advice in

connection with specific development or construction projects the preparation of financial projections and construction administration and

planning for the Companys location-based entertainment business and more particularly development of the SkyView

Technology Reimbursement is based on the allocation of time spent with respect to Company matters and the allocable overhead pertaining

thereto The Chief Financial Officer reviews and if appropriate approves reimbursement subject to further review and approval by the audit

committee true-up will be made if there are any adjustments The term of the shared services agreement runs until December 31 2011 but

may be extended or earlier terminated by either party upon 180 days prior written notice or upon 90 days prior written notice if there is

determination in good faith that the provisions of the shared services agreement are not fair and consistent with those reasonably expected to

apply in arms length agreements between affiliated parties Payments under the agreements are made on quarterly basis and are determined

taking into account number of factors including but not limited to the overall type and volume of services provided the individuals

involved the amount of time spent by such individuals and their current compensation rate with the company with which they are employed

Each quarter representatives determine the net payment due from one party to the other for provided services performed by the parties during

the prior calendar quarter and prepare report in reasonable detail with respect to the provided services so performed including the value of

such services and the net payment due In late 2010 $183178 was reimbursed to BPS

Function Inc and the Company contemplate entering into shared services agreement relating to services to be performed by

Mitchell Nelson as Executive Vice President and General Counsel of both companies to share employment and overhead-related

expenses Function Inc is publicly traded company controlled by Robert F.X Sillerman Since any such shared services agreement is

subject to certain rules regarding affiliated transactions majority of independent members of the Companys Board of Directors will need to

approve such arrangement

Preferred Priority Distribution

Flag Luxury Properties held $15 million priority preferred distribution right in FX Luxury Realty which entitles it to receive an

aggregate amount of $15 million together with an accrued priority return of $0.9 million as of December 31 2009 prior to any distributions of

cash by FX Luxury Realty from the proceeds of certain predefined capital transactions On December 21 2009 Flag Luxury Properties

transferred its priority interest to FXL Priority Corp On December 31 2010 upon effectiveness of the Bankruptcy Plan the obligation was

effectively terminated since the proceeds to pay any priority distribution were to come from the Las Vegas Property or capital raising

transactions in connection therewith

Private Placements of Equity Securities and Unsecured Demand Loans

For description of the Companys private placements of its equity securities to certain of the Companys directors executive officers

and greater than 10% stockholders and their affiliates and the Companys borrowings under unsecured demand loans from certain of such

persons reference is made to Note above

18 SkyView License and Development Agreements

Set forth below is brief description of the terms and conditions of the License Agreement and the Development Agreement for the

SkyView Technology ad the SkyViews Such description of the License Agreement and the Development Agreement is not complete and is

iualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the License Agreement and the Development Agreement copies of which are listed and

incorporated by reference as Exhibits 10.29 and 10.30 respectively to this report and are incorporated herein by reference

License Agreement

The License Agreement has an initial term of twenty 20 years unless sooner terminated in accordance with its terms The initial 20-
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year term renews automatically for successive five year periods at our option unless we provide written notice of non-renewal to

Kitchen at least 190 days prior to the expiration of the initial term or the then current renewal period as applicable
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The Company has an exclusive world wide license for current and future SkyView Technology The Company has the right to

sublicense the SkyView license to unaffihiated third party licensees

Under the License Agreement the Company issued to Kitchen and his designees warrants to purchase up to 3750000 shares of

Company common stock at an exercise price of $0.20 per share subject to anti-dilution protection from stock splits and similarevents during

the term of the warrants These warrants have five-year terms and are immediately exercisable provided that they are subject to cancellation

upon fault-based termination of the License Agreement by either of the ThrillRides Parties

The Company is required to make the following royalty payments to Kitchen

advance royalty payments of $50000 month until the earlier of firm order and deposit for construction of the first SkyView or

termination of the License Agreement or the Development Agreement provided that advance royalty payments are subject to being credited at

specified rates against the construction royalty payments described in the following bullet

construction royalty payments equal to 5% of the Total Cost as such term is defined in the License Agreement ofConstruction

and Installation as such term is defined in the License Agreement of each Sky View payable in proportion to payments made for such costs

to contractors and vendors of the applicable SkyView

profit royalty payments equal to 5% of the Profit as such term is defined in the License Agreement derived from the sale of each

SkyView to an unaffiliated third party payable as collections are made under the related purchase agreement and limited to 80% of the

projected Profit until the complete purchase price is paid at which time true-up is made for the actual Profit

operating royalty payments equal to 2% of the Gross Revenues as such term is defined in the License Agreement received from

the operation of each Sky View and

sublicense royalty payments equal to 25% of the Gross Revenues received by us from each unaffiliated third party sublicensee of

Sky View

The License Agreement is terminable by the Company or the ThrillRides Parties as follows

by the Company after thirty 30 months if the Company reasonably believes another Ferris-wheel type product will be more

competitive than SkyViews

by the Company or the ThrillRides Parties ifi any representation or warranty of the other party is untrue or misleading in
any

material respect or the other party defaults in performing any of its obligations under the License Agreement or the Development Agreement

subject to applicable grace or curative periods or ii the other party is involuntarily put into liquidation conservatorship or similar

proceedings and such proceedings are not vacated within 90 days of initiation or iiithe other party voluntarily submits to liquidation

conservatorship or similarproceedings and

by the ThrillRides Parties if either of the performance standards described below is not met by us due to any cause other than

material default of the ThrillRides Parties or force majeure event

The Company is subject to two performance standards under the License Agreement Under the first performance standard the

Company is required to sell minimum of three Sky Views under binding agreement or have three Sky Views built or under

construction firm order and deposit in hand within 30 months of the date of entry into the License Agreement subject to extension for

force majeure events specified in the License Agreement Under the second performance standard the Company is required to either sell

another three Sky Views or have another three SkyViews built or under construction within 66 months of the date of entry into the

License Agreement subject to extension for force majeure events specified in the License Agreement

Upon termination of the License Agreement by the Company because of default by either of the ThrillRides Parties the previously

described warrants are be subject to cancellation and any shares purchased thereunder and not already sold in the open market are subject to the

Companys repurchase at cost Upon termination of the License Agreement by any party the existing SkyViews and any under construction

may be finished and continue to be operated under the same economic terms as the License Agreement whether by the Company or any
sublicensee

The License Agreement provides for bilateral indemnification for third party claims proximately caused by or directly resulting from

any
breach by party of its representations warranties or covenants The ThrillRides Parties indemnity obligations to us are joint and several

and are limited to the total amount of royalties and advances paid or payable by the Company under the License Agreement The Companys

indemnity obligations are equally limited to the total amount of royalties and advances paid or payable by it under the License Agreement The

foregoing limitations do not protect party which commits fraud or gross negligence
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The License Agreement provides for bilateral non-competition covenants and provides the Company with right of first refusal to

acquire the SkyView Technology if either of the ThrillRides Parties receives an offer of purchase therefor from third party

Development Agreement

Under the Development Agreement the ThrillRides Parties are responsible for the supervision and management of the construction

development and installation of SkyViews on the Companys behalf Kitchen is principally responsible for supervising construction and

installation of each SkyView until it is in operation including selecting providers of services and vendors ThrillRides is further responsible for

research and development for the purpose of keeping Sky Views up to date

The Company is required to compensate ThrillRides for its services by making construction payments to ThrillRides equal to five

percent 5% of the Total Cost as such term defined in the License Agreement of Construction and Installation as such term is defined in

the License Agreement of each SkyView If Kitchen dies or is permanently disabled and we terminate the Development Agreement for either

such reason the Company is required to continue making the constructions payments for so long as the License Agreement remains in effect

but at the following reduced rates depending on when the termination of the Development Agreement occurs 1.5% if the termination occurs

within the first 10 years 2% if the termination occurs after the first 10 years but before the 15th year and 2.5% if the termination occurs after

the first 15 years

The Development Agreement is generally terminable upon the same basis as the License Agreement except the Company may
terminate the Development Agreement under certain circumstances upon Kitchens death or permanent disability and contains the same

bilateral non-competition covenants and limitations on liability as the License Agreement

Reference is made to Note 20 below for description of the Companys proposed co-development of project in Orlando Florida on

which the Companys SkyViewTM observation wheel will be placed beside retail restaurant and bar and entertainment facilities
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19 Subsequent Events unaudited

Private Placements of Class Convertible Preferred Stock Units

On February through February 14 2011 the Company entered into subscription agreements with accredited investors pursuant to

which the purchasers purchased from the Company an aggregate of 330 units at purchase price of $1000 per unit Each unit consists of

one share of the Companys Series Convertible Preferred Stock $0.01 par value per share and warrant to purchase up to specified

number of shares of the Companys common stock determined based on the product ofi the initial stated value of$l000 per
share of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the weighted average closing price per
share of the Companys common stock as reported on the

Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately preceding the applicable closing date and ii 200% at specified exercise price per
share

such exercise price representing 150% of the applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the

Companys common stock underlying each warrant ranges from 3175.61 shares to 5538.62 shares and the exercise price per share at which

each warrant is exercisable ranges from $0.3 149 to $0.54 17 due to variances in the closing prices referenced in clause of the preceding

sentence The warrants are exercisable for period of years The Company generated proceeds of $330000 from the sales of the units

pursuant to the subscription agreements The Company intends to use the proceeds to fund working capital requirements and for general

corporate purposes

The Company also issued 35 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock in satisfaction of $35000 sales commission owed to an

individual in connection with previous sales of the Companys securities in the offering

On February 15 through March 2011 the Company entered into subscription agreements with certain of its directors executive

officers and greater than 10% stockholders and other accredited investors pursuant to which the purchasers purchased from the Company an

aggregate of 85 units at purchase price of $1000 per
unit Each unit consists ofx one share of the Companys Series Convertible

Preferred Stock $0.01 par
value

per share and warrant to purchase up to specified number of shares of the Companys common stock

determined based on the product of the initial stated value of $1000 per share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock divided by the

weighted average closing price per
share of the Companys common stock as reported on the Pink Sheets over the 30-day period immediately

preceding the applicable closing date and ii200% at specified exercise price per
share such exercise price representing 150% of the

applicable closing price referred to in preceding clause The number of shares of the Companys common stock underlying each warrant

ranges from 2676 shares to 2820 shares and the exercise price per share at which each warrant is exercisable ranges from $0.53 19 to $05606
due to variances in the closing prices referenced in clause of the preceding sentence The warrants are exercisable for period of

years The Company generated aggregate proceeds of $85000 from the sales of the units

Because the foregoing private placements involved certain of the Companys directors and certain greater than 10% stockholders and

their affiliates such private placements were approved by majority of the Companys disinterested directors to the extent applicable

Sky ViewTM Orlando Project

On February 28 2011 in furtherance of its new location-based entertainment line of business the Company through its wholly-

owned subsidiary Circle Entertainment Property-Orlando LLC the Circle Subsidiary entered into Transaction Agreement with The

Square LLC Orlando Hotel International SPE LLC and Orlando Hotel International SPE Holdings LLC The Square LLC Orlando Hotel

International SPE LLC and Orlando Hotel International SPE Holdings LLC are collectively the Whittall Parties to co-develop project in

Orlando Florida on which the Companys SkyViewTM observation wheel will be placed beside retail restaurant and bar and entertainment

facilities

brief description of the terms and conditions of the Transaction Agreement follows Such description of the Transaction Agreement
is not complete and qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Transaction Agreement copy of which is listed and

incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.32 to this
report and is incorporated by reference herein
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Under the Transaction Agreement the Circle Subsidiary will acquire 65% interest in the ownership of two adjacent properties the

OHI Parcel of 10 acres and the Square Parcel of 18 acres collectively the Property currently owned by certain of the Whittall Parties

and located on International Drive in Orlando Florida The closing of the transaction estimated to be in the second half of 2011 will be

subject to the satisfaction of number of conditions including the rearrangement of the existing first mortgage loans on the Property with

CIBC the CIBC Loan to extend their existing maturity dates for five years and increase the principal balances thereof by approximately $11

million in the aggregate the proceeds of which are to be used to improve the Property and for tenant installations acquiring good title to

the Property and the new property owner entering into 99-year lease for property upon which the Companys SkyViewTM observation

wheel and 25000 square
foot retail service and maintenance building will be located The Circle Subsidiary is responsible for funding

certain obligations between execution of the Transaction Agreement and the closing as follows $65000 for reimbursement of real estate

tax escrow payments for November and December 2010 approximately $20000 per month for real estate tax obligations after December

2010 $50000 commencing May 2011 representing approximately 65% of the monthly interest payments required prepayment of

portion may be required to maintain CIBC interest reserves up to $45000 per month for architectural and engineering services relating to

the site design and 65% of ongoing property expenses estimated at $2000 per month The Whittall Parties will be responsible for funding

35% of the obligations specified in clauses b-e in the previous sentence The Property will be developed in two phases each constituting

approximately 102000 square
feet The closing of the CIBC Loan will be contingent on pre-leasing of approximately 102000 square

feet at

the Property of which the SkyViewTM observation will be 25000 square feet As part of the closing the Circle Subsidiary will be required to

fund $5 million in the aggregate towards the development of the Property but amounts advanced as set forth above will be offset against the

funding required at closing. In addition to the required equity contributions under the terms of the CIBC Loan the Company will be

responsible for building and installing the SkyViewTM observation wheel and terminal building at an approximate cost of $50 million and will

need to arrange
the financing necessary to do so The Company does not currently have any financing commitments in place

2011 Unsecured Demand Loans

On March through March 2011 certain of the Companys directors executive officers and greater than 10% stockholders made

unsecured demand loans to the Company totaling $900000 bearing interest at the rate of 6% per annum

The Company intends to use the loan proceeds to fund working capital requirements and for general corporate purposes Because

certain of the directors executive officers and greater than 10% stockholders of the Company made the loans majority of the Companys

disinterested directors approved the loans

The foregoing description of the loans is not complete and it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the form of

Promissory Note evidencing the loans copy of which is listed and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.33 to this report and is

incorporated herein by reference

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

As has been previously reported on November 2009 the Companys Audit Committee dismissed Ernst Young LLP as the

Companys independent registered public accounting firm On the same date the Audit Committee engaged L.L Bradford Company LLC

Bradford as the Companys new independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31 2009 Thereafter

Bradford was retained as the Companys independent registered public accounting firm for the
year ending December 31 2010

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management with the participation of the Companys chief executive officer Robert F.X Sillerman and its principal accounting

officer Gary McHenry has evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as defined in the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15e or 15d-l5e as of December 31 2010 Based on this evaluation the chiefexecutive officer and

principal accounting officer have concluded that as of that date disclosure controls and procedures required by paragraph of Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 were effective
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Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section 404 and as defined in Rules 13a-15t under the U.S Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 management is required to provide the following report on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for

the Company

The Companys management has evaluated the system of internal control using the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO framework Management has selected the COSO framework for its evaluation as it is control framework

recognized by the SEC and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board that is free from bias permits reasonably consistent qualitative

and quantitative measurement of the Companys internal controls is sufficiently complete so that relevant controls are not omitted and is

relevant to an evaluation of internal controls over financial reporting

Based on managements evaluation under this framework the Company determined that there are material weaknesses in its

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 which are discussed below under Changes In Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting Accordingly management has concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December

31 2010 was not effective

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The loss of certain key accounting and finance personnel and termination of the Shared Services Agreement with CKX in 2009

coupled with our limited financial and human resources has materially affected our internal controls over financial reporting including internal

controls over accounting for stock based compensation accounting for long-lived assets and the financial statement close process Due to the

impact of these events on our internal control over financial reporting in these areas significant adjustments were necessary to present the

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles As result we have determined there to be material

weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting The Company currently does not have nor does it expect to have in the ftiture the

capacity to devise and implement plan to remediate these material weaknesses

As of December 31 2010 the Company was unable to remediate these material weaknesses because of its limited financial and

human resources

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Executive Officers and Directors of Circle Entertainment Inc

The following table lists the names ages and positions of our directors and executive officers as of March 25 2011

Name Age Position

Robert F.X Sillerman 63 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Paul Kanavos 52 Director President

Gary McHenry 60 Chief Financial Officer

Mitchell Nelson 63 Executive Vice President General Counsel Secretary

Harvey Silverman 68 Director

Michael Meyer 45 Director

John Miller 67 Director

Robert Sudack 70 Director

Robert F.X Sillerman has served as Chairman of the board of directors and Chief Executive Officer since January 10 2008 On
February 112011 Mr Sillerman became the Executive Chairman of Function Inc publicly traded company of which he is the

controlling stockholder Mr Sillerman served as the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of CKX from February 2005 until his resignation

in May 2010 Prior to that Mr Sillerman was Chairman of FXM Inc private investment firm from August 2000 through February 2005
Mr Sillerman is director executive officer and controlling stockholder of Atlas Real Estate Funds Inc greater than 5% stockholder of our

company Atlas Mr Sillerman is the founder and has served as managing member of FXM Asset Management LLC the managing member
uIMJX Asset Management company principally engaged in the management of collateralized loan obligation funds from November 2003
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through the present Prior to that Mr Sillerman served as the Executive Chairman Member of the Office of the Chairman and

director of SFX Entertainment Inc from its formation in December 1997 through its sale to Clear Channel Communications in August

2000 The Board of Directors selected Mr Sillerman to serve as director because it believes he
possesses significant entertainment and

financial expertise which will benefit the Company
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Paul Kanavos was elected Director and appointed President on August 20 2007 Mr Kanavos is the Founder Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer of Flag Luxury Properties LLC Prior to founding Flag Luxury Properties he worked for over 20 years at the head of

Flag Management Most recently he has developed Ritz-Carltons in South Beach Coconut Grove and Jupiter and was involved in developing

Temenos Anguilla Mr Kanavos is director executive officer and controlling stockholder of Atlas Mr Kanavos early career experience

includes position at Chase Manhattan Bank where he negotiated structured and closed over $1 billion in loans The Board of Directors

seleôted Mr Kanavos to serve as director because it believes his real estate development expertise will benefit the Company

Gary McJ-Ienry has served as Chief Financial Officer since January 21 2011 Mr McHenry served as the Companys Property

Subsidiarys and its predecessors Controller since 2007 and as Principal Accounting Officer since July 2009 In connection with the

Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceeding of the Companys Las Vegas Property Subsidiary Mr McHenry served as Vice President of the Companys

Las Vegas Property Subidiary Mr McHenry is CPA and has over 10 years financial experience in the real estate manufacturing and

communications industries

Mitchell Nelson has served as Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary since December 31 2007 On February 11

2011 Mr Nelson was appointed as director and Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Function Inc In connection with the

Chapter II Bankruptcy Proceeding of the Companys Las Vegas Property Subsidiary Mr Nelson served as Presdient of the Companys Las

Vegas Property Subsidiary Mr Nelson has served as Senior Vice President of Corporate Affairs for Flag Luxury Properties LLC since

February 2003 He is minority stockholder of Atlas and served as its President until December 2008 He has served as counsel to various law

firms since 1994 Prior to that he was senior real estate partner at the law firm of Wien Malkin Bettex with supervisory responsibility for

various commercial properties Mr Nelson was director of The Merchants Bank of New York and its holding company until its merger with

and remains on the Advisory Board of Valley National Bank Additionally he has served on the boards of various not-for-profit organizations

including as director of the 92nd Street YMHA and trustee of Collegiate School both in New York City

Harvey Silverman was elected director of the Company in October 2007 Mr Silverman was principal of Spear Leeds Kellogg

major specialist firm on the New York Stock Exchange for 39 years until its acquisition by Goldman Sachs Co in October of 2000 Since

then Mr Silverman has been private investor Mr Silverman was selected to serve as director because the Board of Directors believes his

experience in capital markets will benefit the Company

Michaelj Meyer was elected director of the Company in May 2008 Mr Meyer is the founding partner of 17 Broad LLC
diversified investment vehicle and securities consulting firm Prior to founding 17 Broad from 2002 to 2007 Mr Meyer served as Managing

Director and Head of Credit Sales and Trading for Bank of America Prior to that Mr Meyer spent four years as the Head of High Grade

Credit Sales and Trading for UBS The Board of Directors selected Mr Meyer to serve as director because the Board of Directors believes

his experience in financial planning and debt issues will benefit the Company

John Miller has served as Director since January 2009 Mr Miller is the Chief Investment Officer of W.P Carey Co LLC
net lease real estate company On February 15 2011 Mr Miller was appointed as director of Function Inc Mr Miller is also founder

and Non-Managing Member of StarVest Partners L.P $150 million venture capital investment fund formed in 1998 Mr Miller is minority

stockholder of Atlas From 1995 to 1998 Mr Miller was President of Rothschild Ventures Inc the private investments unit of Rothschild

North America subsidiary of the worldwide Rothschild Group He was also President and CEO of Equitable Capital Management

Corporation an investment advisory subsidiary of The Equitable where he worked for 24 years beginning in 1969 From Fehruaiy 2005

through January 2009 when he resigned Mr Miller served as director of CKX Inc Mr Miller was selected by the Board of Directors

because it believes his experience as Chief Investment Officer of major real estate company brings depth and sophistication to the Board as

does his venture capital industry experience both of which will benefit the Company

Robert Sudack has served as Director since January 2009 Mr Sudack is the President and owner of Posterloid Corporation the

worlds leading menu board manufacturing company with over $20 million of sales per year headquartered in Long Island City Mr Sudack

has also been private investor in and advisor to various companies for many years Mr Sudack was selected to the Board of Directors

because it believes his operational experience as principal of successful manufacturing company will benefit the Company
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Non-Voting Designated Preferred Stock Director

Under the terms of the Non-Voting Designated Preferred Stock the holder of the Non-Voting Designated Preferred Stock is entitled to

appoint member our Board so long as it continues to beneficially own at least 20% of the 6611998 shares of our common stock that it

acquired through the distribution of our common stock by CKX Inc to its stockholders the exercise of rights in our rights offering

completed in 2008 and the purchase of shares that were not subscribed for in the rights offering pursuant to its investment agreement with

us Under the terms of the Non-Voting Designated Preferred Stock as specified in the Certificate of Designation on May 14 2008 the holder

of the Non-Voting Designated Preferred Stock selected Bryan Bloom as its designee to serve on the Companys Board At the written request

of the holder of the Non-Voting Designated Preferred Stock its director designee shall be appointed by the Board to serve on each committee

of the Board to the extent permissible under the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission or The NASDAQ
Global Market or applicable law In accordance with the terms of the Non-Voting Designated Preferred Stock Mr Bloom or any successor

designated by the holder has the right subject to any restrictions of The NASDAQ Global Market or the Securities and Exchange

Commission or applicable law to be member of and the chairman of any committee of the Board formed for the
purpose

of reviewing any

related party transaction that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 or any successor rule or

regulation or any transaction contract agreement understanding loan advance or guarantee with or for the benefit of any of the Companys
directors officers or affiliates including any such committee that may be formed pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations of the

Securities and Exchange Commission or The NASDAQ Global Market However if Mr Bloom or any successor designated by the holder

would not be deemed independent or disinterested with respect to related party transaction and therefore would not satisty The NASDAQ
Global Market or other applicable requirements for serving on the special committee formed with respect thereto Mr Bloom or any successor

designated by the holder will not serve on the relevant special committee but will have the right to attend meetings of such special committee

as an observer subject to any restrictions of The NASDAQ Global Market or applicable law Furthermore in the event that the attendance at

any meetings of any such special committee would raise confidentiality issues as between the parties to the transaction that in the reasonable

opinion of counsel to the relevant special committee cannot be resolved by confidentiality agreement Mr Bloom or any successor

designated by the holder shall be required to recuse himself from such meetings Mr Blooms designation as director was withdrawn on April

2010 and no replacement has been named

Voting Class Preferred Stock Director

From the date on which at least 1000 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding the Director Commencement

Date the Companys board of directors is required at the request of the holders of majority of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock to

increase its size by one member and cause such resulting vacancy to be filled by director designated by the holders of majority of the then

outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock the Class Director From the Director Commencement Date until the date on

which less than 50% of the shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding on the Director Commencement Date are outstanding

majority of the holders of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock voting as separate class have the right to elect one Class Director

to the Companys board of directors at each meeting of stockholders or each consent of the Companys stockholders for the election of

directors and to remove from office such Class Director and to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation death or removal of such Class

Director Each share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to one vote and any election or removal of the Class Director shall be

subject to the affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock The holders of

the Class Convertible Preferred Shares also vote on an as-converted basis into common stock with the holders of the Common Stock as

single class for the election of directors No Class Director has been appointed

Voting Class Preferred Stock Director

From the date on which at least 1667 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding the Class Director

Commencement Date the Companys board of directors is required at the request of the holders of majority of the Series Convertible

Preferred Stock to increase its size by one member and cause such resulting vacancy to be filled by director designated by the holders of

majority of the then outstanding shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock the Class Director From the Class Director

Commencement Date until the date on which less than 50% of the shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding on the Class

Director Commencement Date are outstanding majority of the holders of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock voting as separate class

have the right to elect one Class Director to the Companys board of directors at each meeting of stockholders or each consent of the

Companys stockholders for the election of directors and to remove from office such Class Director and to fill the vacancy caused by the

resignation death or removal of such Class Director Each share of Series Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to one vote and any

election or removal of the Class Director shall be subject to the affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the outstanding shares of

Series Convertible Preferred Stock The holders of the Series Convertible Preferred Shares also vote on an as-converted basis into

ommon stock with the holders of the Common Stock as single class for the election of directors No Class Director has been appointed
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Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended requires our directors and officers and persons who own more

than 10% of our outstanding Common Stock to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and changes in ownership of our Common Stock

Such individuals are also required to furnish us with copies of all such ownership reports they file

To our knowledge based solely on information furnished to us and contained in Section 16 reports filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission as well as any written representations that no other reports were required we believe that during 2010 all required

Section 16 reports of our directors and executive officers and persons who own more than 10% of our outstanding common stock were timely

filed

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics which is applicable to all our employees and directors including

our principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions

The Code is posted on our website located at www.fxree.com

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to or waiver from provision

of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting

officer or controller or persons performing similar functions by posting such information on our website at www.ficree.com

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Company has Corporate Governance Guidelines which provide among other things that majority of the Companys board of

directors must meet the criteria for independence required by The NASDAQ Stock Market even though the Companys stock is no longer

traded on such market and that the Company shall at all times have standing Audit Committee Compensation Committee and Nominating

and Corporate Governance Committee which committees will be made up entirely of independent directors The Corporate Governance

Guidelines also outline director responsibilities provide that the board of directors shall have full and free access to officers and employees of

the Company and require the board of directors to conduct an annual self-evaluation to determine whether it and its committees are functioning

effectively The Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters for these committees can be found on the Companys website at

ir fxree corn

Board Committees

The following chart sets forth the membership of each board committee as of March 25 2011

Committee Members

Audit Committee Michael Meyer Chairman
John Miller

Harvey Silverman

Compensation Committee Michael Meyer

Harvey Silverman

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Harvey Silverman Chairman
Michael Meyer

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of Messrs Meyer Miller and Silverman Mr Meyer is the Chairman of the Audit Committee The

Audit Committee assists our board of directors in fulfilling its responsibility to oversee managements conduct of our financial reporting

process including the selection of our outside auditors review of the financial
reports and other financial information we provide to the public

ur systems of internal accounting financial and disclosure controls and the annual independent audit of our financial statements

All members of the Audit Committee are independent within the meaning of the rules and regulations of the SEC and our Corporate

Governance Guidelines In addition Mr Meyer is qualified as an audit committee financial expert under the regulations of the SEC and has the

iccounting and related financial management expertise required thereby
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ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

2010 Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compensation earned for services rendered to the Company for the fiscal years ended December 31
2010 and December 31 2009 by our Chief Executive Officer and the two other most highly compensated executive officers of the Company

the named executive officers who served in such capacities at the end of the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 Except as provided

below none of our named executive officers received any other compensation required to be disclosed by law or in excess of$10000 annually

Salary Bonus Option Awards All Other

Name and Principal Position Fiscal Year Compensation Total

RobertF.X Sillerman 2010 510001 ---- --- ---

Chairman and ChiefExecutive Officer 2009 ---1

Paul Kanavos 2010 ---3

President 2009 4522073 1500003 98002 612007

Mitchell Nelson 2010 1600003 160000

General Counsel 2009 3937503 1312503 328560 330432 558043

Mr Sillerman does not receive base salary under the terms of his employment agreement Mr Sillerman provided his services

pursuant to and in accordance with the Shared Services Agreement by and between the Company and CKX Inc until the termination

of the Shared Services Agreement on June 30 2009 The Company reimbursed CKX Inc for pro rata portion of Mr Sillermans

salary based on the amount of Mr Sillermans business time spent on Company matters After June 30 2009 Mr Sillermans

services were provided without reimbursement For the
years

ended December 31 2009 the Company reimbursed CKX in the

amount of $45618 for services provided by Mr Sillerman $51000 represents discharge of an obligation to the Company owed by

Mr Sillerman and is treated as compensation to him see Note 16 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in

this Report

Includes 401K matching and health benefits to the extent the named executive received such benefits during 2010 and 2009

Mr Kanavos and Mr Nelson received retention bonuses in connection with the modification of their employment agreements in June

2009 Mr Kanavos received payment of $150000 and Mr Nelson received $131250 The modification of Mr Kanavos

employment agreement provided for an additional retention bonus of $95000 which has not been paid as of March 25 2011 As of

December 31 2010 Mr Kanavos accrued but unpaid salary was $600000 for 2010 and $150000 for 2009 and Mr Nelsons

accrued but unpaid salary was $440000 for 2010 and $150000 for 2009

Under the terms of his original employment agreement with the Company Mr Nelson was permitted to devote up to one-third of his

business time to providing services for or on behalf of Mr Sillerman or Flag Luxury Properties LLC Flag provided that

Mr Sillerman and/or Flag as the case may be reimbursed the Company for the fair market value of the services provided for him or

it by Mr Nelson In June 2009 as result of amending Mr Nelsons employment agreement Mr Nelson is permitted to work on

other matters so long as he devotes the time necessary to perform his functions at the Company Reimbursement therefore for his

services for Flag is no longer appropriate For the year ended December 31 2009 Flag reimbursed the Company for $42608 of

Mr Nelsons base salary as result of services provided for it by Mr Nelson

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31 2010

Option Awards

Number of Equity

Number of Securities Incentive Plan

Securities Underlying Awards Number

Underlying Unexercised of Securities Underlying Option
Unexercised Options Unexercised Exercise

Options Unearned Options Price Option
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Expiration

R.obert F.X Sillerman 2500002 5.00 5/19/18

500002 200000 6.00 5/19/18

Paul Kanavos 1000002 5.00 5/19/18

20.0002 80000 6.00 5/19/18

\4itchell Nelson 1000002 5.00 5/19/18

200002 80000 6.00 5/19/18

On October 25 2010 Mr Sillerman Mr Kanavos and Mr Nelson agreed to terminate options vested or unvested granted on

December 2007 whkh were exercisable at $20.00 per share
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With respect to options granted by the Company on May 19 2008 one half of the options have an exercise price of $5.00 per share

and the other half have an exercise price of $6.00 per share The options vest over five year period with 40% of the $5.00 options

vesting after one year 40% of the $5.00 options vesting after year two 20% of the $5.00 and 20% of the $6.00 options vesting after

year three 40% of the $6.00 options vesting after
year

four and 40% of the $6.00 options vesting after
year

five
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Potential Payments upon Termination without Cause or Change-in-Control

The following disclosure is for our Chief Executive Officer Mr Sillerman

Upon termination by our Company without cause ii constructive termination without cause or iii change in control

the employment agreement for Mr Sillerman provides for the following benefits payment in the amount of $3000000 continued

eligibility to participate in
any

benefit plans of our Company for the lesser ofx three years and the remaining portion of the employment

term following termination plus iii accelerated vesting of any stock options restricted stock or other equity based instruments previously

issued to the executive officer However in the event that any amount payable to Mr Sillerman upon change of control would be

nondeductible by the Company under the rules set forth in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 then the amount payable to

Mr Sillerman shall be reduced to the maximum amount that would be payable but which would remain deductible under Section 280G of the

IRC If change of control were to occur as of December 31 2010 Mr Sillerman would receive $3070524

Health/Insurance

Name Salary Bonus Benefits Total

Robert F.X Sillerman 3000000 70524 3070524

Potential Payments upon Death or Disability

The following disclosure is for our continuing named executive officers Messrs Sillerman Kanavos and Nelson

The employment agreements of each of Messrs Kanavos and Nelson provide for the following benefits in the event of their death

all earned but unpaid Base Salary at the time of the Executives death the fill costs relating to the continuation of any group health medical

dental and life insurance program or plan provided through the Employer for period of ninety 90 days after the termination of Employment
and all reimbursable business expenses incurred by the Executive through time of his death The approximate amount that would be due to the

estates of Messrs Kanavos and Nelson in the event of their death as of December 31 2010 would be $207000 and $157000

respectively Because of accrued but unpaid Base Salary owed to Messrs Kanavos and Nelson these amounts would be increased by $750000

and $590000 respectively

The employment agreement for Mr Sillerman provides for the following benefits in the event of his death payment in the

amount of $3000000 plus the full costs of the continuation of any group health dental and life insurance program through which coverage

was provided to any dependent of the executive officer prior to his death for three years following the executive officers death and

accelerated vesting of any stock options restricted stock or other equity based instruments previously issued to the executive officer The

approximate amount that would be due to the estate of Mr Sillerman in the event of his death as of December 31 2010 would be $3000000

as of now Mr Sillerman receives no benefits under above

Compensation of Non-Em ployee Directors

Employee directors do not receive any separate compensation for their board service Non-employee directors receive the

compensation described below

For 2010 non-employee directors accrued an annual fee of $80000 plus $1000 for attendance at each meeting of our board of

directors and $750 for attending each meeting of committee of which he is member The chairperson of the Audit Committee received an

additional annual fee of $20000 and each of the other members of the Audit Committee received an additional fee of $10000 for serving on

the Audit Committee The chairpersons of each other committee received an additional annual fee of $10000 and each of the other members

of such committees received an additional annual fee of $5000 All fees described above are payable half in cash and half in equity awards or

options under the Companys 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan though each non-employee director will have the option to elect

on an annual basis to receive 100% of his compensation in equity awards or stock options

The Company pays non-employee directors on quarterly basis and prices all grants of Common Stock at the closing price on the last

day of the quarter for which such fees relate or options therefor on the date granted During 2010 fees earned Were not paid
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The total compensation received by our non-employee directors during fiscal year 2010 is shown in the following table

Fees Earned or Option

Paid in Cash Awards Total

Name S1 S2
Michael Meyer 118000 133750

John Miller 108000 106250

1-larveySilverman 105000 115750

Robert Sudack 90000 90000

Directors are paid half in cash and half in equity unless they elect to receive greater percentage of their compensation in equity For

2010 fees have been accrued and not paid due to the Companys cash position The manner and timing of satisfing this obligation is

under consideration and may be satisfied using cash equity or any combination thereof

The amounts shown represent the aggregate grant date fair value of stock options computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic

718 The value ultimately realized by the director upon the actual exercise of the stock options may or may not be equal to the FASB
ASC Topic 718 computed value The discussion of the assumptions used for purposes of the valuation of the stock options appears in

Note 14 Share-Based Payments of our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 included

elsewhere herein

Corn pensation Cornrnittee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No member of our Compensation Committee was at any time during the past fiscal
year an officer or employee of us was formerly an

officer of us or any of our subsidiaries or has an immediate family member that was an officer or employee of us or had
any relationship

requiring disclosure under Item 13 Certain Relationships Related Transactions and Director Independence

During the last fiscal year none of our executive officers served as

member of the compensation committee or other committee of the board of directors performing equivalent functions or in the

absence of any such committee the entire board of directors or another entity one of whose executive officers served on our

compensation committee

director of another entity one of whose executive officers served on our compensation committee and

member of the compensation committee or other committee of the board of directors performing equivalent functions or in the

absence of any such committee the entire board of directors of another entity one of whose executive officers served as director of us

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Cornpensation Plans

The table below shows information with respect to our equity compensation plans our 2007 Executive Equity Incentive Plan and our

2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan For description of our 2007 Executive Equity Incentive Plan and 2007 Long-Term Incentive

Compensation Plan see Note 14 to our audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Number of

Securities

Remaining
Available

Weighted for Future

Number of Average Issuance Under

Securities to Exercise Equity

be Issued Upon Price of Compensation
Exercise of Outstanding Plans

Outstanding Options Excluding

Options Warrants Securities

Warrants and Reflected in

Plan Category and Rights Rights Column

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 5518350 2.82 9981650

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders
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Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock as of March 25
2011 by

each person or entity known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock

each of our named executive officers

each of our directors and

all of our directors and executive officers named as group

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and generally includes

voting or investment power with respect to the securities Unless otherwise noted each beneficial owner has sole voting and investing power

over the shares shown as beneficially owned except to the extent authority is shared by spouses under applicable law In computing the number

of shares beneficially owned by person and the percentage ownership of that person any shares of common stock subject to common stock

purchase warrants or stock options held by that person that are exercisable as of March 25 2011 or will become exercisable within 60 days

thereafter are deemed to be outstanding while such shares are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing percentage ownership of any

other person
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As of March 25 2011 there were 65403876 shares of the registrants common stock outstanding

Shares Percentage of

Beneficially Common
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner1 Owned Stock

Beneficial Owners of 5% or More

Robert F.X Sillerman 29465797 38.7%

Paul Kanavos 29128666 37.8%

Brett Torino 30965414 39.7%

The Huff Alternative Fund L.P 9864543 14.6%

Directors and Named Executive Officers not otherwise included above

Gary McHenry
Michael Meyer 481306
John Miller 384722

Mitchell Nelson 215571

Harvey Silverman 10 4369229 6.4%

RobertSudack11 485067
All directors and executive officers as group individuals 12 65895051 64.4%

Represents less than 1%

Except as otherwise set forth below the business address and telephone number of each of the persons listed above is do Circle

Entertainment Inc 650 Madison Avenue New York New York 10022 telephone 212 796-8177

Sillerman beneficially owns directly 13271972 shares of Common Stock consisting of 8083346 shares of Common
Stock owned by Sillerman 250000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options held by Sillerman that are

presently exercisable at $5.00 per share 50000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options held by Sillerman that

are presently exercisable at $6.00 per share 2055498 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Sillerman

and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $02919 per share 888011 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants

held by Sillerman and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $0304 per share 411984 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the

exercise of warrants held by Sillerman and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $0.2403 per share and ii indirectly 17683717 shares

of Common Stock consisting of 766917 shares of Common Stock owned by Holdings which Sillerman controls through trust for the

benefit of Sillermans descendents 4423264 shares of Common Stock owned of record by Laura Baudo Sillerman Sillermans spouse

390626 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Sillermans spouse that are presently wiercisable at $0.08

per share 2777778 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Sillermans spouse half of which are

presently exercisable at $0.10 per share and the other half of which are presently exercisable at $0 11 per shares 362637 shares of

Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Sillermans spouse that are presently exercisable at $0.273 per share

618557 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Sillermans spouse that are presently exercisable at $0291 per

share 572410 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Sillermans
spouse

that are presently exercisable at

$0.2621 per share 505575 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Sillermans
spouse

that are presently

exercisable at $02018 per share 625390 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Sillermans
spouse

that

are presently exercisable at $02399 per share 1138952 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by

Sillermans spouse that are presently exercisable at $02634 per share 43250 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of

warrants held by Sillermans spouse that are presently exercisable at $05778 per share and 5501611 shares of Common Stock owned of

record by Atlas 8083346 of the shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by Mr Sillerman have been pledged to Deutsche Bank Trust

Company Americas together with certain other collateral to secure $20.1 million personal loan to Sillerman maturing October 15

2011 Excludes shares issuable upon conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares as follows 856531 shares of Common Stock

issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Sillerman and his spouse as joint tenants that are convertible at

$02335 per share 369913 shares issuable upon the conversion of the Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Sillerman and his

spouse that are convertible at $02433 per share 151099 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the Series

Convertible Preferred Shares held by Sillermans
spouse that are convertible at $0.2 184 per share 257732 shares of Common Stock

issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Sillermans spouse that are convertible at $02328 per share

238435 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Sillermans
spouse

that are

convertible at $0.2097 per share 210630 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares

held by Sillermans spouse that are convertible at $01614 per share 260552 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of

Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Sillermans spouse that are convertible at $01919 per share 560600 shares of Common
Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Sillermans

spouse
that are convertible at $0.2 107 per

share and 18022.5 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Sillermans

spouse that are convertible at $04622 per share
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Torino beneficially owns directly 176238 shares of Common Stock consisting of 176238 shares of Common Stock owned of

record by Torino and ii indirectly 30789176 shares of Common Stock consisting of 5556870 shares of Common Stock owned of

record by ONIROT 7240419 shares of Common Stock owned of record by TTERB 2142858 shares of Common Stock issuable

upon the exercise of presently exercisable warrants held by TTERB half of which are exercisable at $4.50 per share and the other half of which

are exercisable at $5.50 per share 390626 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are

presently exercisable at $0.08 per share 2777778 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB half of

which are presently exercisable at $0.10 per share and the other half of which are presently exercisable at $0.11 per share 362637 shares of

Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $0273 per share 618557 shares of

Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $0291 per share 2055498 shares

of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $0.29 19 per share 8880 shares

of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $03041 per share 572410 shares

of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $0262 per share 411984
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $02403 per share

505575 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $0.2018 per share

625390 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $02399 per

share 1138952 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $02634

per share 043250 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by TTERB that are presently exercisable at $05778

per share and 5501611 shares of Common Stock owned of record by Atlas Excludes shares issuable upon conversion of Series

Convertible Preferred Shares as follows 151099 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the Series Convertible

Preferred Shares held by TTERB that are convertible at $0.2 184 per share 257732 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion

of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by TTERB that are convertible at $02328 per share 856531 shares of Common Stock

issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by TTERB that are convertible at $0.2335 per share 369913

shares issuable upon the conversion of the Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by TTERB that are convertible at $0.2433 per share

238435 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by TTERB that are convertible at

$0.2097 per share 210630 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by

TTERB that are convertible at $0.16 14 per share 260552 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible

Preferred Shares held by TTERB that are convertible at $0.19 19 per share 560600 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion

of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by TTERB that are convertible at $02107 per share and 18022.5 shares of Common Stock

issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by TTERB that are convertible at $04622 per share

Kanavos beneficially owns directly 24083805 shares of Common Stock consisting of 354254 shares of Common Stock

owned of record by Kanavos 11619273 shares of Common Stock owned of record by Kanavos and his spouse Dayssi Olarte de Kanavos

as joint tenants 500000 shares of Common Stock owned of record by the Paul Kanavos 2008 GRAT 1142860 shares of Common
Stock issuable upon the exercise of presently exercisable warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse half of which are exercisable at $4.50 per

share and the other half of which are exercisable at $5.50 per share 100000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of stock

options held by Kanavos that are presently exercisable at $5.00 per share 20000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of

stock options held by Kanavos that are presently exercisable at $6.00 per share 390626 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the

exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $0.08 per share 362637 shares of Common Stock

issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $0273 per share 2777778 shares

of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse half of which are presently exercisable at $0.10 per

share and the other half of which are presently exercisable at $0.11 per share 618557 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise

of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $0291 per share 2055498 shares of Common Stock issuable

upon the exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $02919 per share 888011 shares of

Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $03041 per share

572410 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at

$0.262l per share 411984 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are

presently exercisable at $02403 per share 505575 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and

his spouse that are presently exercisable at $02018 per share P625390 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held

by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $02399 per share 1138952 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the

exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $02634 per share and 43250 shares of Common
Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Kanavos and his spouse that are presently exercisable at $05778 per share and ii
indirectly 5501611 shares of Common Stock consisting of the shares of Common Stock owned of record by Atlas Kanavos beneficial

ownership excludes 500000 shares of Common Stock owned of record by his spouses GRAT the Dayssi Olarte de Kanavos 2008 GRAT
Excludes shares issuable upon conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares as follows 151099 shares of Common Stock issuable

upon the conversion of the Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Kanavos and his spouse as joint tenants that are convertible at

$0.2 184
per share 257732 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by

Kanavos and his spouse as joint tenants that are convertible at $02328 per share 856531 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the

conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Kanavos and his spouse as joint tenants that are convertible at $02335 per share

369913 shares issuable upon the conversion of the Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Kanavos and his spouse as joint tenants

that are convertible at $02433 per share 238435 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred

Shares held by Kanavos and his spouse as joint tenants that are convertible at $02097 per share 210630 shares of Common Stock

issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Kanavos and his
spouse that are convertible at $01614 per
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spouse
that are convertible at $0 1919 per share 560600 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series

Convertible Preferred Shares held by Kanavos and his
spouse

that are convertible at $0.2 107 per share and 18022.5 shares of Common
Stock issuable upon the conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares held by Kanavos and his spouse that are convertible at 50.4622

per share
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Held of record by The Huff Alternative Fund L.P and one of its affiliated limited partnerships together the Huff Entities

William Huff possesses the sole power to vote and dispose of all the shares of common stock held by the Huff Entities subject to the

internal screening procedures and other securities law compliance policies that from time to time require Mr Huff to delegate to one or more

employees of the Huff Entities transaction and/or securities disposition authority with respect to certain entities including our company All

such employees serve under the ultimate direction control and authority of Mr Huff Thus Mr Huff is deemed to beneficially own

6739542 shares of common stock The address of the Huff Entities and Mr Huff is 67 Park Place Morristown New Jersey 07960 Includes

7781209 shares of common stock owned of record by the Huff Entities and ii 2083334 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the

exercise of warrants held by the Huff Entities half of which are presently exercisable at $0.07 per share and the other half of which are

presently exercisable at $0.08 per share

Messrs Kanavos and Torino hold 071471 and 3117155 of the shares reported above through the Private Clients and Asset

Management business group of CPCAM of Deutsche Bank AG and its subsidiaries and affiliates collectively DBAG Deutsche Bank

AG and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas has filed Schedule 13G dated February Il 2011 for such shares held by PCAM wherein it

indicates PCAM holds such shares in the capacity of an investment adviser According to the Schedule 13G the filing does not reflect

securities if any beneficially owned by any other business group of DBAG and the filing should not be construed as an admission that PCAM
is for purposes of Section 13d under the Securities Exchange Act the beneficial owner of any of the shares covered by the filing The

address of DBAG is Theodor-Heuss-Allee 70 60468 Frankflirt am Main Federal Republic of Germany

Includes 32695 shares of common stock owned of record by Mr Meyer and ii 448611 shares of Common Stock issuable

upon the exercise of stock options held by Mr Meyer that are presently exercisable at $0.18 per share

Includes 384722 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options held by Mr Miller that are presently

exercisable at $0.18 per share

Includes 95571 shares of Common Stock held by LMN 134 Family Company LLC family company of which Mr Nelson

is manager ii 100000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options held by Mr Nelson that are presently exercisable

at $5.00 per share and iii20000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options held by Mr Nelson that are presently

exercisable at $6.00 per
share

10 Includes 1384119 shares of common stock owned of record by Mr Silverman ii478612 shares of common stock owned

of record by Silverman Partners L.P of which Mr Silverman is the sole general partner iii48897 shares of common stock issuable upon

the exercise of stock options held by Mr Silverman that are presently exercisable 25641 shares at $5.00 per share and 23256 shares at $6.00

per share iv 571430 shares of common stock underlying presently exercisable warrants owned of record by Silverman Partners L.P these

warrants are exercisable at prices of $4.50 per share for 285715 of the underlying shares and $5.50 per share for 285715 of the underlying

shares 1430615 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Mr Silverman that are presently exercisable at

$02097 per share and 455556 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options held by Silverman that are presently

exercisable at $0.18 per share Excludes 595948 shares issuable upon conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares that are convertible

$0 1678 per share

11 Includes 5118400 shares of common stock owned of record by Mr Sudack ii 366667 shares of Common Stock issuable

upon the exercise of stock options held by Mr Sudack that are presently exercisable at $0.18 per share and iii 357654 shares of Common
Stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants held by Mr Sudack that are presently exercisable at $0 .2097 per share Excludes 148987 shares

issuable upon conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Shares that are convertible at $01678 per share

12 Includes an aggregate of 26170685 shares of common stock underlying presently exercisable warrants and options described

above in notes 89 10 and 11
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ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELA TIONSHIPS AND RELA TED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

There are number of conflicts of interest of which stockholders should be aware regarding our ownership and operations Set forth

below list of related parties with whom we have engaged in one or more transactions as well as summary of each transaction involving such

related parties

Related Parties

Robert F.X Sillerman our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer owns approximately 29.3% of the outstanding equity of Flag

Luxury Properties

Paul Kanavos our President is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Flag Luxury Properties ii owns approximately

29.3% of the outstanding equity of Flag Luxury Properties and iii owns approximately 25% of the outstanding equity of BPS

Function Inc and the Company contemplate entering into shared services agreement relating to services to be performed by

Mitchell Nelson as Executive Vice President and General Counsel of both companies to share employment and overhead-related

expenses Function Inc is publicly traded company controlled by Robert F.X Sillerman

Priority Preferred Distribution

Flag Luxury Properties held $15 million priority preferred distribution right in FX Luxury Realty which entitles it to receive an

aggregate amount of $15 million together with an accrued priority return of $0.9 million as of December 31 2009 prior to any
distributions of

cash by FX Luxury Realty from the proceeds of certain predefined capital transactions On December 21 2009 Flag Luxury Properties

transferred its priority interest to FXL Priority Corp On December 15 2010 upon the effectiveness of the Bankruptcy Plan the obligation was

effectively terminated since the proceeds to pay any priority distribution were to come from the Las Vegas Property or capital raising

transactions in connection therewith

Flag Shared Services Arrangement

We are also party to shared services arrangement with Flag Luxury Properties company owned and controlled by Robert F.X

Sillerman Paul Kanavos and Brett Torino pursuant to which Flag reimburses the Company for the services of Mitchell Nelson and certain

administrative employees based on an allocation of time spent on Flag mailers and certain administrative personnel based on an allocation of

their time spent with respect to Company mailers The shared services arrangement is at will and may be terminated at any time by either party

Payments under the agreements are made on quarterly basis and are determined taking into account number of factors including

but not limited to the overall type and volume of services provided the individuals involved the amount of time spent by such individuals and

their current compensation rate with the company with which they are employed Each quarter representatives determine the net payment due

from one party to the other for provided services performed by the parties during the prior calendar quarter and prepare report in reasonable

detail with respect to the provided services so performed including the value of such services and the net payment due

The Company presents the report prepared as described above to the Audit Committee Because the shared services arrangement with

Flag constitutes an agreement with related party the allocation and reimbursements are reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee of

the board of directors of the Company which consists entirely of independent members of the board of directors If the Audit Committee raises

any questions or issues with respect to the report the parties cause their duly authorized representatives to meet promptly to address such

questions or issues in good faith and if appropriate prepare revised report If the report is approved by Audit Committee then the net

payment due as shown in the report is promptly paid
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BPS Shared Services Arrangement

In late 2010 the Company entered into shared services agreement with BPS Parent LLC BPS company substantially owned

and controlled by Paul Kanavos and Brett Torino pursuant to which the Company reimburses BPS for the services of management and related

executive personnel in the field of real estate business development with respect to location-based entertainment businesses advice in

connection with specific development or construction projects the preparation of financial projections and construction administration and

planning for the Companys location-based entertainment business and more particularly development of the SkyView

Technology Reimbursement is based on the allocation of time spent with respect to Company matters and the allocable overhead pertaining

thereto The Chief Financial Officer reviews and if appropriate approves reimbursement subject to further review and approval by the audit

committee true-up will be made if there are any adjustments The term of the shared services agreement runs until December 2011 but

may be extended or earlier terminated by either party upon 180 days prior written notice or upon 90 days prior written notice if there is

determination in good faith that the provisions of the shared services agreement are not fair and consistent with those reasonably expected to

apply in arms length agreements between affiliated parties Payments under the agreements are made on quarterly basis and are determined

taking into account number of factors including but not limited to the overall type and volume of services provided the individuals

involved the amount of time spent by such individuals and their current compensation rate with the company with which they are employed

Each quarter representatives determine the net payment due from one party to the other for provided services performed by the parties during

the prior calendar quarter and prepare report in reasonable detail with respect to the provided services so performed including the value of

such services and the net payment due In late 2010 $183178 was reimbursed to BPS

19X Payment

In March 2008 the Company made payment in the amount of $51000 on behalf of 19X Inc company that is owned and

controlled in part by Robert F.X Sillerman The Company made the payment for administrative convenience concurrent with its own

payment for travel expenses incurred in connection with trip taken for shared business opportunity As of December 31 2010 the full

amount of the obligation was discharged Mr Sillerman receives no compensation from the Company for acting as its Chief Executive Officer

and for serving as director The Compensation Committee approved forgiving the obligation as compensation to him

650 Madison Avenue Office Space

Since April 2009 the Company has sublicensed certain space from CKX Inc The terms of the agreement runs concurrent with the

term of CKXs sublease for the space expiring in 2013 CKX is responsible for payment of the full rental amount each month to the

sublandlord and the Company will pay its pro rata share of the rent for the space it occupies to CKX with such payments to be made on the

first day of every month during the term The agreement is terminable at the Companys option on 90 days written notice and is terminable at

the option of CKX upon the failure of the Company to make single rental payment when due subject to five day cure period

For the period from January 2010 until December 31 2010 rent payments to CKX totaled $152245

Private Placements of Company Equity Securities and Unsecured Demand Loans

During 2010 and to date in 2011 the Company sold certain of its equity securities in private placements to certain of its directors

executive officers and greater than 10% stockholders and their affiliates and received unsecured demand loans from certain of these persons as

described under Item Business2010 and 2011 Private Placements of Equity Securities and Borrowings under Unsecured Demand

Loans These private placements and unsecured demand loans were approved by majority of the Companys disinterested directors to the

extent applicable
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Board Decisions and Certain Conflicts of Interest

Past and future decisions by our board regarding our future growth operations and major corporate decisions will be subject to certain

possible conflicts of interest These conflicts may have caused and in the future may cause our business to be adversely affected Nevertheless

our board will be responsible for making decisions on our behalf In appropriate circumstances we expect to submit transactions with any

related party for approval or negotiation by our independent directors or special committee thereof

Independent Directors

The Company has Corporate Governance Guidelines which provide among other things that majority of the Companys Board

must meet the criteria for independence required by The NASDAQ Global Market and that the Company shall at all times have an Audit

Committee Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee which committees will be made up entirely of

independent directors Although the Company is no longer listed on The NASDAQ Global Market the Company continues to comply with

these criteria Rules 4200 and 4350 of The NASDAQ Global Market require that majority of our Board qualify as independent

Messrs Meyer Miller Silverman and Sudack whose biographical information is included below under the heading Executive

Officers and Directors of Circle Entertainment Inc have been appointed to our Board as independent directors and qualify as such under the

applicable rules of The NASDAQ Global Market

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Services Provided by the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Fees Paid

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees for services provided by Ernst Young LLP to the Company and its subsidiaries

with respect to the
years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

2010 2009

Audit Feesl 7050 160000

Audit-Related Fees 5000
Tax Fees

All Other Fees

Total 7050 165000

For 2009 audit fees were for the quarterly reviews relating to the Companys Form lO-Q reports for the quarter ended March

31 and June 2009 and for services in connection with the transition to the new accounting firm For 2010 audit fees related to

services rendered in connection with the Company filing its amended Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 2009
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The following table sets forth the
aggregate

fees for services provided by L.L Bradford Company LLC to the Company and its

subsidiaries with respect to the years ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

2010 2009

Audit Fees1 222500 155000

Audit-Related Fees

Tax Fees

All Other Fees

Total 222500 155000

For 2009 audit fees were for the quarterly review for the Form 10-Q report for the third quarter ended September 302009 for

transition services and for audit services including the annual audit including required quarterly reviews and other procedures

required to be performed by the independent auditors to be able to form an opinion on the Companys consolidated financial

statements and ii consultation with management as to the accounting or disclosure treatment of transactions or events For 2010
audit fees were for the quarterly reviews of the Form 10-Q reports for the quarters ended March 31 June 30 and September 30 2010

and for audit services including the annual audit including required quarterly reviews and other procedures required to be

performed by the independent auditors to be able to form an opinion on the Companys consolidated financial statements and ii
consultation with management as to the accounting or disclosure treatment of transactions or events For 2010 audit fees also related

to services rendered in connection with the Company filing its amended Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended

December 31 2009

Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Services Provided by the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Committee of the board of directors maintains pre-approval policy with respect to material audit and non-audit services to

be performed by the Companys independent registered public accounting firm in order to assure that the provision of such services does not

impair the accountants independence Before engaging the independent registered public accounting firm to render service the engagement

must be either specifically approved by the Audit Committee or entered into pursuant to the pre-approval policy Pre-approval authority may
be delegated to one or more members of the Audit Committee

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

List of Documents filed as part of this Report

Financial Statements

See Table of Contents to Financial Statements at page 32

Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009
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Financial Statement Schedule

SCHEDULE II

Circle Entertainment Inc

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010 AND 2009

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS

Balance at Additions Additions

Charged

Beginning Credited Charged
of to Costs to Other Balance at

Description Period And Expenses Accounts Deductions End of Period

For The Year Ended December 31 2010

Allowance for doubtthl accounts 162 162
Deferred taxes valuation allowance 192709

___________ 192709

Total 192871
___________ ___________ ___________

For The Year Ended December 31 2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts 17 $145 162

Deferred taxes valuation allowance 167911 39818 15020 192709

Total 167928 $39963 15020 192871
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Exhibits

The documents set forth below are filed herewith or incorporated herein by reference to the location indicated

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the registrant

3.2 Certificate of Designation of Non-Voting Preferred Stock of the registrant

3.3 Certificate of Designation of Series Convertible Preferred Stock of the registrant 17

3.4 Certificate of Designation of Series Convertible Preferred Stock of the registrant 20

3.5 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of the registrant 23

3.6 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the registrant

4.1 Certificate of Designation of Non-Voting Preferred Stock of the registrant

4.2 Certificate of Designation of Series Convertible Preferred Stock of the registrant 17

4.3 Certificate of Designation of Series Convertible Preferred Stock of the registrant 20

10.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of FX Luxury Realty LLC dated as of

March 20086

10.2 Employment Agreement between the registrant and Mitchell Nelson dated as of December 31 2007

10.3 Employment Agreement between the registrant and Paul Kanavos dated as of December 31 2007
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.4 Employment Agreement by and between the registrant and Robert F.X Sillerman dated as of January 2008

10.5 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan

10.6 2007 Executive Equity Incentive Plan

10.7 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 13 2008 by and between FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc and The

Huff Alternative Fund L.P and The Huff Alternative Parallel Fund L.P

10.8 Form of Subscription Agreement

10.9 Form of $4.50 Warrant

10.10 Form of $5.50 Warrant

10.11 Form of Option Agreement for FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan

10.12 Form of Option Agreement for FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc 2007 Executive Equity Incentive Plan

10.13 Letter Agreement entered into June 23 2009 by and between FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc and Paul Kanavos

10

Letter Agreement entered into June 23 2009 by and between FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc and Mitchell Nelson

10

10.15 Form of Subscription Agreement 11

10.16 FormofWarrant1l

10.17 Lock Up and Plan Support Agreement dated as of October 27 2009 by and among Ladesbank Baden-Wurttemberg

Muncherier Hypothekenbank EG Deutsche Hypothekenbank Actien-Gesellschaft Great Lakes Reinsurance UK PLC FX

Luxury Las Vegas LLC FX Luxury Las Vegas II LLC LIRA Property Owner LLC and LIRA LLC 12

Lock Up and Plan Support Agreement dated as of December 18 2009 by and among Ladesbank Baden-Wurttemberg

Munchener Hypothekenbank EG Deutsche Hypothekenbank Actien-Gesellschaft Great Lakes Reinsurance UK PLC Five

Mile Capital Pooling International LLC Spectrum Investment Partners LP Transamerica Life Insurance Company NexBank

SSB FX Luxury Las Vegas LLC and LIRA LLC 13

10.19 Standstill Agreement dated as of December 18 2009 by and among Ladesbank Baden-WUrttemberg Munchener

Hypothekenbank EG Deutsche Hypothekenbank Actien-Gesellschaft Great Lakes Reinsurance UK PLC FX Luxury Las

Vegas LLC LIRA Property Owner LLC and LIRA LLC 13

10.20 First Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement dated as of March

2008 of FX Luxury Realty LLC effective as of December 24 2009 by and among FX Luxury LLC Flag Luxury

Properties LLC Circle Entertainment Inc and FXL Inc and FXL Priority Corp 18

10.21 First Amendment to Lock Up and Plan Support Agreement dated as of January 22 2010 by and among Ladesbank Baden

Wumemberg Munchener Hypothekenbank EG Deutsche Hypothekenbank Actien-Gesellschafi Great Lakes Reinsurance

UK PLC Five Mile Capital Pooling International LLC Spectrum Investment Partners LP Transamerica Life Insurance

Company NexBank SSB FX Luxury Las Vegas LLC and LIRA LLC 14

10.22 Second Amendment to Lock Up and Plan Support Agreement dated as of February 2010 by and among Ladesbank Baden

Wurttemberg Munchener Hypothekenbank EG Deutsche Hypothekenbank Actien-Gesellschaft Great Lakes Reinsurance

UK PLC Five Mile Capital Pooling International LLC Spectrum Investment Partners LP Transamerica Life Insurance

Company NexBank SSB FX Luxury Las Vegas LLC and LIRA LLC 15

10.23 Form of Subscription Agreement 16
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10.24 Form of Warrant16

10.25 First Amendment to Lock Up and Plan Support Agreement dated as of April 16 2010 by and among Ladesbank Baden

Wurttemberg Munchener Hypothekenbank EG Deutsche Hypothekenbank Actien-Gesellschaft Great Lakes

Reinsurance UK PLC FX Luxury Las Vegas LLC FX Luxury Las Vegas II LLC LIRA Property Owner LLC and

LIRA LLC 19

10.26t Shared Services Agreement dated as of October 2010 by and between BPS Parent LLC and the registrant

10.27 Form of Subscription Agreement 20

10.28 Form of Warrant 20

10.29 Exclusive License Agreement entered into September 10 2010 by and among William Kitchen US ThrillRides LLC

and Circle Entertainment SV-1 LLC 21

10.30 Development Agreement dated and effective as of September 10 2010 by and among Circle Entertainment SV-1 LLC

and US ThrillRides LLC and William Kitchen as to certain provisions thereof 21

10.31 Form of Warrant issued to William Kitchen and his designees 21

10.32 Transaction Agreement by and between Circle Entertainment Property-Orlando LLC and The Square LLC Orlando

Hotel International SPE LLC and Orlando Hotel International SPE Holdings LLC 24

10.33 Form of Promissory Note 25

14.1 Code of Ethics

Z.LII List of Subsidiaries

2111 Consent of L.L Bradford Company LLC relating to the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-8

Registration No 333-150936

ILJ.t Certification of Principal Executive Officer

112 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer

Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer

112 Section 1350 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer

99.1 Third Amended Chapter Il Plan of Reorganization dated October 12 2010 of FX Luxury Las Vegas LLC 22

Filed herewith

Incorporated by reference to Amendment No to the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-I Registration No 333-145672
filed with the Commission on December 2007

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 2008
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Incorporated by reference from the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-149032 filed with the

Commission on February 2008

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2007

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 31 2008

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-I Registration No 333-149032 filed with the

Commission on March 2008

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 2008

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 17 2008

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 29 2008

10 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 23 2009

11 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 92009

12 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 30 2009

13 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23 2009

14 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 22 2010

15 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 2010

16 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 112010

17 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 2010

18 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009

19 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 16 2010

20 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 18 2010

21 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 10 2010

22 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 2010

23 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 11 2011

24 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 28 2011

25 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 2011

Each management contract or compensation plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-

pursuant to Item ISis listed in exhibits 10.2 10.3 10.4 10.5 10.6 10.1110.1210.13 and 10.14
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this

Report to be signed on its behalf of the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Circle Entertainment Inc

By /s/ ROBERT F.X SILLERMAN March 31 2011

Robert F.X Sillerman

ChiefExecutive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

By /5/ ROBERTF.X SILLERMAN March 31 2011

Robert F.X Sillerman Chairman of the Board

By /s/ GARY MCHENRY March 312011

Gary McHenty ChiefFinancial Officer

Principal Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

By /5/ PAUL KANAVOS March 31 2011

Paul Kanavos Director

By /5/ MICHAEL MEYER March 31 2011

Michael Meyer Director

By Is HARVEY SILVERMAN March 31 2011

Harvey Silverman Director

By /s/ ROBERT SUDACK March 31 2011

Robert Sudack Director

By /s/ JOHN MILLER March 31 2011

John Miller Director
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

IUPDATE LISTJ

The documents set forth below are filed herewith

Exhibit

Number Description

10.26 Shared Services Agreement dated October 2010 by and between BPS Parent LLC and the registrant

21.1 List of Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of L.L Bradford Company LLC relating to the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-8 Registration No
33-150936

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer

31.2 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 10.26

SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT

Dated As of October 2010

The parties to this agreement are FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc Delaware corporation FXREE and BPS Parent

LLC Nevada limited liability company BPS FXREE and BPS are sometimes referred to collectively hereinafter as the parties or

individually as

FXREE through various subsidiaries is engaged in various activities including the exploitation of the Sky View observation

wheel technology and trade name BPS is engaged in various activities including real estate development

Each of FXREE and BPS has certain capabilities by virtue of its management employees expertise and other resources and

the parties have determined that certain of such capabilities are complementary to those of the other party Accordingly FXREE wishes to

obtain certain services from BPS and BPS is willing to perform certain services for FXREE on the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement In the fliture BPS may wish to obtain certain services from FXREE and FXREE may be willing to perform such services for BPS

on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement

In consideration of the mutual agreements provisions and covenants contained in this Agreement and for other good and

valuable consideration the receipt and legal sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged the parties hereby agree as follows

Shared Services

1.1 Each Party to Provide Services Subject to Section 1.6 hereof during the Term as hereinafter defined BPS shall

perform services described on Schedule to this Agreement the Provided Services for FXREE and FXREE shall perform Provided

Services for BPS in each case as determined pursuant to Section 1.2 hereof In performing any Provided Services pursuant to this Agreement

party shall use the same attention skill and timeliness that it uses in conducting its own business so long as the overall standard of care is at

minimum commercially reasonable

1.2 Determination of Services to be Performed Monthly or with such other frequency as the parties may mutually

determine at least one Services Representative as hereinafter defined from BPS and at least one Services Representative from FXREE shall

meet either in person at time and place mutually determined or by telephone at time mutually determined to review the needs and

capabilities of the parties hereto with respect to Provided Services and to allocate to the parties hereto their respective responsibilities for

performing Provided Services hereunder for the other party Each of the parties hereto shall use its reasonable commercial efforts to undertake

the performance for the other party of any and all Provided Services as may be reasonably needed by the other party for the fulfillment of its

business objectives including without limitation its ordinary course business operations any non-ordinary course initiatives that may be

approved by its board of directors managing member or other applicable governing body group or person and any and all agreements

documents and instruments executed and delivered in connection therewith However neither party shall be required to agree to perform any

Provided Services to the extent doing so would be materially disruptive to its business if party determines that it will be unable to perform

any
Provided Services that may be requested hereunder it shall promptly inform the other party of such determination

hitip //apps shareholder.comlsec/viewerContent.aspxcompanyid FXLEdocid 783231 0print 7/15/201



Circle Entertainment Inc Annual Report Page 118 of 137

1.3 Services Representatives Each party shall maintain one representative for purposes of determining the

Provided Services to be performed hereunder each Services Representative Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this

Agreement each party is identifying its initial Services Representative to the other party in written notice Either Party may change its

Services Representative at any time by giving written notice to the other party In performing its obligations with respect to Provided Services

under this agreement party shall be entitled to rely upon any instructions authorizations approvals or other information provided by

Services Representative of the other party

1.4 Personal Nature of Services

The Provided Services to be provided by each party hereunder are personal in nature Neither party may assign or

encumber this Agreement or any
of its rights or obligations hereunder or delegate or subcontract any performance or other obligation hereunder

without the prior written consent of the other party

If party in performing any
Provided Services hereunder in its reasonable judgment deems it to be expedient or

appropriate to use the services of consultants professionals independent contractors and other third parties including without limitation law

firms or accounting firms to perform in whole or in part any
of such Provided Services the performing party shall first request the written

approval of the other party to use the services of such third party The performing party shall not use the services of such third party without

the other partys written consent which may be withheld in the other partys sole discretion The parties shall use their reasonable commercial

efforts to cause all invoices with respect to the fees and expenses of third party service providers to be sent directly to the party for whom such

services were performed and regardless of the addressee of the invoice that party shall pay such fees and expenses directly

1.5 Modification of Services Anything to the contrary in this Agreement notwithstanding if majority of the

Independent Representatives as defined in Section 2.2 hereof of party to this Agreement determine in good faith that any specific Provided

Services being performed hereunder have had or are likely to have an adverse effect on such party or its assets financial condition prospects

legal rights or responsibilities reputation or operations including without limitation in whole or in part as result of any of the relationships

between the parties including without limitation any of those relationships described in the recitals at the head of this Agreement then such

party shall give the other parties to this Agreement notice of such determination which notice shall include description in reasonable detail of

the specific Provided Services with respect to which the determination has been made and promptly upon and after the receipt of such notice

the specific Provided Services shall no longer be performed
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1.6 Employment Contracts of Key Personnel From time to time after the date hereof the parties may enter into

employment agreements with employees who may be expected to perform Provided Services hereunder Each of the parties shall use its

reasonable commercial efforts to cause any such employment agreement to contain an appropriate provision whereby the employee

acknowledges and agrees that performing such Provided Services under this agreement may be part of the employees duties from time to time

as directed by the employer and that such employee shall be bound and obligated to comply with any reasonable non-disclosure

and assignment of invention agreements that the recipient of services pursuant to this Agreement generally requires to be signed by its own

employees provided however that the employer of an employee who is providing services to the other party to this agreement shall not be

liable or responsible for any breach committed by its own employees of such non-disclosure and assignment of invention agreements

1.7 Compliance with Laws Each party shall comply with all applicable laws codes regulations ordinances and rules

with respect to the Provided Services to be performed hereunder and shall procure and maintain all permits or licenses that may be required at

any time in connection with the performance of the Provided Services

1.8 No Additional Resources In providing Provided Services hereunder no party shall be obligated to hire
any

additional employees maintain the employment of any specific employee or purchase lease or license
any

additional equipment or materials

1.9 Cooperation To the extent required in the reasonable determination of party performing Provided Services

hereunder the party receiving such services shall cooperate with the performing party in all reasonable respects in the provision of such

Provided Services

1.10 Force Maieure Each party shall be excused from its obligations pursuant to this Agreement to the extent

performance thereof is prevented by any act of God war riot fire explosion accident flood sabotage or acts of terrorism lack of despite

reasonable efforts to obtain adequate labor or material compliance with governmental requests laws regulations orders or actions breakage

or failure of machinery or apparatus failure of third party to perform or any other cause or circumstances beyond the reasonable control of

the performing party

Term

2.1 Term and Termination This Agreement is effective on the date hereof and shall remain in force and effect until

December 31 2011 the Term provided however that the Term may be extended or earlier terminated by the mutual written agreement
of the parties or may be earlier terminated upon 90 days written notice from either party together with certificate from an officer or manager

as applicable of the terminating party that majority of the Independent Representatives as defined in Section 2.2 hereof of such party have

determined in good faith that the terms andlor provisions of this agreement are not in all material respects fair and consistent with the standards

reasonably expected to apply in arms-length agreements between affiliated parties provided further however that in any event either party

may terminate this Agreement in its sole discretion upon 180 days prior written notice to the other party
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2.2 Independent Representative For purposes of this Agreement an Independent Representative of party shall

mean

in the case of any party with securities that are registered pursuant to the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and that are publicly traded on recognized United States securities market or exchange any

individual that is an Independent Director of such party for purposes of the rules of the principal United States

market or exchange on which such securities trade and for purposes of this item determination of the

Independent Representatives of such party shall mean the determination of majority of such Independent

Directors and

ii in the case of any other party any individual who in the reasonable good-faith agreement of

the parties hereto is no less independent of such party than would be required of an Independent Director under

the rules of the NASD Inc and for purposes of this item ii the parties hereto shall from time to time
agree

upon group of Independent Representatives for each party to this agreement to which this item ii is applicable

and determination of the Independent Representatives of such party shall mean the determination of

majority of such Independent Representatives

Compensation

3.1 Compensation Factors

The compensation to be paid in respect of all Provided Services to be performed under this Agreement shall be based

on any and all factors that the parties hereto shall in their reasonable good-faith discretion consider to be relevant and appropriate under the

particular circumstances including without limitation the cost and burden of providing such services the fair market value of the services

performed and/or the value of the benefit received by the party for whom the services were performed the time required in performing such

services by the officers employees or other personnel of the performing party and the value of such time calculated based on the overall

compensation received by such person including salary and benefits etc paid or given to such person but excluding any stock options or

other equity-based compensation that may be granted awarded issued or otherwise conferred upon such person and an amount attributable to

overhead to account for the additional resources such as rent utilities and similarcosts associated with the performance of the Provided

Services by each party hereunder and reasonably allocable for this purpose based on common cost accounting practices
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Each party shall require its officers employees and other personnel who perform Provided Services hereunder to

maintain records of the time allocated including description of the services rendered during such time to each project and in connection with

any ongoing services

Prior to the date of this Agreement the parties hereto may have performed certain of the services contemplated

hereunder Promptly after the execution and delivery of this Agreement each party shall deliver to the other parties description of all such

services previously performed and the parties shall in good faith determine and pay the net compensation due using the factors described in

this Section 3.1

3.2 quarterly Determination of Net Payment

On one or more mutually convenient days during the last 15 days of each October January April and July

commencing January 2008 each of the parties hereto shall cause duly authorized representative who need not be Services Representative

to meet with the other partys duly authorized representative to determine the net payment due from one party to the other for Provided

Services performed by the parties during the calendar quarter ended on the last day of the preceding month and ii prepare report in

reasonable detail with respect to the Provided Services so performed including the value of such services and the net payment due At or prior

to such meetings each party shall if requested ftirnish the other party with copies of documentation of the time expended by its officers

employees or other personnel in performing Provided Services during the preceding calendar quarter The parties hereto shall through such

meetings of their respective representatives use their reasonable good-faith efforts to determine the net payments due in accordance with the

factors described in Section 3.1a hereof

The parties shall promptly present the report prepared pursuant to Section 3.2 hereof to their respective Independent

Representatives for their review as promptly as practicable If the Independent Representatives of either party raise questions or issues with

respect to the report the parties shall cause their duly authorized representatives to meet promptly to address such questions or issues in good

faith and if appropriate prepare
revised report If the report is approved by the Independent Representatives of each party then the net

payment due as shown in the report shall be promptly paid but in any event not more than 30 days after approval by the Independent

Representatives

From time to time during any quarter at frequency of not more than two times per month FXRE may advance

to or for the account of BPS amounts reasonably necessary and anticipated to be required at the end of each calendar quarter to be paid in

connection with the net payment so that BPS is not required to advance monthly payments to its personnel or for its overhead relating to the

services performed for FXREE or its subsidiaries Such advances shall be subject to the quarterly determination of net payment required to be

completed in accordance with subparagraphs 3.2a and 3.2b above
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Confidentiality

In the course of performance of the Provided Services hereunder the parties will disclose or deliver to each other

Confidential Information as hereinafter defined and nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the possession by party hereto of any such

Confidential Information of the other party or the use by such party of
any

such Confidential Information in each case as may be reasonably

necessary
in the performance by such party of the Provided Services contemplated hereunder subject in all events to all of the provisions set

forth below in this Section The parties wish to assure that all Confidential Information is protected from unwanted disclosures Therefore

during the Term and for period of two years thereafter the Receiving Party as hereinafter defined shall and shall cause all of its

Representatives as hereinafter defined to keep the Confidential Information strictly confidential not disclose any of the Confidential

Information to any person outside its organization not exploit such Confidential Information for its own benefit or the benefit of another and

only use the Confidential Information as shall be strictly necessary in the performance of the Provided Services hereunder unless in each case

the Protected Party as hereinafter defined gives its express prior written consent to the contrary

Without limiting the foregoing the Receiving Party shall disclose Confidential Information only to individuals

within its organization including legal accounting financial and other professional advisers only if such individuals have need to know

such Confidential Information in the course of the performance of their duties and who are bound by written agreement or applicable codes of

professional conduct to protect the confidentiality of such Confidential Information The Receiving Party shall promptly report to the Protected

Party any actual or suspected violation of the terms of this Section and will take all reasonable further steps requested by the Protected Party

to prevent control or remedy any such violation In addition the parties acknowledge that each of the other parties is or may be public

company Therefore each party shall advise each of its employees representatives and advisors that may be involved in performing Provided

Services hereunder that the federal and state securities laws prohibit any person
who has material non-public information about company

from purchasing or selling securities of such company or from communicating such information to any other person under circumstances in

which it is reasonably foreseeable that such person is likely to purchase or sell such securities

The obligations of the Receiving Party under this Section shall not apply to the extent that such Confidential

Information

is generally known to the public at the time of disclosure or becomes generally known without

the Receiving Party violating this Section
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ii is in the Receiving Partys possession at the time of disclosure otherwise than as result of

Receiving Partys breach of
any legal obligation

iii becomes known to the Receiving Party through disclosure by sources other than the

Protected Party having the legal right to disclose such Confidential Information

iv is and can be conclusively shown to have been independently developed by the Receiving

Party without reference to or reliance upon the Confidential Information

is required to be disclosed by the Receiving Party in order for the Receiving Party to comply

with applicable laws and regulations provided that the Receiving Party provides prior written notice of such

required disclosure to the Protected Party or

vi is utilized by the Receiving Party in connection with the business dealings and transactions

between the Receiving Party and the Disclosing Party

The Receiving Party shall not by virtue of this Agreement receive any right title or interest in or any license or right

to use the Confidential Information of the Protected Party or any patent copyright trade secret trademark or other intellectual property rights

thereth by implication or otherwise

The Receiving Party shall upon the termination of this Agreement or the request of the Protected Party deliver to

the Protected Party all Confidential Information of the Protected Party and all copies and reproductions thereof In addition the Receiving

Party shall destroy any notes reports or other documents prepared by the Receiving Party which contain Confidential Information of the

Protected Party and ii any Confidential Information of the Protected Party and all copies and reproductions thereof which is in electronic

form or cannot otherwise be returned to the Protected Party

Each of the parties acknowledges and agrees that money damages would not be sufficient remedy to any Protected

Party hereunder for any breach of this Section by the Recipient Party and that the Protected Party shall be entitled to equitable relief

including injunction and specific performance in the event of any breach of any of the provisions this confidentiality agreement without being

required to post any bond or other security in connection with such relief Such remedies shall not be deemed to be the exclusive remedies for

breach of this confidentiality agreement but shall be in addition to all other remedies available at law or equity

Each of the parties hereto acknowledges that FXREE engages in the exploitation of certain intellectual property

rights related to the SkyView observation
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Wheel which rights are licensed to subsidiary of FXREE indirectly through its Circle Entertainment SV-l LLC

As used herein

Confidential Information means all trade secrets or confidential or proprietary information

relating to party as used in this Section the Protected Party that may be disclosed or delivered to

received by or discovered by another party hereto as used in this Section the Receiving Party Without

limitation the term Confidential Information shall include any notes analyses compilations studies

interpretations memoranda or other documents prepared by or on behalf of the Receiving Party that contain

reflect or are based upon in whole or in part any Confidential Information obtained by the Receiving Party

ii Representative means with respect to any Person the directors officers partners

trustees employees Affiliates subsidiaries agents representatives consultants accountants financial advisors

experts legal counsel and other advisors to such Person

iii Person means an individual corporation limited partnership general partnership

limited liability company societe anonyme association organization sole proprietorship or any other entity

whatsoever wherever formed or wherever located or government or political subdivision thereof or

governmental agency

iv An Affiliate means when used with reference to specified Person any Person who

directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries controls is controlled by or is under common control

with the specified Person or ii any Person who is member of the immediate family of such Person

Indemnification

5.1 Indemnification by the Party Receiving Services

Each party receiving Provided Services hereunder the Indemnifying Party from the other party shall protect

indemnify and hold harmless the party performing such services and such performing partys employees including without limitation each

and every employee who actually performs such services shareholders officers directors affiliates and subsidiaries and their respective

successors and assigns each an Indemnified Party from and against any and all losses damages liabilities claims demands causes of

action and expenses of any kind collectively Losses arising from the performance of Provided Services for the Indemnifying Party

pursuant to this Agreement except to the extent any such Losses result from the acts omissions or negligence or misconduct of an Indemnified

Party provided however that any indemnification hereunder shall be limited as provided in Section 5.3 hereof including but not limited to

Section 5.3d hereof The indemnification obligations of each Indemnifying Party under this Section 5.1 shall survive any termination of this

Agreement
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If any claim shall be made or proceeding instituted collectively Claim against any Indemnified Party for

which indemnity will be sought pursuant to this Agreement such Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Indemnifying Party in writing an
Indemnification Notice The Indemnifying Party within ten 10 days following receipt of the Indemnification Notice shall retain counsel

reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Party to represent the Indemnified Party The approval of counsel by the Indemnified Party shall not

be unreasonably withheld or delayed The Indemnifying Party shall be responsible for and shall pay the fees and disbursements of such

counsel directly related to the Claim Notwithstanding the foregoing any
Indemnified Party shall have the right to retain its own counsel but

the fees and disbursements of such counsel shall be at the expense of the Indemnified Party unless the Indemnifying Party shall have failed

to retain counsel as required herein or ii counsel retained by the Indemnifying Party is inappropriate due to actual or potential conflicting

interests between the Indemnified Party and any
other party represented by such counsel in the Claim The Indemnifying Party shall not be

liable for the fees and disbursements of more than one law firm qualified to act as counsel for the Indemnified Parties in connection with

Claim

The Indemnifying Party shall not be liable for payment of any settlement of Claim without the Indemnifying

Partys prior written consent The Indemnified Party also shall have the right to consent in writing prior to settlement of Claim involving the

Indemnified Party but such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed by the Indemnified Party

5.2 Indemnification by the Party Performing Services Each party performing Provided Services hereunder the
Performing Party for the other party shall protect indemnify and hold harmless the other party from and against any and all Losses arising

from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Performing Party or any of its officers employees or other representatives in the

performance of Provided Services for the other party pursuant to this Agreement provided however that any indemnification hereunder shall

be limited as provided in Section 5.3 hereof including but not limited to Section 5.3d hereof The indemnification obligations of the

Performing Party under this Section 5.2 shall survive any termination of this Agreement All of the provisions of Section 5.1b hereof shall

apply mutatis mutandis with the Performing Party for purposes of this Section 5.2 deemed to be equivalent to the Indemnifying Party under

Section 5.1b for this purpose to the indemnifications obligations of the Performing Party under this Section 5.2
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5.3 Certain Limitations

In no event shall party or its employees shareholders officers directors affiliates and subsidiaries and

successors and assigns be liable or responsible for any inability failure or delay to provide Provided Services hereunder resulting from the

delay incompleteness or inaccuracy of records data or information furnished by the requesting party or any deficiency of assets transferred by

the requesting party to the performing party

In no event shall party or its employees shareholders officers directors affiliates and subsidiaries and

successors and assigns be liable or responsible whether in contract tort including negligence warranty strict liability or any other legal

theory for any special indirect incidental or consequential damages of any nature including without limitation any lost profits in connection

with the Provided Services provided pursuant to this Agreement

Except as expressly set forth in this Agreement no warranties representations indemnities or guarantees with

respect to the Provided Services to be performed hereunder are made by either party whether
express or implied or arising by law custom or

otherwise

Anything to the contrary notwithstanding in any claim for indemnification hereunder no party shall be entitled to

recover from any other party hereunder any amount in excess of the sum of the amount of insurance recoverable and ultimately recovered by

the indemnifying party in respect of the act omission fact event or circumstances on which the claim for indemnification was based and ii
the amount if any actually paid or deemed to be paid by virtue of any quarterly determinations of net payments by the indemnified party to

the indemnifying party in respect of the Provided Services performed in connection with the act omission fact event or circumstances on

which the claim for indemnification was based

5.4 Adequate Insurance

Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement each party is furnishing to the other party

certificate of insurance demonstrating that the furnishing party has one or more policies from reputable and solvent United States insurers of

liability property casualty and or other insurance
coverage

with respect to its performance of the Provided Services hereunder Each party

furnishing such certificate of insurance hereby represents warrants and covenants to the other party that the furnishing party has in full force

and effect all such insurance described in such certificate of insurance and shall at all time during the Term take commercially reasonable

efforts to maintain such insurance in full force and effect Each party shall upon request of the other party from time to time promptly deliver

to the requesting party certificate of insurance demonstrating its compliance with the covenant set forth in the preceding sentence

Each
party

hereto hereby represents warrants and covenants to the other party hereto that the party has examined the

certificate of insurance furnished by the other party and that the coverage coverage amount limits deductibles and other terms and conditions

described in such certificate of insurance appear to be adequate reasonable and appropriate in connection with the performance by the

furnishing party of the Provided Services hereunder

10
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Miscellaneous

6.1 Notices Any notice or communication of any kind to any party hereto or to such partys Services

Representatives in connection with this Agreement shall be at the address of such party set forth below or to such other mailing address of

which such party shall advise the other party in writing

If to FXREE to

FX Real Estate and Entertainment Inc

650 Madison Avenue 15th Floor

New York New York 10022

Facsimile No 212 750-3034

Attention Mitchell Nelson

If to BPS to

BPS Parent LLC

4455 Wagon Trail Avenue

Las Vegas NV 89118

Attention Michael Townsend

Any notice hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered sent by overnight courier or sent

by United States mail or by facsimile transmission and will be deemed received unless earlier received if sent by certified or registered

mail return receipt requested when noted as received by the Postal Service ii if sent by overnight courier when actually received iii if sent

by facsimile transmission which transmission is confirmed on the date confirmed by the sending machine and iv if delivered by hand on

the date of receipt

6.2 Amendments This Agreement may not be modified amended altered or supplemented except by written

agreement executed by each of the parties hereto

6.3 Waiver Any waiver by party hereto of any breach of or failure to comply with any provision or condition of this

Agreement by another party hereto shall not be construed as or constitute continuing waiver of such provision or condition or waiver of

any other breach of or failure to comply with any other provision or condition of this Agreement any such waiver to be limited to the specific

matter and instance for which it is given No waiver of any such breach or failure or of any provision or condition of this Agreement shall be

effective unless in written instrument signed by the party granting the waiver and delivered to the other party hereto in the manner provided

for in Section 6.1 hereof No failure or delay by any party to enforce or exercise its rights hereunder shall be deemed waiver hereof nor shall

any single or partial exercise of any such right or any abandonment or discontinuance of steps to enforce such rights preclude any other or

further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right
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6.4 Agreement Binding Upon Successors and Assigns This Agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the

parties hereto and to their respective successors but the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall not be assignable transferable or

delegable except as may be permitted by the
express provisions hereof including without limitation Section 1.4b hereof and

any attempted

assignment transfer or delegation thereof which is not made in accordance with such
express provisions shall be void

6.5 Severability If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any such provision to any person or entity or

to any circumstance shall be held invalid the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such provision to persons or entities or to such

circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid shall not be affected thereby

6.6 Costs and Expenses Except as otherwise provided herein each party shall bear the costs and
expenses

incurred by

it in connection with the performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement

6.7 Arbitration Except as may be otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement including without limitation

Section 6.9 hereof any dispute or controversy between the parties arising out of this Agreement shall be submitted to sole mutually-agreed

upon JAMS arbitrator pursuant to the American Arbitration Associations Expedited Procedures for arbitration in New York New York The

costs of the arbitration including any administration fee the arbitrators fee and costs for the use of facilities during the hearings shall be

borne equally by the parties to the arbitration Attorneys fees may be awarded to the prevailing or most prevailing party at the discretion of the

arbitrator The arbitrator shall not have any power to alter amend modify or change any of the terms of this Agreement nor to grant any

remedy that is either prohibited by the terms of this Agreement or not available in court of law The arbitrator shall issue written reasoned

award and decision that shall be consistent with and supported by the facts and the law within 90 days from the date the arbitration proceedings

are initiated Judgment on the award of the arbitrator may be entered in any court referred to in Section 6.9 hereof In the event the parties are

not able to mutually agree on an arbitrator the AAA shall be authorized to appoint sole arbitrator

6.8 Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties to this

Agreement in separate counterparts each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall

constitute one and the same Agreement

6.9 Governing Law Forum for Certain Purposes This Agreement is to be governed by and construed in accordance

with the laws of the State of New York other than
any

conflicts of laws principles thereof that would result in the application of the laws of any

other jurisdiction Any part and only that part of any dispute or controversy between the parties arising out of this Agreement that involves

party seeking an injunction restraining order or other equitable relief or the enforcement of an arbitration award shall be brought in and

resolved exclusively in the state or federal courts sitting in the State of New York and the parties hereto hereby waive and covenant not to raise

any claim or defense that such forum is not convenient or proper Each party hereby agrees
that

any
such court shall have inpersonam

jurisdiction over it with respect to the matters described in the preceding sentence consents to service of
process pursuant to the notice

provisions of Section 6.1 hereof or in any other manner that may be authorized by New York law and agrees that final judgment in any such

action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner specified by

law

12
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6.10 Entire Agreement This Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties relating to the

subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and/or contemporaneous understandings and agreements of any kind and nature whether written

or oral among the parties with respect to such subject matter all of which are merged herein

6.11 Headings The section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for reference purposes only and shall

not affect in any way the meaning construction or interpretation of this Agreement Any reference to the masculine feminine or neuter gender

shall be reference to such other gender as is appropriate References to the singular shall include the plural and vice versa

6.12 Drafting History This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted without regard to any presumption against

the party causing this Agreement to be drafted The parties acknowledge that this Agreement was negotiated and drafted with each party being

represented by competent counsel of its choice and with each party having an equal opportunity to participate in the drafting of the provisions

hereof and shall therefore be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties

6.13 Relationship of the Parties Each of the parties shall be performing Provided Services hereunder only as an

independent contractor and under no circumstances shall either party or any
of its employees agents or subcontractors be deemed employees

partners agents or joint venturers of the other Party Nothing in this Agreement and no action taken by the parties under this Agreement shall

be construed to create joint venture trust partnership or agency relationship or any other association of any kind between the

parties Neither party shall act or represent or hold itself out as having authority to act as an agent or partner of the other party or in any way
bind or commit the other party to any obligations

6.14 No Third Party Beneficiary The terms and provisions of this Agreement are intended solely for the benefit of

each party hereto and their respective successors or permitted assigns and it is not the intention of the parties to confer third-party beneficiary

rights upon any
other Person other than Person entitled to indemnity under Section hereof

13
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed effective as of the date and year first

above written

FX REAL ESTATE AND
ENTERTAINMENT INC

By
_________________
Name
Title

BPS PARENT LLC

By
_________________
Name
Title

14
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SCHEDULE

LIST OF SERVICES

FXREE to BPS

None

BPS to FXREE

Management and related executive services either with respect to specific projects ongoing services in specific

areas or with respect to partys general business and operations

Preparation of financial projections and review and approval of payables and construction administration

Negotiation execution and delivery of documents relating to services with architects engineers construction

providers and construction lenders

Consulting services in the field of real estate business development and with respect to location-based

entertainment business including amenity programs for properties

Schedule
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Exhibit 21.1

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following is list of each subsidiary of Circle Entertainment Inc its jurisdiction of organization and the percentage ownership held

by Circle Entertainment Inc as of December 31 2010

COMPANIES ORGANIZED IN THE UNITED STATES

FX Luxury LLC formerly known as FX Luxury Realty LLC Delaware 100%

FXL Inc Delaware 100%

Circle Entertainment SV-I LLC Delaware 100%

Circle Entertainment SV Orlando-I LLC Delaware 100%

Circle Entertainment SV-Management LLC Nevada 100%

Common membership interests

ttp //apps shareholder.comlsec/viewerContent.aspxcompanyidFXLEdocid78 3231 0print 7/15/2011



Circle Entertainment Inc Animal Report Page 133 of 137

Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement Form S-8 pertaining to the 2007 Executive Equity Incentive Plan

and the 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan of Circle Entertainment Inc of our report
dated March 31 2011 with respect to the

consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations cash flows stockholders

equity and schedule of Circle Entertainment Inc for the year ended December 31 2010 included in its Annual Report Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2010 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

By Is L.L Bradford Company LLC

Las Vegas Nevada

March 31 2011
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Exhibit 31.1

Annual Certification Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Robert F.X Sillerman certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Circle Entertainment Inc for the year ended December31 2010

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary to

make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the

period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and intemal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules l3a-15f and 15d-15ffl for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to

us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such

evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants

most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial

information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the registrants

internal control over financial reporting

Date March 31 2011 By Is ROBERT F.X SILLERMAN

Robert F.X Sillerman

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive

Officer

Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

Annual Certification Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Gary McHenry certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Circle Entertainment Inc for the
year

ended December 2010

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary to

make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the

period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5e and l5d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15ffl for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to

us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such

evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants

most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial

information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the registrants

internal control over financial reporting

Date March 31 2011 By Is GARY McHENRY
Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

Annual Certification Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 subsections and of Section 1350 Chapter 63 of Title 18 United

States Code the undersigned officer of Circle Entertainment Inc the Company does hereby certify to such officers knowledge that

The annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 of the Company fully complies with the requirements of

Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in

all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Dated March 31 2011 By /s/ROBERTF.X SILLERMAN

Robert F.X Sillerman

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive

Officer

Principal Executive Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Circle Entertaimnent Inc and will be retained

by Circle Entertainment Inc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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Exhibit 32.2

Annual Certification Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 subsections and of Section 1350 Chapter 63 of Title 18 United

States Code the undersigned officer of Circle Entertainment Inc the Company does hereby certify to such officers knowledge that

The annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 of the Company fully complies with the requirements of

Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in

all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Dated March 31 2011 By Is GARY McHENRY
Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Circle Entertainment Inc and will be retained

by Circle Entertainment Inc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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